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Financial Summary
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SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

e miInE Dz o BEA

Revenue from external customers

REMBEF ZBA
2017 2016
—E—+tF N
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Hong Kong aBn 47,784 27,376
Mainland China o [ A 3, 6,335 13,327
Total #aza 54,119 40,708
Revenue Shareholders’ funds
W z5 RREE
(HK$ Million 7 ¥ & £ 7T)
517
407
389
199
105 II
70 46 41 54
| 1 1 | (284)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Net asset value per share
(excluding non-controlling interests)
BREERE (TEEFEHMERER)
(HK cents 7 1llI)
12.3
10.5
8I4 7|3
2013 2014 2016 2017
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Financial Summary

$oh 5 WE B2
The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total THRSEEEEREBRAR ([RXAT])RE
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGY!I MEBAR (SB[ AEE)RBTAFEHE=A
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries ST —HBIEFECsBEEE BAE BERE R
(collectively, the “Group’) as of year ended 31 March for the last five IR BB R E AL B TS E R o
years.
Financials (HK$ Million) BEE (B%BER) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2t T —T-1Ff _—T-WNF —T-=%
Total assets BEE 1,128 1,082 513 509 275
Total liabilities LEE 740 565 727 111 85
Total equity BiEs 389 517 (214) 398 190
Non-controlling interests JEr - - 70 ©) ©)
Shareholders’ funds BEES 389 517 (284) 407 199
Share capital e
- in number (Million) -#8 (BER) 5,318 4,936 3,305 3,305 2,375
- in value —#E 53 49 33 33 24
Revenue WA 54 4 29 43 67
Loss attributable to AARRIER B A
the owners of the Company (LR (470) (511) (724) (140) (30)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) SRER (B4l)
Loss - Basic BE-EXK (9.06) (11.54) (21.92) (4.47) (1.27)
- Diluted o ) (9.06) (11.54) (21.92) (4.49) (1.27)
Dividends g - - - - -
Net asset (liability) value (excluding EE(BE)FE
non-controlling interests) (TEEFEER) 7.3 105 8.6) 123 8.4
S0 4 3 2 A L 20
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Chairman’s Statement

B4

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seizing early opportunities, pursuing
excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead innovatively”,
all over the years, we have all along been adhering to the industry
intrinsic value as the core of our investment philosophy. We believe
all investment values are built on the growth and success of business
operation. We applied the perfect investment evaluation and
management system to select and invest in those enterprises that have
high growth potential and solid business in their own industry sector.
Meanwhile, we also worked closely with the management teams of
prominent enterprises, seeking mutual development to maximize our
own investment value through the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continued to move forward dependably in
achieving to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and
become a professional investment institute with international
competitiveness focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from
our existing securities trading, loan financing, financial leasing business
and food and beverages businesses, during the year, the Group
also entered into subscription agreements regarding the issuance of
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$850 million
and convertible bonds in the amount of HK$59.5 million respectively.
The net proceeds of the issuance of convertible bonds were intended
to be used to fund the Group’s business development, in particular,
the setting up of the Group’s medical management company, utilising
advanced medical technologies and equipment to focus on the
field of oncology treatment and operation management, short-term
loan financing business and to replenish the working capital of the
Group. During the year, the Company issued convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$279.5 million in total, and all of the
remaining aggregate principal amount were also issued before the date
of this annual report.

During the past year, the Company devote much time to continued to
explore different investment opportunities proactively. In addition, the
management team visited different regions in China, North America and
Southeast Asia to explore and study other investment opportunities in
resources, especially new energy, other mining industry, medical new
technology and financial projects, as well as investments in loan and
financial leasing business, etc. The Company is confident about the
prospect of such investment projects. We will notify our shareholders
important information whenever is available.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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The loss of the Company during the year was mainly attributable
to the convertible bonds in amount of HK$850 million that entered
into, the fair value loss of derivative financial liabilities on the partial
issued convertible bonds and share-based payment expenses of
over 500 million share options granted during the year calculated
according to the accounting standard, as well as the loss arising from
the changes in fair value of securities investment calculated according
to the accounting standard. However, these accounting losses did not
have any effect on the cash flow of the Group. The Group’s annual
revenue was mainly contributed by loan financing, securities dividends
and disposal, which represented a significant increase as compared to
last year.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company entered into the
joint venture agreements with China CNNE Investment Limited* (
e E AR A al) and formed two joint ventures respectively.
The first joint venture is for investment advisory services, wholesale
and retails of pharmaceutical, the development, transfer, advices and
services on the field on pharmaceutical technologies. The second
joint venture is for the investment in hospitals and medical projects
especially in proton medical center projects; medical technology
research and development including proton accelerator and supporting
scientific laboratory equipment. During this reporting period, the
Company also completed all its contributions for the parts it invested.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company also entered into
an acquisition agreement with myself, the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire Xintai Investment Company Limited* (J#;T &%
BEHRAF) (“Xintai’) ,
principally engaged in the development, operation and investment of

a company indirectly held by me. Xintai is

property in Chikan District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the PRC.
Xintai also holds One Parkview* (‘A& —3%), which comprises the
unsold residential buildings together with a number of retail shops, car
parks and facilities and developable vacant lands. The Company is very
optimistic about the revenue and profit to be brought by the property
development industry in which it will engage in the PRC in future.

| am also pleased to learn about that the Company would be included
by Morgan Stanley Capital International (“MSCI”) as a constituent of
the MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index with effect from the market
closing of 31 May 2017.

*

For identification purpose only
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Qhairman’s Statement
B3 180

In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in medical new technology, new energy, urban
renewal and infrastructure.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyil

Li Kwong Yuk
Chairman

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations during the year
under review amounted to approximately HK$54 million or HK$13
million more than that during the previous year. There was a loss
for the year attributable to the Company’s owners of approximately
HK$470 million (2016: HK$511 million) which included a fair value loss
on derivative financial liabilities amounted to approximately HK$279
million (2016: HK$213 million), loss arising from changes in fair value of
held for trading investments amounted to approximately HK$40 million
(2016: HK$171 million) and the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$163 million (2016: HK$111 million).

The basic and diluted loss per share was HK9.06 cents, as compared
with loss per share of HK11.54 cents last year.

SECURITIES TRADING

During the year, the Group has actively involved in the securities and
futures contracts trading business. The majority of the Group’s held for
trading investments are those shares under Hang Seng Index or China
Enterprises Index or H shares. Most of these shares are of China large
corporations (“Entities”) with high trading volumes and large market
capitalization. The Group had achieved realised gain on the disposal of
these shares held for trading investments amounting to approximately
HK$26 million (2016: HK$37 million) during the year under review. The
loss of approximately HK$40 million (2016: HK$171 million) arising from
changes in the fair value of the shares still held for trading investments
was greatly reduced as compared with that of last year. As a result, the
Group reported a segment gain of approximately HK$6 million (2016:
segment loss of approximately HK$131 million) during the year under
review. Given the realised gain and segment gain during the year, the
Group had shown a good performance in the trading investments.
The Group considers that the prospects in respect of the shares
still held for trading investments are healthy. The unrealised loss as
recorded at the year end was due to market fluctuation rather than any
problem with the Entities’ fundamentals. The Board understands that
the performance of the investments may be affected by the degree of
volatility in the Hong Kong stock market and subject to other external
factors that may affect their values. Accordingly, the Group will continue
to maintain a diversified portfolio of investment of different segments
of markets to minimize the possible financial risks. Also, the Board will
monitor the performance progress of the investment portfolio closely
from time to time.
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Mana ement Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s

investments were represented as follows:

held for trading

—tFERE

BZRBEEERERNTRER:

—RF=ZA=+—H K&

Fair value
% of gain (loss) % of total % of % of total
shareholding for the year Fairvalue  assets of the shareholding Fair value assets of the
as at ended asat Group as at asat as at Group as at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Company Name/Stock Code 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2016
BHE
ZE-tF
ZB=t-8 RIB—tF RZZ-—RE
RZZ-t§ tEEr  R-B-tF ZAZ+-B RIT-R"E RIT-"E  ZA=t-8
=B=t+-H DrfERE  =ZA=t-A tA%@& =A=t-B ZA=t-H hAER
LAEE/RERE EREAAL (E#8) ZARE  BEZEAL  GRESSL AR BEZEAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETT
Securities listed in Hong Kong BALTRS
China Reinsurance (Group) Corporation (1508) TEERR (£B)RH 1.145% (22,171) 136,845 12.13% 1.145% 159,015 14.70%
(note (a)) ABAF1508) (Hik@)
COFCO Meat Holdings Ltd. (1610) (note (b)) FRARERERAH (1610) 0.897% (4,905) 65,800 5.83% - - -
(Bt ()
CITIC Securities Company Limited (6030) FEEFRNERAT (6030) 0.087% (4,325) 31,745 2.82% 0.190% 78,602 7.26%
(note (c)) (W3E()
China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. (6881) (note (d)) FERTEFRABRAA (6881) 0.098% (1,37) 25,862 2.29% 0.235% 65,466 6.06%
(Bt ()
China Eastern Airines Corporation Limited (670) FERAMERDERAF (670) 0.113% 1,315 24,196 2.14% 0.218% 44,240 4.09%
(note (&) GEL)
Superb Summit International Group Limited (1228) FEEREEBRAF (1228) 1.270% (8,250) 18,629 1.65% 1.270% 26,879 2.48%
(note (f) (BzEM)
China Southern Airines Company Limited (1055) RERAMERDERAF (1055) 0.079% 1,078 11,836 1.05% - - -
(note (g) (W3E()
Quam Limited (952) (note (n)) BERERERERAT (952 0.501% 1,363 8,706 0.77% 818% 11,989 1.11%
(HiEEm)
China Construction Bank Corporation (939) FERRRITROERAF (939) 0.001% % 462 0.04% 0.014% 166,191 15.36%
(note (j) (B0)
Industrial and Commercial Bank of FEIESTRHERAE (1398) - - - - 0.007% 26,040 24%
China Limited (1398)
Bank of China Ltd (3988) FEIR{TRNER AT (3988) - - - - 0.005% 12,880 1.19%
Others (note () iy (Frs() (2,581) 28,462 2.53% 38,608 357%
(39,751) 352,543 31.25% 629,910 58.22%

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes:

The company and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in property and casualty
reinsurance, life and health reinsurance, primary property and casualty
insurance, asset management and other businesses. As disclosed in the
annual report of the company for the year ended 31 December 2016, it
recorded an audited net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
of RMB5.2 billion for the year ended 31 December 2016. With regards to the
future prospects of the company, the Directors noted that the company and its
subsidiaries will speed up its development and expand its scale on the basis
of strict risk control and stable business profitability and will adhere to the
“One-Three-Five” strategy, accelerate optimization of business layout, actively
nurture new growth opportunities, continue to expand the scopes of serving
economic and social development and social securities.

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiaries are investment
holding, hog production, livestock slaughtering, poultry husbandry, sales of
fresh and frozen meats, manufacture and sales of meat products, and import
of meat products. As disclosed in the annual report of the company for the
year ended 31 December 2016, it recorded an audited net profit attributable
to its owners from continuing and discontinued operations of RMB952 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016. With regards to the future prospects of
the company, the Directors noted that the board of directors of the company
is confident to continue to create impressive performance, establish a national
renowned brand and become a role model in China’s meat industry.

The company and its subsidiaries were involved in securities and futures
brokerage; securities investment fund distribution and introducing brokerage
business for futures companies; agency sale of financial products; securities
underwriting and sponsorship; investment advisory and consultancy services;
proprietary securities activities; asset management and fund management;
margin financing and securities lending; and stock option market-making.
As disclosed in the annual report of the company for the year ended 31
December 2016, it recorded an audited net profit attributable to its owners
of the parent of RMB10.4 billion for the year ended 31 December 2016. With
regards to the future prospects of the company, the Directors noted that the
company will strengthen the development of its communist party committee,
enlarge its client market, reinforce and enhance its market position, enhance
its trading and investment capabilities, raise capabilities in integrated services,
further promote domestic and foreign integration and interaction as well as
firmly improve management.

FeE

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Mana;éement Discussion and Analysis
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The company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities and
futures brokerage, institutional sales and investment research, proprietary
trading and other securities trading services, margin financing and securities
lending, asset management and wealth management, equity investment
management. As disclosed in the annual report of the company for the year
ended 31 December 2016, it recorded an audited net profit attributable to its
owners of RMB5.2 billion for the year ended 31 December 2016. With regards
to the future prospects of the company, the Directors noted that the company
will grasp the currently rare opportunities in the securities industry and actively
respond to the fierce competition to adapt to the new normal in economic
growth and the new trend in the development of the securities market. It
will promote the coordinated development of big brokerage, big investment
banking, big asset management, big investment, Internet and overseas M&As
businesses based on the listing of A Shares with the reform of the internal
mechanisms as the guarantee to improve the capacities of the company in
serving national strategies and real economies.

The company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation
of civil aviation, including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery,
tour operations and other extended transportation services. As disclosed in
the annual report of the company for the year ended 31 December 2016, it
recorded an audited net profit attributable to its equity holders of RMB4,498
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. With regards to the future
prospects of the company, the Directors noted that the company and its
subsidiaries will seize the opportunities arising from the steady implementation
of national strategies such as “One Belt One Road” and supply-side structural
reforms, the rising tourism and consumption demand, the market-oriented
pricing in civil aviation and the advantages of Shanghai as a hub, and focus on
the seven areas in order to achieve better operating results.

The company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the exploitation
and management of timber resources and sales of coal products and other
bulk commodities in the PRC. As disclosed in the unaudited interim report
of the company for the six months ended 30 June 2015, it recorded an
unaudited net loss attributable to its owners of HK$56.8 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2015. With regards to the future prospects of the
company, the Directors noted that the management of the company will
continue to focus on the implementation of development plans for energy
resource products and business. Trading of shares of the company has been
suspended since 9:00 a.m. on 15 December 2015.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the operation of
civil aviation, including the provision of passenger, cargo, mail delivery and
other extended transportation services. As disclosed in the annual report of
the company for the year ended 31 December 2016, it recorded an audited
net profit attributable to its equity shareholders of RMB5,044 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016. With regards to the business plan of the
company, the Directors noted that the company will focus on (i) continuously
improve the level of safety management; (i) continuously optimize the fleet
structure based on the market environment; (i) create a first-class international
service brand with sincere service; (iv) accelerate adaptation to new changes
and further raise the capability in operation assurance; (v) vigorously
strengthen the hub construction and continuously expand the effectiveness
of transition; (vi) expedite the construction of the “China Southern e-Travel”
and consolidate the competitive advantages; and (vii) fully utilize the important
functions of financial management, and focus on cost control.

The company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in discretionary
and non-discretionary dealing services for securities, futures and options,
securities placing and underwriting services, margin financing and money
lending services, insurance broking and wealth management services;
corporate finance advisory and general advisory services; fund management,
discretionary portfolio management and portfolio management advisory
services; investor relation, online advertising and financial information services;
and investment holding and securities trading. As disclosed in the annual
results announcement of the company for the year ended 31 March 2017,
it recorded an audited net loss attributable to owners of the company of
HK$57.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2017. With regards to the future
prospects of the company, the Directors noted that the company intended to
expand its reach into structured financing covering both general offers, block
trades and in house products while seeding new funds. The company expects
to develop closer relationships with Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries and its client base by offering assistance in Hong Kong and the
international market involving mergers and acquisitions.

The principal activities of the bank and its subsidiaries are the provision of
corporate and personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the
provision of asset management, trustee, finance leasing, investment banking,
insurance and other financial services. As disclosed in the annual report of
the bank for the year ended 31 December 2016, it recorded an audited net
profit attributable to its equity shareholders of RMB231.5 billion for the year
ended 31 December 2016. With regards to the future prospects of the bank,
the Directors noted that the bank will focus on the real economy service and
supply-side structural reform with right insight on the macro trend, constantly
consolidate the foundation for further development and deliver transformation
bonus so as to bring good returns to its shareholders and customers.

None of these investments represented more than 1% of the total assets of
the Group as at 31 March 2017.
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LOAN FINANCING

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$28 million (2016:
HK$25 million) and the segment profit was HK$27 million (2016:
HK$24 million). The Group will further develop in this segment in order
to earn a higher interest income.

FINANCIAL LEASING

During the year, the Group has recorded HK$2 million (2016: HK$4
million) of interest income and HK$2 million (2016: HK$4 million) of
segment profit from financial leasing business.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

The food and beverages segment generated a revenue of HK$4
million during the year under review (2016: HK$8 million). The segment
reported a loss of HK$1 million (2016: HK$1 million) for the current year
due to the decrease in turnover and the increase in gross margin. The
profit and loss were contributed by the restaurant in Beijing, PRC which
was acquired on 1 January 2014.

TRADING OF WINE

The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks will
be offered to sell when the market prices are favorable such that the
Group can obtain a good return on the trading. At present, the stocks
are kept in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

INVESTMENT IN SHARES IN KORE

Kore Potash Limited (“Kore”) (formerly known as “Elemental Minerals
Limited”) is a mineral exploration and development company listed on
the Australian Stock Exchange. It is currently developing the Sintoukola
potash project located in the Republic of Congo.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group holds an aggregate of
75,141,924 shares of Kore, representing approximately 9.78% of the
entire issued share capital of Kore.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EREE

RARFEER  NEBSRBIWRABE28008 T (=
T —NF B2 5008 ) Ko B FEAE2,700
BT (2T —NF B2 4008 7T) c AEE B
—H RN D EARRE S B A -

BMEMRSE

RAFER AEECAREABELBREANS
WA #2008 7T (= B —AF  BH4008T) &
5 4% FI 78 #2008 7 (= F — X F : B #4008
L) e

S

X

KA R BB FEEEWABKI0ETL (ZF
— N BHEB00E TT) cRAFEN  ZHEEMW
ZEERBABEI008 T (ZT —RF  B%1008
7o) TIEE E R A REF IR - &
FEBREN-_ZE—NF—A—HREZHHIL

RAERE-

U

BRES
AEEERTF-EHELBLEBE ZFFEHN
MERREL USAKENESEEZESE
W ZEFEFERBEZIBEE -

1 EKOREZ I& 10

Kore Potash Limited ([Kore |) (5% [Elemental
Minerals Limited | ) & — 78 K Fl 28 3B 5 2 5 P
T2 EYHERBER AR HEBIEREIR LM
2% & Sintoukoladf B8 18 B -

RAFRBAE  NEEFH S H75,141,924% Kore
B4 B E R Kore2 28 E B 1T AR 2 499.78% ©



CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2017, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,397,638,952 (31 March 2016: 4,977,281,528)
of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) and its issued share capital was
HK$53,976,390 (31 March 2016: HK$49,772,815). During the year, the
details of changes of the capital structure of the Company were set out

below:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

On 19 May 2016, a total of 8,430,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
8,430,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 20 May 2016;

On 16 May 2016, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
10,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 23 May 2016;

On 8 June 2016, a total of 72,100,000 repurchased Shares were
cancelled;

On 6 July 2016, Wincon Capital Investment Limited exercised
the rights attaching to the convertible bonds to subscribe
424,242,424 Shares at conversion price of HK$0.33 per
conversion share and these 424,242,424 Shares were allotted
and issued on the same date;

On 8 July 2016, a total of 1,660,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
1,660,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 11 July 2016;

On 26 July 2016, a total of 1,875,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
1,875,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 29 July 2016;

On 12 January 2017, a total of 2,375,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,375,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 18 January 2017;
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(vii)  On 15 January 2017, a total of 2,375,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,375,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 18 January 2017;

(ix) On 15 March 2017, a total of 1,200,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
1,200,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 21 March 2017;

(x)  On 30 March 2017, a total of 41,500,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
41,500,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 31 March 2017;
and

(xi)  On 31 March 2017, a total of 1,200,000 repurchased Shares
were cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year under review.
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MAJOR TRANSACTION — PARTICIPATION IN
COOPERATION AGREEMENT

On 25 September 2015, R{E & [E (ORI K EHHBR A A (‘Dingyi
Jinhui”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”)
committing to provide 38% funding for the acquisition (the “Xibu
Yungu’s Acquisition”) by a joint venture company, % Il 7 74 25
EAREBEREELT (Xibu Yungu”), and the acquisition (the
“Xumao Ventures’ Further Acquisition”) by Xumao Ventures Limited
(“Xumao Ventures”), as a nominee of Xibu Yungu. Xibu Yungu then
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
to acquire 80% equity interest in &R EREB ORI BRA
7] (“Jinshidai”) and related shareholders’ loans (the “Acquisition”)
from the vendors of Jinshidai (the “Jinshidai Vendors”), whereas
Xumao Ventures entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Sales and Purchase Agreement”’) to acquire 100% equity interest
in Think Right Developments Limited. The Cooperation Agreement
was entered into to provide cash funding for the total acquisition
consideration of RMB1,060,800,000 for Xibu Yungu’s Acquisition and
Xumao Ventures’ Further Acquisition. The Group will provide its portion
(i.e. Dingyi Jinhui’'s 38%) of the funding by its internal resources and/
or through other financing methods. The Cooperation Agreement has
provided that the maximum commitment by Dingyi Jinhui towards the
acquisitions is capped at RMB403,104,000.

The Company has been informed by Xibu Yungu that, despite of
repeated reminders by Xibu Yungu to the Jinshidai Vendors, the
Jinshidai Vendors have not performed in accordance with the terms
of the Acquisition Agreement. On 29 January 2016, Xibu Yungu
submitted an application for arbitration to the Shenzhen Arbitration
Commission CFIIFEZ B &) (the “Commission”) seeking specific
performance of the Acquisition Agreement and damages against
the Jinshidai Vendors. The application has been accepted by the
Commission on the same date.

The Company had been informed by Xibu Yungu that on 11 April
2016, Jinshidai Vendors, Parkwill Group Limited, Xibu Yungu and
Xumao Ventures entered into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement”’) to settle the arbitration claim by Xibu Yungu to the
commission seeking specific performance of the Acquisition Agreement
and damages against the Jinshidai Vendors (the “Arbitration”).
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Under the Settlement Agreement, the Jinshidai Vendors agreed to
make a payment of RMB38,000,000 to settle the Arbitration and
related proceedings. Xibu Yungu had received the payment during the
year.

The Group had only provided the funding of RMB38,000,000 to Xibu
Yungu as capital injection and such funding has been refunded to the
Group in view of the cessation of the Acquisition.

After deducting the costs and expenses in relation to the Acquisition
Agreement, the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Settlement
Agreement from the settlement of RMB38,000,000 by the Jinshidai
Vendors, the Group received a share of 38% of the remaining balance,
approximately HK$9 million, as other income.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 September 2015, 29 September 2015, 2 October
2015, 9 October 2015, 30 November 2015, 9 December 2015, 29
January 2016, 12 April 2016 and 27 April 2016.

LETTER OF INTENT FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF
JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
letter of intent with D&R Asset Management Group Co., Ltd. (‘D&R”)
to establish a joint venture company. The total commitment of capital
contribution to be made to the joint venture company is estimated
to be RMB200 million, of which RMB98 million is proposed to be
contributed by the Company and RMB102 million is proposed to be
contributed by D&R. As at the date of this annual report, the parties
to the letter of intent are still negotiating for the possible cooperation.
Further announcement in relation to the letter of intent will be made by
the Company as and when appropriate. Details of the transaction were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2016.

GRANT OF SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 21
September 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
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On 19 December 2016, the Board granted and the grants were
accepted by the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option
Scheme in respect of 535,000,000 share options at an exercise price
of HK$0.738 per Share.

Details of the above grant of share options were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2016.

ISSUE AND COMPLETION OF CONVERTIBLE
BONDS UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 23 December 2016 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
the subscription agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) with
each of Toplist Investments Limited (“Toplist”), CFC Group Limited
(“CFC Group”), Safe Arena Limited (“Safe Arena”), Ms. Song Ning
(“Ms. Song”) and Ms. Mei Yuanyuan (‘Ms. Mei”) in relation to the
issue of convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$850 million. The Convertible Bonds will mature
in the third anniversary of the issue of the Convertible Bonds. The initial
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.85 per conversion
share. The gross proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds will
be HK$850 million. The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds of approximately HK$849.5 million are intended to be used to
fund the Group’s business development including, in particular, the
setup of the Group’s medical management company utilising advanced
medical technologies and equipment to focus on the field of oncology
treatment and operation management and to replenish the working
capital of the Group. The net price per conversion share to be issued
is approximately HK$0.8495. The conversion shares will be issued
by the Company pursuant to the general mandate (the “General
Mandate”) granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting held
on 2 September 2016. Under the General Mandate, the Company is
authorised to issue up to 1,070,277,790 Shares until the revocation,
variation or expiration of the General Mandate. The Company has not
exercised the power to allot and issue any new Shares pursuant to the
General Mandate prior to the date of the Subscription Agreements.
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On 17 February 2017, all conditions precedent under the CFC Group
Subscription Agreement had been fulfilled. Completion of the CFC
Group Subscription Agreement took place and the CFC Group
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$220 million were
issued to CFC Group on 17 February 2017.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company entered into an
extension letter with each of Safe Arena, Ms. Song and Ms. Mei (the
“Remaining Subscribers”) to extend the completion date from the
45th business day to the 105th business day following the date of
the Remaining Subscription Agreements, or such other date as the
Company and the Remaining Subscribers may agree in writing. Save
and except for the extension of the completion date, all other terms
and provisions of the Remaining Subscription Agreements shall remain
the same and unchanged and the Remaining Subscription Agreements
shall remain in full force and effect.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and Toplist had
mutually agreed to enter, and had entered, into the deed of termination
to terminate the Toplist Subscription Agreement and hence the issue of
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$400 million to Toplist
shall not proceed.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and Gala
Blossom Limited (“Gala Blossom”) had mutually agreed to enter, and
had entered, into the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement in relation
to the issue of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds under General
Mandate in the principal amount of HK$400 million. The Gala Blossom
Convertible Bonds will mature in the third anniversary of the issue of
the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds. The initial conversion price of
the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds is HK$0.85 per conversion share.
The gross proceeds from the issue of the Gala Blossom Convertible
Bonds amounted to HK$400 million. The net proceeds from the issue
of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$399.9
million are intended to be used to set up medical management
company in the PRC, which includes some small scale acquisitions
of medical companies and hospitals. The net price per Gala Blossom
Conversion Share is approximately HK$0.8498.
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On 20 March 2017, the Company decided to change the use of not
exceeding HK$250 million out of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$849.5 million raised from the issue of Convertible Bonds under
the General Mandate would temporarily be used for short-term loan
financing business, rather than for the intended medical business, of
the outstanding subscription agreements.

On 28 April 2017, all conditions precedent under the Safe Arena
Subscription Agreement and Ms. Mei Subscription Agreement have
been fulfilled. Partial completion of the Safe Arena Subscription
Agreement and completion of Ms. Mei Subscription Agreement took
place and the Safe Arena Issued Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$68.5 million and Ms. Mei Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$20 million were issued on 28 April 2017.

On 11 May 2017 (after trading hours), the Company entered into an
extension letter with Gala Blossom to extend the completion date from
the 45th business day to the 80th business day following the date of
the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement, or such other date as the
Company and Gala Blossom may agree in writing. Save and except
for the aforesaid extension of the completion date, all other terms
and provisions of the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement shall
remain the same and unchanged and the Gala Blossom Subscription
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

On 5 June 2017, all conditions precedent under the Safe Arena
Subscription Agreement and Ms. Song Subscription Agreement have
been fulfilled. Completion of the Safe Arena Subscription Agreement
and completion of Ms. Song Subscription Agreement took place and
the Safe Arena Issued Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$91.5 million and Ms. Song Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$50 million were issued on 5 June 2017.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 23 December 2016, 20 February 2017, 3
March 2017, 20 March 2017, 28 April 2017, 11 May 2017 and 5 June
2017 respectively.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company received the
net proceeds from the Subscription Agreements of approximately
HK$449.6 million, of which (i) HK$250 million was used for short-term
loans financing business; (i) HK$101.6 million was used for setup the
joint venture company in the PRC for the investment advisory services,
wholesale and retails of pharmaceutical; and (i) HK$98 million has not
yet been utilized and remained in the bank.

FURTHER ISSUE AND COMPLETION OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 21 February 2017 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the subscription agreement (the “CFC Group Subscription
Agreement 2”) with CFC Group in relation to the issue of the
convertible bonds (the “CFC Group Convertible Bonds 27) in
the principal amount of HK$59.5 million. The gross proceeds from
the issue of the CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2 will be HK$59.5
million. The CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2 will mature in the third
anniversary of the issue of the CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2.
The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.85 per
conversion share. The net proceeds from the issue of the CFC Group
Convertible Bonds 2 of approximately HK$59.4 million are intended
to be used as general working capital of the Group. The net price
per conversion share to be issued is approximately HK$0.849. The
conversion shares will be issued by the Company pursuant to the
General Mandate.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and CFC Group
had mutually agreed to enter, and had entered, into a supplemental
agreement to clarify the rights of CFC Group if the Company is to
conduct any consolidation or subdivision of the Shares before the
maturity date of the convertible bonds which may be issued to CFC
Group under the CFC Group Subscription Agreement 2 dated 21
February 2017.

On 14 March 2017, all conditions precedent under the CFC Group
Subscription Agreement 2 had been fulfilled. Completion of the CFC
Group Subscription Agreement 2 took place and the CFC Group
Convertible Bonds 2 in the principal amount of HK$59.5 million were
issued to CFC Group on 14 March 2017.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 February 2017, 3 March 2017 and 15 March
2017 respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company received the
net proceeds from the CFC Group Subscription Agreement 2 of
approximately HK$59.4 million has not yet been utilized and remained
in the bank.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
EXERCISE OF SHARE OPTIONS

On 3 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from the
grantee to exercise an aggregate of 350,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 350,000 Shares were issued
on 3 April 2017.

On 11 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from the
grantee to exercise an aggregate of 10,000,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and 10,000,000 Shares were
issued on 12 April 2017.

On 23 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from the
grantee to exercise an aggregate of 2,375,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 2,375,000 Shares were
issued on 10 May 2017.

On 25 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notices from
the grantees to exercise an aggregate of 1,165,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 1,165,000 Shares were
issued on 10 May 2017.

On 26 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from
the grantee to exercise an aggregate of 715,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 715,000 Shares were issued
on 10 May 2017.

On 25 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from
the grantee to exercise an aggregate of 600,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 600,000 Shares were issued
on 18 May 2017.
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On 26 April 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from
the grantee to exercise an aggregate of 715,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 715,000 Shares were issued
on 18 May 2017.

On 12 May 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from the
grantee to exercise an aggregate of 10,000,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and 10,000,000 Shares were
issued on 18 May 2017.

On 26 May 2017, the Company received the exercise notices from the
grantees to exercise an aggregate of 12,715,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and 12,715,000 Shares were
issued on 29 May 2017.

On 14 June 2017, the Company received the exercise notice from
the grantee to exercise an aggregate of 2,000,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and 2,000,000 Shares were
issued on 15 June 2017.

CANCELLATION OF REPURCHASED SHARES

On 8 May 2017, a total of 79,825,000 repurchased Shares were
cancelled.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION - FORMATION OF
JOINT VENTURES

On 12 May 2017, MEBREKREERE O L) BR QA
Medical Investment Limited (Zhejiang)*) (“Hoping Medical’), a

(Hopmg

indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
joint venture agreement with an independent third party, F14ZF Ak
& F R /2 \)(China CNNE Investment Limited”) (‘CCIL”"), and the
joint venture company (the “Joint Venture Company”) to form a joint
venture for the investment advisory services, wholesale and retails of
pharmaceutical, the development, transfer, advices and services on
the field on pharmaceutical technologies (the “Transaction”). Before
the Transaction, the entire issued share capital of the Joint Venture
Company is held by CCIL. Upon completion of the Transaction,
the Joint Venture Company will be owned as to 70% by CCIL and
30% by Hoping Medical. The parties expect that they will invest up
to an aggregate of RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$282,250,000) into the Joint Venture Company, of which
RMB90,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$101,610,000) will be
contributed by the Company.

Details of the Transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 May 2017.

On 14 June 2017, Hoping Medical entered into the joint venture
agreement with CCIL and the joint venture company (the “Joint
Venture 2 Company”) to form a joint venture for the investment in
hospitals and medical projects especially in proton medical center
projects; medical technology research and development including
proton accelerator and supporting scientific laboratory equipment;
medical network technology development; medical robot research and
development; hospital management; medical equipment technology
development, advice and services (the “Second Transaction”).
Upon completion of the Second Transaction, the Joint Venture 2
Company will be owned as to 76.92% by CCIL and 23.08% by Hoping
Medical. The parties expect that they will invest up to an aggregate of
RMB650,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$746,200,000) into
the Joint Venture 2 Company, of which RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$172,200,000) will be contributed by the Company.

Details of the Second Transaction were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 14 June 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 21 June 2017 (after trading hours), the Company as the purchaser
and Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, being a controlling shareholder, an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company, as the vendor (“Mr. Li” or
the “Vendor”) entered into the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire for and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to
dispose of the entire equity interest in United Faith Investments Limited
(the “Target Company”), which is wholly-owned by the Vendor, for
the consideration of HK$1,000 million. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement, the consideration of HK$1,000 million shall be satisfied by
the issuance of the convertible bonds (“Mr. Li Convertible Bonds”) in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000 million to be issued by the
Company to the Vendor under the specific mandate to be sought from
the independent shareholders (the “Independent Shareholders”)
(other than Mr. Li, Mr. Su Xiaonong, an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and their respective associates who
are required to abstain from voting at the special general meeting) at
the special general meeting of the Company to be convened to allot
and issue the new Shares which may fall to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the conversion rights attaching to Mr. Li Convertible
Bonds. The initial conversion price of Mr. Li Convertible Bonds is
HK$0.8 per conversion share.

The Target Company and its subsidiaries are undergoing the
reorganization. Upon completion of the reorganization, the Target
Company will indirectly hold 100% equity interest in T &ZEHRKE
BRA7] (Xintai Investment Company Limited*) (“Xintai”). Xintai is
principally engaged in the development, operation and investment of
property. Xintai also holds A& —5% (One Parkview*), a complex land
use development which is located at No. 218, Ti Yu Nan Road, Chikan
District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Properties”).
Xintai holds the Existing Land Use Right Certificates (with a total
site area of approximately 106,140 square meters) in respect of the
Properties. The Properties comprises of three phases, (i) phase |
comprises of two blocks of residential buildings with a number of retail
shops, car parks and facilities; (i) phase Il comprises of four blocks of
residential buildings with a number of car parks and facilities; and (iii)
phase lll is a vacant land.

* For identification purpose only

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

HREERVBEERBERS

RZZE—tFNAZ+T—H (RGBRE) &A
al (EREH)BARAERBRE -SITEERE
BErREE(HERER) (EXREIX[ER])
Rl UE R ([WEHE]) Bt AQ7EHR
BHEREREME  EBKEREHEEREERE
BRAR([BEQAR] HBBEHZEHAB)ZE
ERRAE - R {E A 11,000,000,0007T ° 1R EUEE R
# 0 R {E7811,000,000,0007T # M A8 A B35 18 A
B 1T 4858 A7 #1,000,000,0007T 2 A #
BEH ([ZRETMRRES ) N AR
BEFBHARABBERARGEFEAZRKRE
FRIAE LMB IR ([BIBRER]) (BARER
BRARAELENEREZZRE KARAFNTES
ROBBRHEHEREEURBESBZHEAL
BRON) SRR T AT IR B RBEITR
FRAENRBREFMRE  ERERITERATEE
TR REIT 2R - FAENRRES ZH)
FEIREATRERRG AR08 -

BRERRLEMBAR EEETEM -NEXER
% BEARBEEFAEIERREARAT
([8FR])2100%kHE -EX T BUEYEFE
EEREE - BRNFERE % A—ELRP
BERARE T ARRESEE218K 2 e THfE
RERER ([REWXE]) ERARSZVERSE
WA ERER (BEMEELR106,140F 7
K) -ZEMEBE=H (F - HomEETEE
FERZETEML  FBMRREANX : ()=
Him Mg E @ TERFEMKRIEEK  Kii)
E=MRZTN -



This transaction has not yet been completed up to the date of this
annual report.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 June 2017.

COMPLETION OF GALA BLOSSOM CONVERTIBLE
BONDS UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 28 June 2017, all conditions precedent under the Gala Blossom
Subscription Agreement of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds had
been fulfilled. Partial completion of the Gala Blossom Convertible
Bonds took place and the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$170 million were issued to Gala Blossom on 28
June 2017.

On 30 June 2017, all conditions precedent under the Gala Blossom
Subscription Agreement of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds had
been fulfilled. Completion of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds has
taken place and the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$230 million were issued to Gala Blossom on 30 June
2017.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 28 June 2017 and 30 June 2017.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company received proceeds
from the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement of HK$400 million,
of which HK$170 million was fully used for setup the Joint Venture
2 Company in the PRC for the investment in hospitals and medical
projects especially in proton medical center projects, medical
technology research and development including proton accelerate and
the remaining HK$230 million has not yet been utilized and remained in
the bank.
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PROPOSED REFRESHMENT OF GENERAL
MANDATE OF ISSUE SHARES AT THE SGM

The Board proposed to refresh the existing general mandate which
approved by the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 2 September 2016. The granting
of the refreshed general mandate is subject to the Independent
Shareholders’ approval at the special general mesting of the Company
(the “SGM”) to be held on 18 July 2017.

Details of the above transaction were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 30 June 2017.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

The Company would be included by MSCI as a constituent of the
MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index with effect from the close of 31 May
2017.

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, food and
beverages, wine trading, loan financing, metal trading and finance
leasing, the Group will continue to explore other potential investment
opportunities with reasonable returns that meet the Company’s criteria.
This will not only strengthen our core business but also increase the
shareholders’ values. The Group has been exploring some investment
opportunities in mining projects, resources projects, properties
development projects, infrastructure development projects, investment
and asset management. In particular, the Group will setup medical
management company utilising advanced medical technologies and
equipment to focus on the field of proton medical treatment in the
PRC.
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Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LI KWONG YUK (“MR. LI”)

Mr. Li, aged 55, joined the Company as executive Director and
chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Li is a businessman with over 12 years’ investment experience in the
highway industry in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He
studied at Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade from 1978 to 1981.
Mr. Li had worked on various investment projects in areas such as
infrastructure and finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has 50%
shareholding in Wincon International Limited (“Wincon International”),
a company set up by Mr. Li and incorporated in Hong Kong, which is
principally engaged in investment business in highways in the PRC. He
is a sole director and the beneficial owner of Wincon Capital Investment
Limited, the controlling Shareholder, and also directors of various
companies including Wincon International, Wincon Asset Management
Limited, Dingyi Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi Venture
Capital (HK) Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited, J& /MR
BESRAEAR AR (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd.,
being its unofficial English translation) and FIIH R ESEBLE B R A
Al (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation).
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MR. SU XIAONONG (“MR. SU”)

Mr. Su, aged 53, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
on 27 October 2011. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Su graduated from East China
College of Political Science and Law in 1986. He has been director or
management of various venture capital, private equity and investment
consultancy companies in the PRC, including worked at &I E
HIEEEHR AT (Shenzhen Gofar Investment Management
Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English translation) from April 2003 to
November 2007. Mr. Su currently works at j5& 3l 1 1 Bt 5 215 8 Fa
F PR 2 8] (Shenzhen Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd., being
its unofficial English translation) and SF#YI T R EEREE BR A A
(Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation). He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen
Dingyi Venture Capital L.P..

MR. CHEUNG SZE MING (“MR. CHEUNG”)

Mr. Cheung, aged 48, joined the Company as executive Director and
chief financial officer of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung has accumulated over 20
years’ working experience from the international audit firm and public
listed companies. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Cheung is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was an
audit manager in an international audit firm.
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MS. LIU YUTONG (“MS. LIU”)

Ms. Liu, aged 40, joined the Company as executive Director on 21
February 2017. She is also a director of Hoping Medical Investment
Limited which is a subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Liu graduated
from Peking University Law School on 2003. Ms. Liu was worked at
Tian Yuan Law Firm, Chinese Communist Youth League and Tsinghua
Holdings Co., Ltd.. Ms. Liu worked as a Senior Partner of Beijing YR
Law Firm from January 2013 to January 2017. She works as a Senior
Consultant of Beijing Guosheng Law Firm since February 2017. Ms. Liu
currently a director of Aerospace Harmony Wisdom Technologies Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 837695), a company listed on New OTC (Over the
Counter) Market of China.

MR. ZHENG XIANTAO (“MR. ZHENG”)

Mr. Zheng, aged 46, joined the Company as executive Director on 21
February 2017. He is also a director of Hoping Medical Investment
Limited which is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Zheng served as
the vice general manager of 1t 7 & NE BRI BR A F
Union Power Technology Limited Company*) from March 2003 to

(Beijing

November 2012, in which he was mainly responsible for the business
of the Company in relation to sales and mergers and acquisitions.
During his tenure with 1t R85 BRI AR A7 (Beijing Yin Wan
Information Technology Limited Company*) from 2013 to 2015, Mr.
Zheng served as the vice president and was responsible for internet
finance related business. Mr. Zheng was an executive director of China
Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (“China Ruifeng”) (stock
code: 527) from July 2015 to June 2016, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Following of his resignation as an
executive director of China Ruifeng and until December 2016, he was a
senior consultant of China Ruifeng and provided consultation services
for the new energy business and financing of China Ruifeng. Mr. Zheng
has years of experience in doing mergers and acquisitions in capital
markets and in dealing with various types of financial instruments.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. CHOW SHIU KI (“MR. CHOW?”)

Mr. Chow, aged 49, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of working
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance areas. He
holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr. Chow is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has worked for various private and listed companies
at senior management level. He is currently the vice president of a
renowned local travel agency and an independent non-executive
director of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090).

MR. CAO KUANGYU (“MR. CAO”)

Mr. Cao, aged 67, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking and
finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch for the
period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position was the
deputy president of the branch. For the period from February 1996 to
September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager of Bank
of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September 1999 to
September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank, Shenzhen
branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the investment
banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003 to
September 2007. Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive
director of JLF Investment Company Limited (stock code: 472), Huili
Resources (Group) Limited (stock code: 13083), Dongwu Cement
International Limited (stock code: 695) and Junefield Department Store
Group Limited (stock code: 758), all of which are companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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MR. IP CHI WAI (“MR. IP”)

Mr. Ip, aged 49, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession. Mr.
Ip is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of China Bio Cassava Holdings Limited (stock code: 8129)
from September 2000 to November 2013, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. JI JIAQI (“MR. JI”)

Mr. Ji, aged 50, joined the Company as executive president on 20
February 2017. Mr. Ji has over 20 years of experience in scientific
research and practical work on risk control and investment operation
in financial market. Mr. Ji holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from
South China Normal University, a Postgraduate Degree in Economics
from the Communist Party School in Guangdong and a Doctoral
Degree in Finance from College of Economics of Jinan University.
He has published numerous articles in major periodicals relating to
financial and public management sectors. He once worked in provincial
governments, universities, and engaged in the bankruptcy works of
(BRBEEEFLHRE AT ) Guangdong International Trust Investment
Corporation* and reorganization of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
He is currently an adjunct professor of Tsinghua University and Jinan
University respectively, and also a distinguished visiting professor of
Central University of Finance and Economics.

MR. LI ZHONGXIA (“MR. LI”)

Mr. Li, aged 33, joined the Company as a senior investment manager
on 3 November 2014. Mr. Li has over 7 years of experience in the
corporate finance and investment industry. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Arts Degree in Economics and Management from University of Oxford,
and a Master of Science Degree in Finance from London School of
Economics and Political Science. He worked at the corporate finance
department in ICBC International Capital Limited and Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) Ltd. He also worked at client solutions department in Sun Hung
Kai Financial Limited before joining the Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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MR. ZHANG XIN (“MR. ZHANG”)

Mr. Zhang Xin, aged 45, joined the Company as the general manager
of the real estate business division on 8 October 2016. Mr. Zhang Xin
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Hunan University
and a Master’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Tsinghua University.
He holds practicing qualifications in China in numerous sectors
including engineering, cost and assessment, and has over 20 years of
experience in real estate development. He held senior management
positions in many listed real estate enterprises.

MS. KUANG YATING (“MS. KUANG”)

Ms. Kuang, aged 27, joined the Company as an investment analyst on
3 January 2017. Ms. Kuang has 3 years of experience in data analysis,
corporate finance and investment management. Ms. Kuang holds a
Dual Bachelor’s Degree in Management and Law from Jinan University,
a Master’s Degree in Finance from University of Bath, England. She
was granted the international mathematical modeling award. She
is a member of International Chartered Financial Analyst Institute
and a candidate for Level Il qualifications. She worked at the group
business unit of China Construction Bank Corporation, specializing
in constructing performance models for banks and provision of
investment and financing proposals for clients.
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue increased from HK$41 million in 2016 to HK$54
million in 2017, mainly due to the increase in the interest income from
provision of loan financing and dividend income.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin of the Group maintained at 98% (2016: 90%) this
year.

OTHER INCOME
Other income increased to HK$14 million (2016: HK$1 million) this year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs was decreased to HK$3 million this
year as compared to HK$4 million in last year due to the decrease
in turnover of the Beijing Restaurant. The administrative expenses
increased to HK$209 million (2016: HK$169 million) which was mainly
due to the share-based payment expenses of HK$163 million (2016:
HK$111 million).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment maintained at HK$6 million in this year (2016:
HK$6 million). The slightly decrease was mainly due to the depreciation
charge for the year.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held for trading investments was significantly decreased from HK$630
million to HK$353 million this year because of the decrease in the
portfolio of the listed investments in the securities trading business.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances increased from HK$18 million in last year
to HK$77 million this year mainly due to the proceeds received from
issuance of convertible bonds during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to HK$389 million (2016: HK$517
million), a decrease of HK$128 million when compared with that of
2016. Such net decrease was mainly due to the loss for the year set off
with the issue of convertible bonds during the year.

As at 31 March 2017, total debt to equity ratio was 0.58 (2016:
0.23) and net debt to equity ratio was 0.38 (2016: 0.19), which were
expressed as a ratio of total convertible bonds and finance lease
obligations and net convertible bonds and finance lease obligations
respectively, over the total equity of HK$389 million (2016: HK$517
million).

BORROWINGS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s finance lease obligations amounted
to nil (2016: HK$1 million). The finance lease obligations in previous
year were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and subject to fixed
interest rate.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had pledged its assets with net book
value of nil (2016: HK$3 million) to secure finance lease obligations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(‘HKD”), Renminbi (‘RMB”), United States dollars (“USD”) and
Australian dollars (“AUD”). Considering the exchange rates between
these currencies are relatively stable, the Group believed that the
corresponding exposure to RMB, USD and AUD exchange rates
fluctuation were relatively limited. The Group does not undertake any
derivative financial instruments or hedging instruments. The Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its foreign currency risk
profile, and continues to actively monitor foreign exchange exposure to
minimize the impact of any adverse currency movement.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had no capital
commitments.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimize the cost of
funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralized. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in HKD, USD, RMB
or AUD. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments, the Group will consider new
financing channels while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2017
except for the deviation disclosed below:

Under code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days
should be given of a regular board meeting to all Directors to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31 March
2017, certain regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14
days’ notice to facilitate the Directors’ timely reaction and expeditious
decision making process in respect of internal affairs of the Group. All
Board meetings, nevertheless, were duly convened and held in the
way prescribed by the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board will use
reasonable endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3
of the CG Code in future. Adequate and appropriate information are
circulated normally three days in advance of Board meetings to the
Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”) for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board has delegated
the power to oversee the daily operational matters of the Group to the
management of the Company under the supervision of the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and senior management of
the Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises eight Directors and their respective roles
are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

Ms. Liu Yutong (appointed on 21 February 2017)
Mr. Zheng Xiantao (appointed on 21 February 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
“Management Profile” in this annual report. Their roles and functions
are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors also generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows independent and objective decision making process
for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review the
composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses the
appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet the
needs of the business development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the confirmation,
the Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all other
material matters. The Board held 11 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2017. Individual attendance records of each Director at
the Board meetings are set out in the table on page 48 of this annual
report. Sufficient notice with agenda and the relevant information of the
Board meeting are given to all Directors. Minutes of the Board meetings
and meetings of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are drafted by the Company Secretary
and the final version of the minutes of the said meetings are sent to
all Directors for comments and records. The signed minutes of the
said meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by any Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matters will be
dealt with by a Board meeting rather than written resolutions and
the Board will ensure that an adequate number of Independent Non-
executive Directors are involved in the consideration of the relevant
matters. Independent Non-executive Directors are encouraged to take
an active role in the Board meetings.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year, the newly appointed Directors were given an induction
after their appointment so as to ensure that they had appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of their duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular updates on
the business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continually updated on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”)
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. According to
the confirmations received from the Directors, all Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Development for the year
ended 31 March 2017 in the following manner:

ARAHBEFLEFEIXER ([FHEXR
Bl NEREEFFRSIAN#LE -REBE
FWF o ERE 2REFHONEE Tt
FZA=ZT-HALEFERARTITA2ESER
RER:

Course/seminar

provided/
accredited by
Name professional body Reading materials
HEXERREM
®A RAZHRREEHRE BEER
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk - 4
FlERE
Mr. Su Xiaonong - v
#ERTE
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming v v
RS LA
Ms. Liu Yutong (appointed on 21 February 2017) v v
BEafat (RZT—+tF-_A=-+—HEZMT)
Mr. Zheng Xiantao (appointed on 21 February 2017) v v
BEEEE (RZE—LF_AZT—HEZE)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUKHTES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki v v
EEEL A
Mr. Cao Kuangyu v -
ERTEE
Mr. Ip Chi Wai v v
BERSTE

42 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the Chairman and Mr. Su Xiaonong is
currently the Chief Executive Officer. In accordance with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are separate and performed by different person.

The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functions of the Board
and providing leadership for the Board while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for managing the businesses of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). Under Bye-law 112.(A), at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Every Director shall retire from office no later
than the third AGM since the last re-election or appointment of such
Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee in order to maintain high
level of corporate governance standard of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu
Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr.
Ilp Chi Wai. The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu
Ki, possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and
accounting and meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company during one year after he ceases
to be partner of the audit firm.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and provide supervision over the financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group and to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts and the interim
report and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee met twice
with the auditors of the Company (the “Auditor”). Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee were disclosed in the
“Terms of Reference of Audit Committee” which has been published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2017. Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 48 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

During the ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao
Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai, and two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Su Xiaonong and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are,
including but not limited to, to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and to establish a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee were
disclosed in the “Terms of Reference of Remuneration Committee”
which has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the model which is described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code that the Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management and the newly
appointed Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2017. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 48 of this
annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee
comprises one Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and Mr. Ip Chi Wai.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
including but not limited to, to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of
service and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee were disclosed in
the “Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee” which has been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

RBE_Z—+tHF=A=+—HILFE FWHEE
SERMDDEEA TR Z T AR FEBA .20
MZBA MEFERZBEHNATEFTRSRE
BABUNGHBRZEZHTESZHMGTE-

REBEZ-_FT—+tF=A=+—HIELFE FME
BRI -Ag2 FHEESEKEZ@EH

HEBREEENARFREIBE ZRIBA -

REZESE
ARRIERIRBAZES WIRELEEETA
2 BBFRGX Y R EERRRE -

BE_Z—tHF=-A=+—"HLFER EEKZ
Bl —R2RTER AFNELRLE (REEES
TEI)EMEBBEIIFNTES AAEELERE
SR AR

REZBEZIERAER BREMRKY 2408
FREEFE2RE RERNRAK (BREKE A
B RER - RBEHREZ TR Y ERE
BZEPHRAEETSFHIHRBER UREEARAZ
PERIE-RRLZEGCBEEREFEN 1SR
ZERZRERE ] ARE EC TIENBA MR
RRB 2R -



The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors,
recommended the Board on the nomination of Directors for re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company, identified individual
suitably qualified to become the Executive Directors and recommended
to the Board on the selection of individual nominated for the Executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2017. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 48 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the fees paid/payable to the
Auditor and its affiliated firms in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the Auditor and its affiliated firms were as follows:
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Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)

REHE SE(BETR)

Audit services — SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited TR —{EkHA (B ) 2t EBMER AT 1,400

Non-audit services — SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited IZERE  —EXPN(EE) gHMERMERAA 400

Internal audit review - SHINEWING Risk Services Limited ~ AEB&E:ER —-EXkFEEREEERA 180
and ESG report BIRIZ - #t
drafting grER

WL
Tax advisory services - SHINEWING Tax and Business BBERRE —EKkPNNBREEZRER 46
Advisory Limited
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the individual attendance
record of the Directors for the Board meetings, the Board Committee
meetings and the AGM held on 2 September 2016 respectively is set

EENTBENE 2RO

BE-FLE=A=t-BLEER SEFH
AREFUEH EFEAREN

FAAZHABTZERFBEF ARG 2 @5 F L

R =ZZT—X

out below: Bl NN
Attended/Eligible to attend
B/ AERLE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
ERERS FMzEES REZES
®E Ezgel = ] =] 8% RRBFAE
Executive Directors
HiTE=Z
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 11/11 N/A N/A 2/2 11
FRELE i A
Mr. Su Xiaonong 11/11 N/A 3/3 N/A 11
BEREE NiER TiER
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 11/11 N/A 3/3 N/A 11
REFHILE NER TiER
Ms. Liu Yutong (appointed on 21 February 2017) 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
BeYat (RZE—tF-_A=-+—HEZMA) NERA TER TER
Mr. Zheng Xiantao (appointed on 21 February 2017) 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 0/0
BEBEE (RZT—+F-RA=+—REZMF) i AiEA TiEA
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 11/11 2/2 3/3 2/2 11
BEEELE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu 11/11 2/2 3/3 N/A 0/1
ERTEE AEmA
Mr. Ip Chi Wai 11/11 2/2 3/3 2/2 11
EEBEE
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DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITOR’S STATEMENT

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG
Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
Main features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

° Identification: |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2017, no significant risk
was identified.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The components of the
framework are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the
Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.
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o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

° The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external parties
such as the media, analysts or investors.

o Refer to inside information policy and procedures for more
procedures.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2017, no significant
control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the
Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but not limited
to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems.
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The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is
also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget
provided were sufficient.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”)
as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013 from an external
secretarial services provider. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Mr. Cheung Sze Ming, an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group. In accordance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rule, Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than
15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

RIGHTS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders may convene special general meeting of the Company
(the “SGM”) according to the Bye-Laws and the provisions as set out
in Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Act’). The Board shall, on the requisition of Shareholders holding at
the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed duly, to convene the SGM. The requisition must state the
purposes of the SGM, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the principal place of business in Hong Kong of
the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Act, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the
said date.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS TO THE BOARD

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are
encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.hk or by mail to the principle place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F,
Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
All the enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders
are also encouraged to attend the AGM and the SGM and to put
their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated to
the Shareholders in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to
attend the AGM and the SGM. The Chairman, chairmen of each of the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the Auditor will attend the
AGM and respond to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner.
The procedures for conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen
of the AGM and the SGM orally at the beginning of the aforesaid
meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report

o R U

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

U)

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either
any number of the Shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates or not less than 100
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to
the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next AGM of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at http://www.dingyi.hk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a

website at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business

operations and developments, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 March 2017.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

RERRAELRHEEBZER

BIEARENGERTINB0ME & HFER
ERHEENBRERE R LEE (R
FTERRBIEERNVR = +5 2 —HFE[
MR EH KN D R100B IR AT AEZE A =
FERADT (M BEKR TERRBFERE
w2 RRIBHAIERZAE L EXEER
BEZ2EMARR  RO)RBEEEES
BEMRRASBE ZRRE L BEKRZ
AE FRIEZEARERRRIEBF AR
M=HTHEIB1,000F7 2 T 2ZeF -

ERERRIFEREZR ZCBNAER—£4
BREAXNARREBERZFE RS
RPN EERAT (BLERKBEHRARE
HMZBEREMS) RRAG TR —EEH
Al (MEMEMBEREMS ) FEE LK
NEZBREBREFMA -

REEFRER ARBBREARERR
SEHRTIMBOMRPTERCIA T Z M E » IREUE
BETBREHSERE-

ERBRRERZEATZBEEECRERF $FH2
R 7N 2 &) 48 U http://www.dingyi.hk FT & 2 &
Ko

REEREF

B E R BB B

XA RAE B

hittp://www.dingyi.hk oA TR 2 1.2 S48 J2 3¢
BB AR DEEARAREMEH -

RBE-Z—tF=A=+—HIFE £AQd
LREXMHBEERES-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
issued by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”
or “We”) elaborates on the concept of sustainable development and
the corporate social responsibility of the Group. The ESG Report
provides detailed description on the various works of the Group in
adherence to the principle of sustainable development during the
period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 (the “Year”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social performance
of the core business of the Group in Hong Kong during the Year. For
detailed information on corporate governance, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 38 to 54 of this annual
report.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared based on “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The preparation of the ESG Report, which was supported by staff from
different departments, has enabled us to have a better understanding
of our development in environmental and social areas. The information
we gathered is not only a summary of the environmental and social
related works carried out by the Group during the Year, but also the
basis for us to map out our sustainable development strategies.

INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For detailed information regarding the environmental and corporate
governance of the Group, please refer to the official website (http://
www.dingyi.hk) and the annual report of the Group. If you have any
opinions or suggestions about this report, please email to the following
mailbox: info@dingyi.hk.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB & BRIy

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
ENERGY MANAGEMENT

As an environmentally-friendly corporation, we bear the responsibility
of protecting the nature. In order to reduce the power consumption of
the lighting system, apart from using reflector in focusing the light on
those areas where lighting is needed, we also adopt a highly energy-
efficient lighting system, clean lighting facility constantly, and employ
sectional lighting system. We clean air conditioners filters regularly
and check the air conditioning facility to minimize the possibility of
refrigerant leakage, and thereby improve the resources efficiency of the
air conditioning systems. We set the temperature of air conditioning
system at 25.5 degrees Celsius or above, and adopt low-emissivity
glass to block ultraviolet, which in turn reduces the power consumption
of air conditioning system. We encourage employees to switch off
unnecessary lights and other electronic equipment, and conduct
monthly electricity statistics to monitor power consumption.

GREEN OPERATION

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations related to
emission. As a service-based company, our business operation mainly
takes place in offices. The main wastewater generated from the Group
is domestic sewage. The domestic sewage will be discharged into the
municipal drainage system. The Group adopts a range of measures to
conserve water and reduce wastage, including reducing water pressure
to a feasible minimum level, installing water-saving faucets and urinals,
displaying water-conservation slogans in toilets, and inspecting water
pipes regularly to prevent water leakage. Since the Group’s business
does not involve any industrial production activity, vehicle exhaust is the
main source of our gas emission. We constantly check and maintain
the vehicles of the Group, and require the drivers of the Group to
switch off idling engine, so as to reduce air pollution from vehicles.

In view of the potential threats of climate change on community, the
Group has reduced carbon emission in our operations gradually. With
regard to transportation, apart from encouraging employees to take
public transport, we also hold video conferences to avoid unnecessary
overseas business travel. We use packaging materials to the minimum
extent possible and proactively reduce carbon emission generated in
the course of organizing the activities. Furthermore, we promote and
introduce measures on lowering carbon emission to our employees
through different channels, including emails or posters, so as to
strengthen their environmental protection awareness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

WASTE MANAGEMENT

The solid waste is mainly generated from daily office operation. Our
waste management strategy underpinned by the “3Rs” principle.
For consumption and waste reduction, we encourage employees to
double-sided printing and the use of electronic means for information
dissemination whenever possible. Apart from using e-cards, we
also send facsimile via internet to reduce paper consumption. Paper
consumption is closely monitored and appropriate improvement
measures are carried out. For waste recycling, the Group not only
encourages employees to reduce the use of one-off office supplies and
use environmental friendly stationeries instead, but also makes the best
use of paper products, and utilises recycled papers. For recycling, we
set up paper recycling bins, and arrange recycling company to handle
non-classified office waste papers. For hazardous waste, all used
cartridges are collected and returned to suppliers for recycling.

CARE FOR EMPLOYEES
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND INTERESTS

Employees are the cornerstone and core competitiveness of the
Group’s success. We emphasize talent operation, and care for our
employees. The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
related to the rights and interests of employees, such as the
Employment Ordinance. During the recruitment process, the Group
offers all applicants with equal employment opportunities, and will not
tolerate any form of discrimination on grounds of gender, race, family
status, etc. The Group verifies the age of applicants by checking their
identification documents to avoid employment of child labour. Before
commencement of employment, employees are provided with detailed
job descriptions of the duties and responsibilities of the position
concerned, and the employment is in accordance with labour contract
to prevent any forced labour. When working overtime is needed, it must
be on a voluntary basis to prevent forced overtime. We also arrange
overtime payment in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB & KRRy

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group adjusts employees’ remuneration annually based on factors
such as market conditions, employees work performance and index of
living, striving to offer employees with competitive remuneration. Apart
from basic salary, we also provide discretionary bonus according to
employees’ individual performance and the results of the Group. We
strictly comply with the laws and regulations relating to working hours
and holidays, and offer employees with different types of holidays,
including annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, compassionate
leave etc. In order to improve the operation of the Group, we arrange
exit interview upon receipt of resignation notice to understand his/her
reason of leaving and the balance of salary will be paid on time.

We continuously monitor employees’ performance with a vision
towards establishing a premier team for the rapid development and
efficient operation of the Group. The promotion mechanism operates
on a fair and open basis and will not tolerate with any form of
discrimination. The employees are encouraged to participate in external
lectures and seminars to enrich their professional knowledge.

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND SAFETY

Work safety is the key to the sustainable development of the
Group. We strictly comply with the laws and regulations related to
occupational health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, in our endeavour to create a safe and
healthy environment for employees. Rescue, fire and evacuation
drills are conducted regularly to increase employees’ awareness and
involvement in accident prevention. The Group also creates a pleasant
and comfortable workplace by carrying out various measures including
provision of adjustable seats and regular repair and maintenance of
office equipment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RESPECT CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Notwithstanding the absence of bulk procurement due to our business
nature, much attention is accorded to the purchase of office supplies
for daily operation. Procurement policy is formulated to select reliable
suppliers and service providers to support our business operation.
Apart from taking into account the factors such as reputation, quality
and price-performance ratio of suppliers, we give priority to suppliers
who perform well in social responsibility or satisfy the requirement set
out in our environmental protection policy, to encourage suppliers to
forge sustainable development society together with the Group. For
example, we give priority to purchase products with higher recycling
value, less packing materials and better energy efficiency. Under our
consistent principles of green procurement, we also assess the use of
materials constantly to avoid overstocking and waste of resources. If a
breach of the Group policy occurs, we will terminate the cooperation
relationships with the suppliers concerned immediately.

EMPHASIS ON CUSTOMERS

As a financial service provider, protecting customers’ privacy
and safeguarding market fairness have core roles to play in the
establishment of a long-term and mutually trusted relationship with
customers. The Group is in compliance with the laws and regulations
including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance to handle and protect
all personal data of customers. With greatest care and caution the
importance of protecting the confidentiality of customer’ personal data
is also clearly stipulated in our Employee Handbook to new employees
fully understand our confidentiality policy and manage such information
properly.

We are committed to providing customers with clear and accurate
information. Customers are advised of the details and terms of
products (such as management fee and interest rate), as well as any
associated risks to enable customers to make an informed decision.
Furthermore, the Group has formulated guideline regarding sales
materials, which requires all information of sales materials are true
and free from errors, and forbids any false, misleading or inaccurate
statement in any form of our communications. The Group respects and
protects intellectual property, and strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations, to eliminate any alleged infringement.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB & BRIy

ANTI-CORRUPTION

It is the unwavering principle of the Group to combat corruption and
advocate integrity and self-discipline. The Group strictly complies with
the laws and regulations relating to bribery prevention, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. A
mechanism for declaration of interest is in place to prohibit employees
engagement in any investment activities that collide with the interest
of the Group, and require employees to report any situations that may
involve conflict of interest with the Group, either directly or indirectly.
There is also a whistle-blowing policy to provide a channel for
employees to report suspected misconduct.

CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY

The past few years have witnessed our persistent engagement in
public welfare and relentless effort in charitable activities with a view of
paying back to the community. The Group also encourages employees
to actively participate in various volunteer activities. Looking ahead,
the Group will continue to uphold the principle of being responsible for
its customers, employees, business partners, shareholders and the
society, and will seek further opportunities to develop a harmonious
relationship with its stakeholders.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2017 analyzed by reportable segments are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
are provided in the Chairman Statement and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 89 and
90. No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the year
are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out on page 93 and note 35(A) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2017, there is no reserve of the Company which is
available for distribution to Shareholders (2016: nil).
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Report of the Directors
HHEFHRNH

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 and 3 and on pages 35 to 37 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 93% of the Group’s purchases
for the year whereas the five largest customers accounted for 43% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. The largest supplier accounted for
51% of the Group’s purchases and the largest customer accounted for
11% of the Group’s revenue. None of the Directors, their associates
nor any Shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 31 (2016: 35) full-time staff under its subsidiaries
globally as at 31 March 2017. Total staff costs amounted to HK$30
million (2016: HK$15 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017. The
remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the
basis of job nature, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the Share Option Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company repurchased a
total of 111,640,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HK$77,300,603 and 73,300,000 Shares (including a
total of 41,485,000 Shares repurchased by the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2016) were cancelled during the year ended
31 March 2017. On 8 May 2017, a total of 79,825,000 Shares were
cancelled.

Particulars of the shares repurchased are as follows:

Total number
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EREHRNE
BE LENERLHES

REBEE-_ZT—+tF=-A=+T—HLEFER AR
A AR (BB 77,300,603 A B 2 Fr g ] &+
111,640,0000% f% 15 + ™73,300,0000% B% 17 (&2 3&
ARRREE-_T—"FZAZ+—BLFER
[B] 2 & 41,485,000 8% 10 ) EREEZZT—tF
A=+ BLEFEAETE R_ZE—+FH
AN\ B & $£79,825,0000% A% 17 1 5 8 °

FTEB R D 2 FFIBEI T

of shares Aggregate
Month repurchased Purchase price paid per share consideration
Fr g El

B & IR 17 2 48 8 BRXNEBEE HBRE

Highest Lowest

BS =45
HK$ HK$ HK$
JER JB BB

2016 —E-RE

April g A 27,465,000 0.69 0.65 18,607,332
May A 3,150,000 0.67 0.65 2,070,055
June 7N A 1,000,000 0.78 0.78 782,244
July + A 20,000,000 0.79 0.72 15,060,756
August J\H 60,025,000 0.75 0.60 40,780,216
111,640,000 77,300,603

The Directors consider that the above share repurchases are in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2017.

EERR/LABNBRFTAARRARERR 2 &
ENGEEZEFBOEARARNRR ZBREN -

B EXPEEEN BE-_ZE—tF=A=+—
BIEFEAR ARBSEEAMBARMERES -
HEXBRIARRR ZEA EHES-

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I L

63



64

Report of the Directors
HREFHRNH

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

Ms. Liu Yutong (appointed on 21 February 2017)
Mr. Zheng Xiantao (appointed on 21 February 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

In accordance with bye-law 112.(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Cheung Sze
Ming, an Executive Director, shall retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with bye-law 115 of the Bye-laws, Ms. Liu Yutong and
Mr. Zheng Xiantao, who were appointed as an Executive Directors on
21 February 2017 as an addition to the Board, shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company. Ms. Liu
and Mr. Zheng, who being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.

The directors who have served on the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk

Mr. Su Xiaonong

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming
Ms. Liu Yutong

Mr. Zheng Xiantao
Ms. Lo Kwan

Mr. Li Tao Hui
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year ended 31 March 2017 and all of them
are still being considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS'’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transaction” below, no contracts of significance relating to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in respect
of the management or administration of the overall business or any
material business.

DIRECTORS'’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

EELRTRETRABZESEn

R-ZBE—tF=ZA=+—H ARFAEERER
TBRABRARRREBBER (EERESF M
HIE RGO ([ RMERM]) EXVER) 2 tn
MBI MMEFTAER ERIEEF L REED
EXVERHETRESD A G AR A LB R 2 #®
Kok m (BRERERE 7 KB G 2 A B R XHR
PIRSRIEER 2 MOk R) » SR AR BN
NRAREES NP ERIIEB2GREATHE
ZEBLEMAZERLRR  IRERETRIZAS
TTHEARNAR LB 2w MORRIT -

RERXTEBREEBERG 2FR

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares
Number of underlying of the Company
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)
LN
e #TRH
BY
BABED T
Esng L) EEREE HERGEE By (Hizt1)
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (‘Mr. Li") Interest of controlled 3,660,120,405 - 3,660,120,405
EREEE ([FRE]) _corporation (Note 2)
REHERER (Hrst2)
Beneficial owner 173,975,000 18,300,000 192,275,000
ExBEBA (Note 3)
(H173)
3,852,395,405 71.37%
Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner 1,875,000 41,875,000 43,750,000 0.81%
BERLE EXBEEA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming Beneficial owner = 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.22%
REFHILE EREEA (Note 5)
(Hizts)
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Notes:

Save

Based on 5,397,638,952 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31
March 2017.

These shares held by Wincon Capital Investment Limited (‘WCIL”) as to
3,648,645,405 and Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”") as to
11,475,000. Each of WCIL and WAML is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Li. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in these
3,660,120,405 shares.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, (i) 13,300,000 underlying shares granted on 19
April 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 5,000,000
underlying shares granted on 28 December 2015 at the exercise price of
HK$0.792 per share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, () 21,850,000 underlying shares granted on 19
April 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 20,000,000
underlying shares granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of
HK$0.477 per share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under
the Share Options Scheme, (i) 7,000,000 underlying shares granted on 19
April 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 5,000,000
underlying shares granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of
HK$0.477 per share.

as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors

and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short

positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or

are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in

the register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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EFHEEgRLE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERR 2B HFELR
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief RZE—tF=A=+—H BARREEL=E
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the BITERABRA THALTSEE (RRARIESN
persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive of FETHRABRIN) RAR B AR (9 FT
the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as BEEERENAERAIRIEE S K E &H] %336
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under BKFEzEwMACERRABEWT

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND RAEQDFEEREEAEROZ2TFE
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares of
Name of substantial Number of underlying the Company
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)
AR
ERTRH
BY2
LBk HER 5 BHEDY
TERREE AR 54 £ 4E] £ By (Hizt1)
WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,648,645,405 - 3,648,645,405 67.60%
XBEX (Hit2) EREAA
CFC Group Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner - 328,823,529 328,823,529 6.09%
BESBEERDA (Hit3) EmfBA (Note 4)
(Hit4)
Mr. Zhang Song Xiao Interest of controlled - 328,823,529 328,823,529 6.09%
RINZE S A corporation
REHEEER
Gala Blossom Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner - 470,588,235 470,588,235 8.72%
BERBAR (Hiis) EREAA (Note 6)
(Hizte6)
Mr. Lian Xucan Interest of controlled - 470,588,235 470,588,235 8.72%
Z2IBRESE corporation
REHEEER
Notes: B aE

1, Based on 5,397,638,952 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 1. BER—_F—+t&F=H=1+—HE ¥175,397,638,952
March 2017. BRARDR L BREE -

2. WCIL is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li 2. KBEARENRBEAELERE BEZHFRAERK
Kwong Yuk was deemed to be interested in these shares. Bl FHREBRERERARNZEROPHEE R -
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3. CFC Group Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Song Xiao.
Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Zhang Song Xiao is deemed to be interested in these
328,823,529 underlying shares.

4. These underlying shares being the total of 328,823,529 conversion shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.85 per conversion share will be issued and
allotted upon full conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$279.5 million.

5. Gala Blossom Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lian Xucan.
Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Lian Xucan is deemed to be interested in these
470,588,235 underlying shares.

6. These underlying shares being the total of 470,588,235 conversion shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.85 per conversion share will be issued and
allotted upon full conversion of the convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$400 million. As at 31 March 2017, the subscription agreement not yet
completed.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the
Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules, are as follow:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant
share options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:
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(@)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

any Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued

upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted

under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both

exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the

Company for the time being.
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In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may
determine, which may not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share
option.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 September
2016, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was
refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 535,138,895
share options under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 9.91% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 5,397,638,952 shares) as at 31 March 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, (i) a total of 535,000,000 share
options were granted by the Company; (i) a total of 69,415,000 share
options were exercised; (i) 2,375,000 share options were re-classified;
and (iv) no share options were lapsed and cancelled. Pursuant to the
Shareholders’ approval for the refreshment of scheme mandate limit
on 2 September 2016, the outstanding number of the shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 138,895, representing
approximately 0.00% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 5,358,448,952 shares) as at the date of this annual
report.
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The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option

RER REBREFEIMEL 2 BREZZ

Scheme during the year are shown below: BN TRATR:
Number of share options
BRE%A
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company's
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2016 the year the year the year the year the year 2017 options options HKS per share HKS per share
REERRE
BAEERA
RRARDZ
S i3 BRE T
—8-5% RER  ZB-tF BRE BRE fix: 34 W&
SEANEERER mE-B  RERRE  RERTE  REREHE  REREX EN2E =A=t-8 HHAH B SREH BREE
Executive Directors
BEE
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 13,300,000 - - - - - 13,300,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 10 0.375 -
18-04-2018
FRRELE —Z-=E —Z-=%
MA+AE MATAEE
—2-)\%§
mA+/\R
5,000,000 - - - - - 5000000  28-12-2015 28-12-2015 to 0.792 -
27-12-2020
—Z-RE —“Z-1f
TZAZ+\B  +ZAZTN\RZE
TRz ttH
Mr. Su Xiaonong 23,750,000 - (1,875,000) - - - 21875000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375 0.760
18-04-2018
BRREE 5% —5-=f%
mA+AR mA+NRZE
I NE
mA+AR
20,000,000 - - - - - 20,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—Z-1E T-1%
—A=H =
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 7,000,000 - - - - - 7,000,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375 -
18-04-2018
REREE 3=k —F-=f
MA+NE A+hAZ
—E-0\F
A+/NR
5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—B-hE —T-n%
ZA=H =
Sub-total 74,050,000 - (1,875,000) - - - 72,175,000
it
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Number of share options
BREHR
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company's
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2016 the year the year the year the year the year 2017 options options HKS per share  HKS per share
REERRE
BTEERA
KAARGZ
B S BRE T
—8-5~% RER  ZB-tF BRE BRE fix: 34 LG
SEAEZSER MA-B  REARE RERTRE  REREE  REAXN Ef78 =A=t-B RHEAH BAE BRER BREE
Substantial Shareholders
TERR
Mr. Leung Chiu 2,375,000 - - - - (2,375,000 - 19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0375 -
18-04-2018
2854 —3-=F “2-=f
mA+AE MATAEE
—2-)N\F
mA+/\R
Sub-total 2,375,000 - - - - (2,375,000) -
Nt
Others
i
Employees 2,000,000 - - - - - 2,000,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375 -
25-04-2018
B8 —3-=% —Z-=%
mA=+7/A MAZF/EZE
—T-N\%
mA-+HA
5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—Z-1E 1%
—ZA=H ZA=HE
—“2-%
—A=H
- 53,000,000 - - - - 53,000,000  19-12-2016 19-12-2016 10 0.738 -
18-12-2021
B it S
TZATAR TZATIBEE
—E--F
TZATAR
SR B R )
—ZF - LEEHR
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B W
Number of share options
BREHR
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company's
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2016 the year the year the year the year the year 2017 options options HKS per share  HKS per share
REERRE
BTEERA
KAARGZ
B R® BRE T
—8-5~% RER  ZB-tF BRE BRE fix: 34 LG
SEAEZSER mA-B  REARE  RERTE  REREE  REREXR Ef78 =A=t-B RHEAH BAE BRER BREY
Other eligible participants 38,625,000 - (21,390,000) - - 2,375,000 19,610,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0375 0.800
18-04-2018
A AEREEA - —Z-=E
MA+AR MATNEE
—T-0\%
mA+NA
11,200,000 - (4,650,000) - - - 6,550,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375 0.790
25-04-2018 0.810
—2-=F —F-=f
mA=+7/A BAZF/REE
—E-N\%
mA=-+HA
87,000,000 - (41,500,000 - - - 45,500,000  08-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 1.070
02-02-2020
ZZ-1E 1%
—ZA=H —A=HE
-3-%
—AZH
50,000,000 - - - - - 50,000,000  11-11-2015 11-11-2015 t0 0.638 -
10-11-2020
—2-1% —Z-nE
+—A+-H T-At—HE
kS 3
T-At+H
275,460,000 - - - - - 275,460,000  28-12-2015 28-12-2015 10 27-12- 0.792 -
2020
—2-1F —F-1f
TZAZ+t\B  +ZAZTN\RE
kSt 23
+-A=t+A
- 482,000,000 - - - - 482,000,000  19-12-2016 19-12-2016 to 18-12- 0.738 -
2021
it Syat:3 ZZRE
+ZA+hA TZATNAE
—F=-F
TZA+NR
Sub-total 469,285,000 535,000,000 (67,540,000) - - 2,375,000 939,120,000
it
Total 545,710,000 535,000,000 (69,415,000) - - - 1,011,295,000
@t
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The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 18 April 2013, 25
April 2013, 2 February 2015, 10 November 2015, 24 December 2015
and 16 December 2016, were HK$0.37, HK$0.37, HK$0.46, HK$0.63,
HK$0.79 and HK$0.74 per share respectively.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2017, a total of 40,635,000
shares options were exercised. As at the date of this annual report,
a total of 970,660,000 shares options were granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme and the outstanding number of
share options available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
970,798,895, representing approximately 18.12% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 5,358,448,952 shares) as at the
date of this annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 30 March 2016, Trillion Winner Investment Ltd (“Trillion”) as
the owner entered into an aircraft charter agreement (the “Aircraft
Charter Agreement”) with Dingyi Resources Limited (“Dingyi
Resources”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the charteree, pursuant to which Trillion agreed to provide and
Dingyi Resources agreed to hire the aircraft commencing on 1 April
2016 to 31 March 2019 for the charter price of US$2,000 per flight
hour (“Charter Price”) (excluding all other costs and expenses shall
be for the account of Dingyi Resources in relation to hire an aircraft).
The transaction pursuant to the Aircraft Charter Agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules as Trillion
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, the controlling
shareholder, a chairman and an Executive Director of the Company.

Details of the Aircraft Charter Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Dingyi Resources paid the
aggregate of the charter price of approximately HK$834,000 (2016:
HK$1,587,000) to Trillion pursuant to the Aircraft Charter Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that these continuing connected transaction was entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (iii) in
accordance with the Aircraft Charter Agreement governing it on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole; and (iv) have not exceeded the relevant
amount capped in accordance with the Company’s announcement
dated 30 March 2016.

The Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements and include transactions that constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions for which the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in pages 38 to 54 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization
of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation.
Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect
internal and external communications by means of telephone, emails
and conferences or such other communication means which are
efficient yet environmentally friendly. Also, we are able to minimize
physical travelling and printing.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies
and practices, please refer to “Environment, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 55 to 60 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and
benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the
individual performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory
provident fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees
with the aim to form a professional staff and management team that
can bring the Group to different levels of success.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest
service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking ways
to improve customer relations through enhanced services. Regarding
the securities trading and loan financing businesses, the Group has no
major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the
Group has maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure
their continued support to the Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial and equity
markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its
investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISKS

The principal financial risks are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —
“FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES”.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 9 to 28 of this annual report and the section headed “SHARE
OPTIONS” on pages 69 to 75 of this report, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of
the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has taken out insurance against all
losses and liabilities associated with defending any proceedings which
may be brought against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public floats as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2017.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 were
audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Auditor.

By order of the Board

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

o
Shi neZOan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dingyi
Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 216,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
DAY TR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
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whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 8o

separate opinion on these matters.

VALUATION AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Refer to notes 21 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 126 to 128.

The key audit matter
BEETSRE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESTNNEERARETER

As at 31 March 2017, the Group maintained derivative
financial liabilities of call option from issuance of convertible
bonds and convertible bonds - liability component of
approximately HK$252,021,000 and HK$224,067,000
respectively.
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We have identified the valuation of and the accounting
treatment for derivative financial liabilities of call option from
issuance of convertible bonds and convertible bonds as
key audit matters because both are complex areas. The
separation of debt element from the equity element of a
convertible bond can involve a significant degree of judgment
and is subject to an inherent risk of error.
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group’s
valuation of and accounting treatment for convertible bonds.
BN EZEFEELR ESEHTRRESTELE
BT B TR BV R AR Mo B 4 Il

We have inspected board minutes and other appropriate
documentation of authorisation to assess whether the
transactions were appropriately authorised. We have verified
amounts, interest rate and maturity date to the supporting
documentation, debt agreement, prospectuses or to third
party statements and examined terms and conditions of
the bond. We have tested the calculations carried out to
split the convertible bonds into equity and debt element.
We have assessed the accuracy of historical financial
information, examined the mathematical accuracy of
calculations, evaluated the valuation technique applied and
approach used and evaluated the assumptions used to
calculate discount rate.
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RECOVERABILITY AND IMPAIRMENT
ASSESSMENT OF LOAN AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 121 to 125.

The key audit matter
BEETSE

Independent Auc]itqr’s Report
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESTNNEERARENEHR

As at 31 March 2017, loan and interest receivables of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$479,304,000 and no
impairment was recognised.
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We have identified recoverability and impairment assessment
of loan and interest receivables as a key audit matter because
the amount of allowance for impairment loss required
significant management judgement.
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group’s
impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables
and the management estimations or judgements on the
recoverability of the outstanding balances.
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We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment
with the management and, where such indicators were
identified, assessed the management’s impairment testing.
We have discussed with the management in respect of
the adequacy of the provision of impairment made by the
management. We have challenged the assumptions and
critical judgements used by the management by assessing
the reliability of the management’s past estimates and taking
into account the ageing at year end and cash received after
year end, as well as the recent creditworthiness of each
debtor.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent AuQitqr’s Report
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T8 S A% Y B e o

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SEEI LB B O B RMER AN B
(=
BPNERERAEREAHMBRREEBRS T
FHEEMEXRFEREGE (THIEERFRER
MEE)  AREBRMEHENZBIETER B
TE2RBLAHARMERHOZEEIRS  BRILA
S B PR RS A BEE MRS - BB
BENAD BEMEMALTEESAESE
EEREDBRKTFRZ BATNREREEE
BT EAETHERS TE—TRERENERR
At (777 ) - 84 5R BRM 7T B B RFF S s AR 5l A2
TEWEENKBREAERATEZEERAER
B E A O R IR P IF h AR ERTE - AR
RERIERBRL

I RIREE BB R AT B TIEM— 55
REREBS T BRTEAN AR
R A - BT

o BBIRFHEBENEGFRERMENE HUE
BARFEEAHERBOAHRR - Rt R§IT
ETEFAREZEFRR - A RERGEE K
EENETRE FRRMAZRER- B
REGEAIgE MR mE EBER ER
BRI - SR B ARSI 2 | - It R R 3
3R R FRFE T R O B A8 AR BRI A L B = 110
REE IR AR 3R A B AR R IR A0 &

B o

e BEREFRZHEMOAIZES  URFTHESR
AERATBEEMEZIEF BBEMIAF
o EEERERNERMEBERER -

feul



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Independent Auc]itqr’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5589

Hong Kong
30 June 2017

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

LR CETE S

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—Z

—tF=[A=F—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B & BET T BT T
Revenue A 5 54,119 40,703
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,167) (4,248)
Gross profit EF 52,952 36,455
Other income H b Wz 7 13,731 1,108
Gain on disposal of HEREERERE 2 &
held for trading investments 26,019 36,774
Loss arising from changes in fair value of HIEEEKREZ
held for trading investments NREEHELZEER (39,751) (171,296)
Gain (loss) arising from changes in fair value of 7 Iﬁ BEEZ
derivative financial assets, net NAEEEEEZ 21(i),
Wa (B1R) - F8 (i) B2 (iv) 4,811 (1,017)
Realised gain on settlement of MESHMEERKEZ
derivative financial assets B0 W 5 21 (iv) 907 30,726
Loss arising from changes in fair value of ?ﬁi’i\%ﬂﬁ (P
derivative financial liabilities NEFPHELEZEE 21(i) (279,448) (218,321)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale —H#\ HESHEEY
financial assets EEE (8,161) (17,375)
Selling and distribution costs $HE R SHBR (3,049) (3,995)
General and administrative expenses —RETHER (209,059) (169,353)
Finance costs & KA 8 (17,048) (35,136)
Loss before tax B o5 Bl B 1R 9 (458,096) (506,430)
Income tax expense Fristi & A 11 (12,185) (632)
Loss for the year FEEE (470,281) (507,062)
Loss for the year attributable to KABHEB ANEILFEEE
the owners of the Company (470,269) (510,919)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to PRGN R B FE
non-controlling interests (E518) & 7 (12) 3,857
(470,281) (607,062)
Loss per share BRER 13
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARREEER
(HK cents per share) (=) (9.06) (11.54)
S0 R84 1 A PR )
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

R A S 3 At B 15 WA R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2 =—F—+F=H=+—HIFZ

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loss for the year FEEBSR (470,281) (507,062)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHMEREER
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEAREEF IR
profit or loss: BmsEE -
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment At ESREERER
of available-for-sale financial assets B OEAE - (1,183)
Exchange difference arising on translation of BREBINEBREEZ
overseas operations E X ZE% (7,339) (5,050)
(7,339) (6,233)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FELAEBARE (477,620) (513,295)
Total comprehensive (expense) income EBHFEESE (BR) WAEE:
for the year attributable to:
The owners of the Company KRARHEE A (477,608) (517,152)
Non-controlling interests FE5 ) MR 2 (12) 3,857
(477,620) (5183,295)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
5 OF B 75 51K Dt &

As at 31 March 2017 RZ-ZF—+F=HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 BET T BEF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment = &R 14 6,074 6,263
Finance lease receivable eI R E T EFIR 19 - 6,579
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESmERE 15 66,861 75,466
Non-current deposits and prepayments ERBTHIES R
T 5RIB 17 3,172 2,582
76,107 90,890
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 16 7,493 7,607
Deposits and prepayments FHiZke RBERANHIE 17 8,297 10,781
Loan and interest receivables EUWE RN FIE 18 479,304 229,056
Finance lease receivable Rl EERE %k 19 94,470 94,723
Held for trading investments RIEEERE 20 352,543 629,910
Derivative financial instruments PTHESMITA 21 32,988 711
Cash and cash equivalents BehIFeEEBY 22 76,902 18,312
1,051,997 991,100
Current liabilities REBEE
Margin loans payable ERRESER 23 178,285 376,861
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER - FAES R
EIRE A 24 35,992 65,721
Amounts due to related companies FEREE A RIBR R 34 33,566 2,215
Amount due to a director IS —REEFHIA 34 - 9
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmT A 21 252,021 -
Current income tax liabilities EHMETNAR 15,638 3,375
Obligation under a finance lease R E T B AIE 25 - 1,374
515,502 449,555
Net current assets RBEEZFE 536,495 541,545
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 612,602 632,435
S0 A B A R 2 )
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Consolidateq Statement of Financial Position
o OF A 1R 0L %

As at 31 March 2017 R=-F—+tF=H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$ 000
fE=E BET T BEF T
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital N 26 53,182 49,358
Reserves i 335,365 467,663
Equity attributable to the owners of RAEIEEB ANELERS
the Company 388,547 517,021
Non-controlling interests FETZE I 1 A 2 (12) -
Total equity R 388,535 517,021
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible bonds Al ES 27 224,067 115,414
612,602 632,435

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 216 were REBIE216E v &M BHEN T —LF
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 R=tTHHRESSHALEETETHR INIES

June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: REREE:

LI Kwong Yuk SU Xiaonong
=RE BB
Director Director

EE EFE

92 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

7 BF HE 4 5 B 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

KD EEEARL
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Share Other Exchange  Investment equity Non-
Share Share reserve option reserve i i ion A lated controlling
capital premium (note i) reserve (note il reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
X
BERE Hibfife TRBES -
%3 BRHEE (M) BRERE (W) EXRDRE REEMHE ERSLHEE RitER @it FEGNER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BB BB BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2015 RoE-E4MmA-A 33,046 310,666 14 4,747 211 (844) 1,183 114,068 (784305)  (284,214) 69,899 (214,315)
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - - - (610,919 (510,919 3,857 (507,062)
Other comprehensive expense ~ FEEMGAER
for the year
- Reclassffication adjustment —AHEESRAE
upon impairment of HERENDERR
available-for-sale financial
assets - - - - - - (1,183) - - (1,183) - (1,189)
— Exchange differences arising ~RERNEBEEL
on tranglation of overseas EXZ®
operations - - - - - (5,050) - - - (5,050) - (6,050)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ FREEGA (BFE) WMALE

income for the year - - - - - (5,050) (1,183) - (510,919 (617,152 3,857 (513,295)
Acquisition of additional interests

ina subsidiary (note 37) - - - - 211) - - - (18,955) (19,166) (73,756) (92,922
Issue of convertible bonds - equity

conversion component (note 27) - - - - - - - 993,510 - 993,510 - 993,510
Issue of shares upon conversion of &

convertible bonds (note 26) 19,001 1,312,5% - - - - - (908,059) - 423,628 - 423,628
Recognition of equity-settled

share based payments

vested (note 32) - - - 110,762 - - - - - 110,762 - 110,762
Repurchased of ordinary shares (2,967) (195,960) - - - - - - - (198,927) - (198,927)
Share options exercised (note 32) 188 11,654 - (3,262 - - - - - 8,580 - 8,580
Share options forfeited - - - (118) - - - - 118 - - -
At 31 March 2016 RZE-RE=A=1-H 49,358 1,438,956 14 149,129 - (5,894) - 199,519 (1,314,061) 517,021 - 517,021
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"FRA-B 49,358 1,438,956 14 149,129 - (5,894) - 199,519 (1,314,061) 517,021 - 517,021
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (470,269) (470,269) (12) (470,281)
Other comprehensive expense R H i A B

for the year

- Exchange differences arising ~RERNEBEEL

on translation of overseas EfZ®
operations - - - - - (7,339) - - - (7,339) - (7,339)
Total comprehensive expense FRGABALR

for the year - - - - - (7,339) - - (470,269) (477,608) (12) (477,620)
Issue of convertile bonds - equity %17 AT % —

conversion component (note 27) B E SR (Hizker) - - - - - - - 112,858 - 112,858 - 112,858
Issue of shares upon conversion of - 7 B A R 56

convertible bonds (note 26) BITR1 (Wizto6) 4,242 315,708 - - - - - (199,519) - 120,431 - 120,431
Recognition of equity-settled share EERS B

based payments vested FHE (M)

(note 32) - - - 162,750 - - - - - 162,750 - 162,750
Repurchased of ordinary shares &t (1,116) (76,184) - - - - - - - (77,300) - (77,300)
Share options exercised (note 32) 217 fEEE RE 698 41,595 - (11,898) - - - - - 30,395 - 30,395
At 31 March 2017 WZZ—+F=A=1+-8 53,182 1,720,075 14 299,981 - (13,233) - 112,858 (1,784,330) 388,547 (12) 388,535
Notes: (T

0] Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the shares 0] BAERHEBREEARABERIIREB T2
repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable reserves of the i e gt < E1{E °

Company.

(i)  Other reserve represents the change in the Group’s ownership interests (iiy HihZEEASERBEEWNB AT A EER 2

in existing subsidiaries that do not result in loss of control over those

subsidiaries.

FEN N MR E L M E D RIR A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
SRS mER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2 =—F—+F=H=+—HIFZ

2017 2016
—ZE—tHF ZE—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEED
Loss before taxation BrEi A &R (458,096) (506,430)
Adjustments for: ERBENTEIE:
Bank interest income RITH) B Y= (234) (397)
Finance costs A& R AR 17,048 35,136
Depreciation of plant and equipment W E RiEEITE 3,545 3,545
Loss arising from changes in fair value of MESMBRECANE
derivative financial liabilities SHES 2 EE 279,448 213,321
(Gain) loss arising from changes in fair value MEEMEEZANE
of derivative financial assets, net BEELsz (W)
B8 R (4,811) 1,017
Loss arising from changes in fair value of FIEEEREZANE
held for trading investments SHELEE 39,751 171,296
Written off of other payable T 88 LA SRR - (114)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AP EeREE Y
financial assets BB EE 8,161 17,375
Share-based payments expenses ARG BE 2 5 HAX 162,750 110,762
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEEF 2
in working capital KERERE 47,562 45,511
Decrease in inventories FERD 114 243
Decrease in deposits and prepayments FHiZe RIBENFRIER D 1,863 5,991
Increase in loan and interest receivables U E R R F B 3E N (250,248) (133,501)
Decrease (increase) in finance lease FE U Bh & T & IR
receivable A (3G h0) 509 (101,302)
Decrease (increase) in held for BIEEBERERD
trading investments (#hn) 237,616 (682,261)
Decrease in derivative financial assets MTEsMEERD 711 -
Increase (decrease) in creditors, BAER TARER
deposits and accruals TBIRERAEN
ORLA) 13,307 (1,086)
Increase in amounts due to JE < B B | AR SR8 N
related companies 2,279 1,662
Cash generated from (used in) operations EEMS (A 2HE 53,713 (864,743)
PRC income tax refund REIFEFTEH 78 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETHEE (FIA) 2
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES B4 RE 53,791 (864,743)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

G ERER
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+tF=HA=+—HIFF&E
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE-RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
= BT T BET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchases of available-for-sale BEUHIEESRERE
financial assets - (28,460)
Purchases of plant and equipment BEBRER&E (3,454) (56)
Interest received 2B 234 397
NET CASH USED IN REZBHFAZHEEFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,220) (28,119)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEES
Proceeds from issuance of KREBEITAIBRRES 2
convertible bonds TS E 27 279,500 600,000
Repayment to related companies MEBERR ZER (20,928) -
Advance from related companies REBEATZBH 50,000 242
New margin loans raised EEMERESER 256,797 362,823
Repayment of margin loans RILSERZER (455,373) -
(Repayment to) advance from a director (ERTFT—RESH)/
KE—BREEZRK 9) 9
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T IR EFT 1S 7B 30,395 8,580
Repayment of obligation MERERIEESR
under a finance lease (1,374) (1,442)
Interest paid 2 HLE (8,190) (7,809)
Payment on acquisition of additional WiE—HEMB AR
interests in a subsidiary BIMEZ 2 R 24 (45,056) (41,626)
Payment on repurchase of shares f%15 BB B 2 5 5% (77,300) (198,927)
NET CASH FROM METHELEZHESFEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 8,462 721,850
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ReRBESEEYWIZM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR2)F8 59,033 (171,012)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ROB—AZHRER
AT 1 APRIL REeEEY 18,312 194,020
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates INEIE R BB 2 & (443) (4,696)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=ZA=Z+—H=2
AT 31 MARCH BeRBEEZEEY 76,902 18,312
S0 A B A R 2 )
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Dingyi Group Investment Limited (the “Company’) is a listed
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and Units 2708, 27/F., Convention
Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited, a private limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
carrying out loan financing business while the activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 B B 255 e Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - EF—+F=H=1+—HIIFZF

— R
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting

Standards (“HKASs”) amendments and Interpretations (“Ints”)

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27

Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptable

Methods of Depreciation and

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operation

Consolidation Exception

The directors of the Company consider that the application of the

new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material

impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for

the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or

1 January 2018, as appropriate.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
5 Effective date not yet been determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —

2.

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF S B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFZ

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis that
is required to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application

permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have an impact on the
Group’s results and financial position, including the classification
categories and the measurement of financial assets, and
disclosures. For instance, the Group will be required to replace
the incurred loss impairment model in HKAS 39 with an expected
loss impairment model that will apply to various exposures
to credit risk. HKFRS 9 will also change the way the Group
classifies and measures its financial assets, and will require the
Group to consider the business model and contractual cash flow
characteristics of financial assets to determine classification and
subsequent measurement. For financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss, the change in fair value that is
attributable to changes in credit risk could be presented in other
comprehensive income. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 (2014) until a
detailed review has been completed.
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—tF=ZFA=F—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=HA=+—HIFFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have result in the identification
of separate performance obligations which could affect the
timing of the recognition of revenue. Certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract which are currently expensed may need to
be recognised as an asset under HKFRS 15. More disclosures
relating to revenue are also required. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until a detail review is completed.

HKFRS 16 LEASES

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the initial
estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$17,354,000
as disclosed in note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
lease unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in the measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the
Group performs a detailed review.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments
do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the new disclosure
requirements. However, the amendments indicate that one way
is to provide a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances for liabilities arising from financing activities.

2.

FERF I MBI BB BRE

R (BT BmEER]])
(#58)
EENBHREENFEI1RHE (@)

EBMBERELEF1HBEN T —LE—
A—Bsiz&mnz FEBMBAER  WAH
REER WMEERVLERAT MRS
HRE16RE Bk 2R A A B M B®R
ERAFEISRELEHNRE R —F
ZA=ZT—B AERHEETARBELEHA
E A 78 117,354,0007T (56 40 B 5E314%
B VI THERP  RELHFEREBNG

MELEABIGSETHHEHEER Bt &%
BT EZSHERREAEESERERE
BE BRIFTEEAEBVBREERE165%
BEMESREERSHEE o Bk
X~ ERFORENEENE 27
&?)}zaiﬁwwiﬁﬁ-Eéztxs%@iﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬂ%&ﬁ

Al W EEH A B AL T ER 1T -

ERETE
)
REE B R ERRERENHRREMELL
WAGBRETIMEENREEHNRE
B BRREREELNEGNIFRSE
B o L FERT W IR EERCHT IR M E AR
EE AT ZFERT L RS — @A
REHRERDELNE BN LRARE
ERAVE AR -

RISE7RR BT &8 (28]

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I LS

107



108

Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o F 0 5 e 2% Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKAS 7 will result in additional disclosures on
the Group’s financing activities, especially reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement
of financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities
will be provided on application.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has:

° power over the investee;

° exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° the ability to use its power over the investee to effect the
amount of the Group’s returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF 9 5 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —

3.

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for good and services renders in the
normal course of business. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Finance lease income is recognised using the effective interest
rate implicit in the lease over the term of the lease.

Gain or loss on the disposal of held for trading investments is
recognised on a trade date basis when the relevant transactions
are executed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of plant and
equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASING (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating leases payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension obligation

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies

or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

3.
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Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets held for
trading, and a financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF S B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 30(c).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposits, loan and interest receivables, finance lease
receivable and cash and cash equivalents) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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3.

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
monetary financial assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and dividends on available-
for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial market
because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loan and
interest receivables and finance lease receivable, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of loan and interest receivables and finance lease receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When loan
and interest receivables or finance lease receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF S B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including margin loans payable, creditors,
deposits and accruals, amounts due to related companies,
amount due to a director and obligation under a finance lease
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

FEffective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group

The component parts of the convertible bonds issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Group (Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the convertible bonds as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain
in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FESITHER (8)

SWMIA (@)

ik ST R

BT TAMIAIRETSITA A NE B2 AR E

ﬁEZ\ CHiBRE i&%,ﬁﬂﬂiz/&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
CHEMETAZAREBEEHNEHIER
%WE\DB?EEE/DO

%L

EENEERDREREZENENEmX
EMEENERANASBE D BEREEM
ERBABIERLOHRERT S B
B AEETERIERZEREE-

—BRERIIERCREE EENKEE
S E R EKHREBERE AL MRS KAF
R e 250 R 1B1825 2 M1 2 B
EHeTBEEPER

AEEERER TERLR BUSKC 286
RILHERE wﬁi@\fﬁ“miﬁﬁ RZE@MAEL
REEECSNMENREZZRN B i

=7
Ao



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised and disclosure made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group estimates and recognises liabilities based on the
submitted tax returns and expected the final tax assessment to
be received will have no additional tax become due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group
assesses annually the residual values and the useful lives of
the plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimates, such a difference may impact the depreciation
charges in the year in which the estimates change.

Estimated fair value of financial instruments

As described in note 30(c), the directors of the Company use
their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market.
Valuation techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. For derivative financial instruments, assumptions
are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific
features of the instrument. Other financial instruments are valued
using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market prices or
rates. The estimation of fair value of unlisted equity instruments
includes some assumptions not supported by observable market
prices or rates. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed
in note 30(c). The directors of the Company believe that the
chosen valuation techniques and assumptions are appropriate in
determining the fair value of financial instruments.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Valuation of share options

As mentioned in note 32, the Group has granted share options
to directors, employees and consultants. The directors of the
Company have used an option-pricing model — Binomial model
(the “Binomial Model”) to determine the total fair value of the
options granted. The option pricing models require the input
of subjective assumptions, such as risk free rate, dividend
yield, expected volatility and expected terms, to be made by
the directors of the Company in applying the Binomial Model
(note 32). The fair value of options granted for the year ended
31 March 2017 determined using the Binomial Model was
approximately HK$162,750,000 (2016: HK$110,762,000).

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining
whether a decline in fair value has been significant or prolonged.
In making this judgement, the historical data on market volatility
as well as the price of the specific investment are taken into
account. The Group also takes into account other factors, such
as industry and sector performance changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow of the investee. As
at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets was approximately HK$66,861,000 (2016:
HK$75,466,000) net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$59,698,000 (2016: HK$51,537,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables and
finance lease receivable

The policy for impairment of loan and interest receivables
and finance lease receivable is based on assessments
of the recoverability of each debtor, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad
and doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of loan and interest
receivables was approximately HK$479,304,000 (2016:
HK$229,056,000) net of accumulated impairment loss of nil
(2016: nil). No impairment loss is provided for the year (2016: nil).

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of finance
lease receivable was approximately HK$94,470,000 (2016:
HK$101,302,000). No impairment loss is provided for the year.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of food and
beverages, financial leasing income interest income from
provision of loan financing and dividend income from held for

of the Group's revenue:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+F=HA=+—HIFF&E

5. WA

RER WABKREERHEE BREBRER
A REEFREZHNEBWARFEEERER
BZBBWAZWA - REBWA Z DA

trading investments during the year. The following is an analysis ™

2017 2016
—E—LtF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Revenue represents amounts received and WASEZRB I TNE R K
receivable from: 288
Sales of food and beverages BEIHE 4,146 8,298
Financial leasing income mEHEEWA 2,188 4,175
Dividend income g B WA 19,548 3,404
Interest income from provision of loan REERRE 2 F WA
financing 28,237 24,826
54,119 40,703
An analysis of the Group's revenue by segments is set out in note REB DI A Z D ATESAKTEES ©

6.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &% —

6.

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable segments are identified and reported in the manner
consistent with internal reports to the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision-marker (executive
directors) in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance
of the reportable segments based on the revenue and profit/
loss presented. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group has five reportable and operating segments (i)
securities trading business; (i) trading of wine business; (i) food
and beverages — restaurant business; (iv) loan financing business;
and (v) financial leasing business. Segment revenue is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o DF B 85 R B
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+F=HA=+—HIFF&E
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEFR (&)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS DERAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REBEBZWARREELZBTEMREED R
reportable and operating segment: dan)in/ (N
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_ZE—tF=A=+—HLEFE
Food and
Securities Trading  beverages- Loan Financial
trading of wine  restaurant Financing leasing
business business business business business Total
% BE BH- EX Mg
BEXHK BEXHK BEEYR MEEK HEEK Fobol
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
Revenue KA
External revenue SRS A 19,548 - 4,146 28,237 2,188 54,119
Gain on disposal of HEREEERE L
held for trading investments Yz 26,019 - - - - 26,019
Segment profit (loss) 2EFE (F8E) 5,623 - (1,175) 27,037 2,099 33,584
Interest income FIEWA 234
Finance costs BERAK (17,048)
Loss arising from changes TEeMBBEZANE
in fair value of derivative 2HELVER
financial liabilities (279,448)
Gain arising from changes MTEeRMEEZINESR
in fair value of derivative EEz W&
financial assets 4,811
Realised gain on settlement of MTEeREERE  DE RN
derivative financial assets 907
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AT HESMEE ZRERE
financial assets (8,161)
Unallocated corporate income APEARBA 13,497
Unallocated corporate expenses NGl (206,472)
Loss before tax BB ATEE (458,096)
S0 R84 1B A B )
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEFR (&)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued) DPEVRARFEE (#)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REBEBZWARREELZBTEMREED R
reportable and operating segment: dan)in/ (N
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE - ZT—XRXE=ZA=1+—HIEE
Food and
Securities Trading of  beverages- Loan Financial
trading wine restaurant Financing leasing
business business business business business Total
& B BH- B WA
BEEH BEEHK BEER BEER HEES nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue KA
External revenue LIS ON 3,404 - 8,298 24,826 4,175 40,703
Gain on disposal of HERBEEEREZ IS
held for trading investments 36,774 - - - - 36,774
Segment (loss) profit 28 (BR)FE (131,165) - (1,393) 24,397 3,720 (104,441)
Interest income FIEWA 397
Finance costs BN (35,136)
Loss arising from changes NESBEBEARERS
in fair value of derivative EEZER
financial liabilities (213,321)
Loss arising from changes MTHEERMEEZRIAEED
in fair value of derivative EEZER FE
financial assets, net (1,017)
Realised gain on settlement of MTEeREERE DR
derivative financial assets 30,726
Impairment loss on HRNESREEZRERE
available-for-sale financial assets (17,375)
Unallocated corporate income VYN ON 597
Unallocated corporate expenses NG (166,860)
Loss before tax BB ATEE (506,430)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of central administration costs,
exchange loss and depreciation of certain plant and equipment.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision-
maker for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &% —

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TREERAR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by REBECEERABREREEESEZD
reportable and operating segment: W :

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Segment assets PTHEE
Securities trading business BEEEED 352,543 629,910
Trading of wine business BEEEEK 7,250 7,250
Food and beverages — restaurant business ﬁﬁk —BREER 1,032 1,869
Loan financing business ERREEY 479,304 229,056
Financial leasing business BMEREEY 94,470 101,302
Total segment assets DI R EBE 934,599 969,387
Unallocated corporate assets Al W/NE] é% 193,505 112,603
Total consolidated assets EHEEHRE 1,128,104 1,081,990

Segment liabilities PEEE
Securities trading business BHEBES 178,285 376,861
Trading of wine business BB B - -
Food and beverages — restaurant business BR—BEER 5,821 5,433
Loan financing business EXRAEED = 4
Financial leasing business BEREE 16 429
Total segment liabilities NIBBEETE 184,122 382,727
Unallocated corporate liabilities AORPEERE 555,447 182,242
Total consolidated liabilities atEERE 739,569 564,969

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain plant and equipment, available-for-sale financial
assets, certain deposits, prepayment and other debtors,
derivative financial instruments and cash and cash
equivalents; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain deposit, accruals and other payables, amounts due
to related companies, amount due to a director, current
income tax liabilities, derivative financial instruments,
obligation under a finance lease and convertible bonds.

6.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DHEER ()
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HioBEER
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E—tFE=A=1+—HLEE
Food and
Securities Trading  beverages- Loan Financial
trading of wine  restaurants financing leasing
business business business business business  Unallocated Total
#% BE 8- &% &8
BEEY BEXY EEXY BEEY BEXY APE @t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure of REFEDEFAXEER
segment profit or 0ss or segment AREERFAZEH:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets RBEERE
(other than available-for-sale (TRETHRIECHEER
financial assets and finance e R ETE EFR)
lease receivable) - - 12 - - 3,442 3,454
Depreciation of plant and equipment [BE LEETE - - 654 131 - 2,760 3,545
Loss arising from changes in fair value of  #{EEERE 2 ANES
held for trading investments EEZER 39,751 - - - - = 39,751
Amounts regularly provided to the chief ~ FHIRMUF I BELREH
operating decision-maker but not R ED BN EHE B
included in the measure of segment AREERTRFAZEE:
profit or loss or segment assets:
Interest income FIBMA - - - - - (234) (234)
Finance costs BEAKA - - - - - 17,048 17,048
Income tax expense FrsRiAX - - - 2,324 (787) 10,648 12,185

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

DHEER (®)
Hir o EEHR (&)

N

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_Z—XRF-A=1+—HILFE
Food and
Securities Trading  beverages- Loan Financial
trading of wine  restaurants financing leasing
business business business business business  Unallocated Total
&% ik EH- B B
BEEXG BEXE EEEH BEEK HEXH AOE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT EETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure of REFEDEFAXEER
segment profit or loss or AREERFAZEH:
segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets IRBEERE (TRE
(other than available-for-sale ARLESHEERBERER
financial assets and finance WisE)
lease receivable) - - 10 - - 815 825
Depreciation of plant and equipment [BE LEETE - - 743 - - 2,802 3545
Loss arising from changes in fair value of  #{EEERE 2 ANELH
held for trading investments EEZER 171,296 - - - - - 171,296
Written off of other payable WHEmEME - - (114) - - - (114)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief ~ FHIREFEELLREE
operating decision-maker but not R ED BB
included in the measure of segment BRI EEER
profit or loss or segment assets: WREFAZ S
Interest income FEKA - - - - - (397 (397
Finance costs BEMRA - - - - - 35,136 35,136
Income tax (credit) expense Fris® (B4e) A% - - (251) - 883 - 632
SR BRI AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the United States of America
(the “USA”).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial assets)
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

6. DEEFR (#®)

i E &R

AEEZZBURERS TEARKME
(THE]) RENEERE ([XE]) -

BERAKERBIINIEEL ZBAZERZ
REMEBE -BRAKREZIFRDEE
(TEREREE) 2ENIREEMELIE

EZ5-

Revenue from external
customers

RENBEF ZBA
2017 2016
—B-t§ C—Tr%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT

Non-current assets

FRBEE
2017 2016
—B-t% T 5F
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETRT BETL

Hong Kong A% 47,784 27,376 4,070 4,714
PRC H 6,335 13,327 1,973 1,527
USA e - - 31 22

54,119 40,703 6,074 6,263

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31
March 2017 and 2016.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

6.

DHEER (8
ARTIERZFNESR
KEMEEEEZEPKA (EAEEIIA LS
FEHRB10% ) T

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Customer A' EPA 5,760 4,509
Customer B' BFEB! 5,520 N/A i F32

! Revenue from loan financing business
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group

! REERBEEBZRA
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFFZ

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HEfthlrzm
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Bank interest income RITF ‘JMW 234 397
Net gain from a settlement of claim (note) @R 2 (MsE) 9,207 -
Written off of other payable T 8 A \WEEHEEW\ - 114
Others EHi 4,290 597
13,731 1,108
Note: On 25 September 2015, the Group entered into a cooperation Wi RZT—RAFANAZTHA FERE—FRK

FABERIEARAR ([MBE] - —RREE

agreement with a nominee, Xumao Ventures Limited (“Xumao

Ventures”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
to acquire the equity interest in Jinshidai Investment Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Jinshidai”), an independent third party with
property interests located in the PRC.

Due to the non-performance of the vendors, the Group has submitted
an application for arbitration to the Shenzhen Arbitration Commission
CRIREZ B @) (the “Commission”) seeking specific performance
of the Acquisition Agreement and damages against the vendors. The
application has been accepted by the Commission on the same date of
29 January 2016.

On 11 April 2016, the nominee and the vendors entered into a
settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) to settle the
arbitration. Under the Settlement Agreement, the vendors agreed to
make a payment of RMB38,000,000 to settle the arbitration and related
proceedings. The consideration for the acquisition was settled by an
advance from a director, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk and the settlement was
repaid to the director during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017,
respectively. The Group was entitled to a share of 38% of the remaining
balance of approximately HK$9,207,000 as net settlement and was
recognised to offset to the amounts due to the related companies. The
settlement was received subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 September 2015, 29 September 2015, 2 October
2015, 9 October 2015, 30 November 2015, 9 December 2015, 29
January 2016, 12 April 2016 and 27 April 2016.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqt§
A PF 4 $ie 3R 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+F=HA=+—HIFF&E

FINANCE COSTS 8. BIEMA
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Interest on margin loans payable ERRESERFE 8,164 7,724
Effective interest expenses on AMREFCEREMEMXS
convertible bonds 8,858 27,327
Interest expenses on a finance lease BEHE FMBHRAX 26 85
17,048 35,136
LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. MRTAIERE
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging: BRERTE B NG THI&IE
2017 2016
—B-+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEE T
Directors’ and chief executive’s EERFETHRAEMNS
emoluments (note 10) (MF3E10) 6,436 7,431
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ EMETINA(TBEBEESR
and chief executive’s emoluments) FETHAEHE) 7,197 7,519
Share-based payments expenses LABR (0 BER 2 SR X
(excluding directors’ and chief executive’s (TEEEEREFETHRAE
emoluments) e ) 16,129 -
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RRRE M ET B3R
(excluding directors’ and chief (T"EREESER
executive’s emoluments) FETHRAEMWSE) 141 168
Total staff costs BT A4%E 29,903 15,118
Amount of inventories recognised ERARI 2 IFESTE
as an expense 1,167 4,248
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BUAD B 4 1,400 1,350
Depreciation of plant and equipment BE RS ZITE 3,545 3,545
Operating lease payments in respect SEAENFTETREEME
of leasing of premises under minimum LM E R
lease payments 11,001 9,666
Exchange (gain) loss, net fEH () EiE - F5E (4,162) 4,788
Share-based payments expenses BT REE 2 AR BER K
granted to consultants (note) F s (FsE) 146,621 108,995
Note: It represents share options granted to external consultants in MiaE - HigmobREE R L 2 BARAE - USRI AR &
exchange for services rendered to the Group. Please refer to note 32 BERE RS - FEFELHME32 -
for details.
S0 R84 1B A B )
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

10.

SEERTBITHAE Z %)
BE 2%

A K

A) EERFETHRAEZHME

EMOLUMENTS
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and EXHRENEARTESEREZETH
chief executive of the Company are as follows: AEZEBZMESWT
2017
“E-t%
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme payments
fees benefits  contribution expenses Total
BB
HeR RINER RE®Y
E=He Hih @7l HE T FHREX #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BB T BETT BT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect ofa  FLEAAE AR A FE
person’s services as a director, whether of ~ EMBARIES
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking ATt 2 RE M T8,
Bz B &
Executive Director: YTES:
Li Kwong Yuk % - 4,121 46 - 4,167
Su Xiaonong EER - 438 36 - 474
Cheung Sze Ming EH - 1,357 18 - 1,375
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki AER 150 - - - 150
Ip Chi Wai EER 150 - - - 150
420 5,916 100 - 6,436

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqt§
A PF 4 $ie 3R 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EENTETHAB ZHF AR
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ BE 2% (&

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S A) ESERIEFTRAEZHE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#&)
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and EXHRENEARTESEREZETH
chief executive of the Company are as follows: AEZEBZMESWT
2016
NS
Retirement
Salaries benefit  Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme payments
fees benefits contribution expenses Total
LA B
Hek RIKEF EifE
208 Hi a7 AR BE ik fick:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BET BETT BB
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of  FLEAAEARAF
aperson’s services as a director, ENBARES
whether of the Company or its PRtz RIS M E 5k
subsidiary undertaking Bl B
Executive Director: HTES:
Li Kwong Yuk ThE - 3,534 44 1,767 5,345
Su Xiaonong - - 446 38 - 484
Cheung Sze Ming REFE - 1,304 18 - 1,322
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki FEE 150 - - - 150
Ip Chi Wai (appointed on 31 March 2016)  E&EE (R=T—~F= A
=t+-BEZT) - - - - -
Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015) BB (R -F—HEMA
=+HET) 10 - - - 10
280 5,284 100 1,767 7,431

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company

and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the chief executive.

HERLTENMBARAZEIEZTERA
BEMEELXABEEZMeERES
REBITRABMERZ REMES
ZBE -

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I L
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o F 0 5 e 7% B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

None of the directors and the chief executive of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group during the two years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016. No emoluments were paid or payable by the
Group to the directors and chief executive of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals included two directors
(2016: two directors), details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments paid to the remaining three
(2016: three) highest paid individuals are as follows:

10. EENTFTEBITHA B 2 F b
& 8 2 B

(A)

(B)

A K

& (&)

EERFETHAEBZHE
(&)
BMEARFTNEZTREIETHRAER
HE_ZTZ—+tFRZFT—X~F=H
= t+t—RLEMEFEREXRERE
AEBIZHHEAMEe REBEEZT
—tFR-FE-XF=ZA=+—HL
MEFE  AEBBERRAFRESER
FE2THABINSENIE  ERR
SIARA SR AN A AN £ B I ) 42 5 ol B
B fHE -

BEzEHE
hAEBERmFALTBEBERG (ZE—K
F WMB)ET HEWME 2 FBEHS
X EMFHRTI=R(ZZE—RE:
—R)EEFALTZHENT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYER 2,847 3,019
Share-based payments expenses AR5 AR R RFEX 16,129 -
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIRTEFET B R 32 20
19,008 3,039

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o DF B 85 R B
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ
10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. ESFERFBITHRAB ZHFMUAK
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ EE 2= (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (B) BEZME (&)
The emoluments of the remaining three (2016: three) BRI =R(ZE—RF: =F)&aH
highest paid individuals fall within the following bands: AT ZFHMWE D A THIEE :
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE-RF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
Nil — HK$1,000,000 = — % #1,000,0007T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 78 14,000,001 7T —
75 #1,500,0007T 2 2
Above HK$1,500,000 A #51,500,0007T A 1 -
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the REBEE_ZT—+FR_T—RF=H
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon =T—HIMBEFEHE ~AERHRE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office Eff BN TeHALTBE  (EARS
during the two years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016. INA SR INAZ R [ 5 89 228 - SR
BRI (2 -
S0 R84 1B A B )
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. IS EHR
2017 2016
—E—+HF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BET T
Current income tax B HIRTIS A

Hong Kong an 22 -
The PRC g 2,398 883
2,420 883

Under-provision (Over-provision) in prior years @1E FEREET B (HBEEREHE)
Hong Kong (note i) BB (ki) 10,648 -
The PRC H (883) (251)
9,765 (251)
Income tax expenses Fristi& A 12,185 632

Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits. For the year ended
31 March 2017, Hong Kong profit tax has been made after
offsetting tax losses brought forward from previous year of each
individual company.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1

January 2008 onwards. 25% -

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+F=HA=+—HIFF&E

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Overseas profits tax, the USA taxation which was calculated

11.

based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on the
estimated assessable profits. No provision of overseas profits tax
has been made as the Group did not have any assessable profits
subject to overseas profits tax for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI") and Bermuda, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the BVI and Bermuda.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

FRiEti & A (@)

BONFIS R AEEEIE - HRENE B EE
RS T RO FE A 2 FIRH E o
PR £ B R 1 47 30 SR B U B N RIS
7 (TR B SRR % ) - 430 S S AN R B
Bt o

REREEBRES ((RBERAES])
RBREDEPIRBRG  NEE BB R
BHEBREERAREZEMNMAEH-

R EFHHE M EA BHERRIIR Z BB
RSB EE T

loss as follows:

2017 2016
—EB—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss before tax BT BB 1R (458,096) (506,430)
Tax at the domestic income R TS B E16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (ZZ2—R"F:16.5%)
STE 2 HIA (75,585) (83,560)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 g & 78,244 65,808
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARN WG 2 MG E (4,798) (670)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZBBEBB 2R E 4,304 26,355
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIEREREEZB oG &
recognised 222 222
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FABTRBERZMBERZ
previously not recognised Mmswa (59) (7,476)
Tax reduction (note) HIEER (M) (20) -
Under-provision (over-provision) in prior years i@ F EEE T C (HBEBEEE) 9,765 (251)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMADEERLEHMB AR
operating in other jurisdictions TRABERZE 112 204
Income tax expenses st & A 12,185 632
Details of deferred income tax are disclosed in note 28. BRIEFTIS T 2 FF B A B sE28 i 5
S0 R84 1B A B )
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Note:

Tax exemption represented a reduction of Hong Kong Tax for the year of
assessment by 25%, subject to a ceiling of HK$20,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company received
notice of additional assessment from the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) for the years of assessment 2012/2013 to
2015/2016 demanding additional profits tax payments.

The management is currently in process to negotiate with IRD for
the settlement and the Group has made the additional provision
accordingly.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period (2016: nil).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o DF 1 15 i 3% B Bk
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z T —+F=H=+—HILFE
13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BIREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RABEE ANEEERERREEBHRTIZ
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: RBUATEERRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BEEF T
Loss g
Loss for the year attributable to KARHEEARBEFEEEHE
the owners of the Company (470,269) (510,919)
Number of shares B ER ’000 '000
T T A&
Weighted average number of ordinary AEERERAREEEE Y
shares for the purpose of basic and 38 AR N 19 &
diluted loss per share 5,189,184 4,429,187

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
conversion or exercise of the Company’s outstanding convertible
bonds, share options and call option from issuance of convertible
bonds since they would result in decrease in loss per share for
both years.

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

AEEREIERRYERRERAITER
RAZEARITER AR ES BN ET
AMBRES 2 REIE RESZFERK
TEREZMEFE 2 BRERRLD

B2 DR B ARH EERE
AR RIE Y 5 SR -

S 8 48 O 45 A R )
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

156

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. WE KR
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
improvements and office Motor
and equipment equipment vehicles Total
HEMERE R -RER
ES WMOERE RE M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT T BT BB
Year ended 31 March 2017 HE-Z—+t5§
ZA=t+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONREFE 2,946 483 2834 6,263
Additions ANE - 1,439 2,015 3,454
Charge for the year FERY (1,820) (592) (1,133) (3,545)
Exchange differences &N ERE (166) 60 8 (98)
Closing net book amount FRREEE 960 1,390 3,724 6,074
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—t&=HA=+—H
Cost BA 6,555 3,259 7,691 17,505
Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAEE
and impairment (5,595) (1,869) (3,967) (11,431)
Net book amount REFE 960 1,390 3,724 6,074
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-Z—XE
ZSA=1+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONREFE 5,001 863 3,967 9,831
Additions NE 10 46 - 56
Charge for the year FERAY (1,988) (424) (1,133) (3,545)
Exchange differences EHERE (77) @ - (79)
Closing net book amount FARREEE 2,946 483 2,834 6,263
At 31 March 2016 R=-ZB-R"E=ZHB=+—-H
Cost AR 7,295 1,348 5,667 14,310
Accumulated depreciation ZEMERAEE
and impairment (4,349) (865) (2,833) (8,047)
Net book amount REFE 2,946 483 2,834 6,263

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017



14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+F=HA=+—HIFF&E

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease
term or 3 years
Equipment 33 1/3%
Furniture, fixtures, 33 1/3%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

As at 31 March 2017, the net book value of motor vehicles held
under a finance lease is nil (2016: approximately HK$2,834,000).

14. R M &G (8)

LAt ERE KRR B TR R E R RER
RERETE FIRBZEXRMT:

HEMEKE BEREFHK

SFCREE
B 33 1/3%
R EE - 331/3%
I NE L
aE 20%

R-E—+tF=A=+—H BRERELE
REZABRZEEHERT (ZT—RF:
#1785 %2,834,0007T ) °

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. AR E e mEE
2017 2016
—E—4F —TE—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed investments: FRE:
— Equity securities listed in Australia —POBRM BT 2 IR B S 66,861 75,466

The available-for-sale financial assets represent the Group’s
long term investment in ordinary shares of Kore Potash Limited
(“K2P”) (formerly known as “Elemental Mineral Limited” (“EML”)),
an unrelated listed company in Australia Securities Exchange.
They are denominated in AUD.

The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the Australia Securities
Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial asset which have been pledged as security for the
margin loans payable is approximately HK$47,055,000 (2016:
HK$53,111,000), details of which are set out in note 23.

AEEE B EERE AN % B RKore
Potash Limited ([K2P ]) (#i## [Elemental
Minerals Limited ] ([EML |) )z & i@ %
L EHRE ZRARANBRANEELSR S
Fr b SRR - HETILURITRE

B EMRABHEZ R AEHRBERREHR
POBRMNEHRZ BRI Z Prsmis HE e

R-_ZE—+tFE=ZA=+—R8 BEAEMR
BeERzBER B EeRmEE KR
E#) BB ¥47,055,0007C (ZF — NF 8
#53,111,0007T) - sEIEE N MEE23 -

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

16. INVENTORIES 16. 78
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEEF T
Food and beverages B 243 357
Wine JEAE 7,250 7,250
7,493 7,607
17. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 17. FHEE MTENFIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deposit placed in financial institution (note) TR s FHiRe
(BzE) - 773
Deposits and prepayment FHEe RIENFIE 11,469 12,590
11,469 13,363
Analysed for reporting purposes: TEmERE 2ol
Non-current assets IEMENEEE 3,172 2,582
Current assets MBEE 8,297 10,781
11,469 13,363
Note: P 5
As at 31 March 2017, a deposit of approximately nil (2016: HK$773,000) was RIZE—tF=A=+—H0 OFBZTT(ZZT—X
pledged to a financial institution to secure the margin loan payable as set out G BHET773,0000) 2R BEB T RSB
in note 283. BREMMRESER (GROMIF23FH) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+tF=HA=+—HIFF&E

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

18. RWEFLFIE

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

BT T BT

Loan receivables U E TR 410,468 184,018
Interest receivables eI FI) 8, 68,836 45,038
479,304 229,056

The loans and interest receivables are due from independent
third parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due dates
started from April 2015 to December 2017 (2016: started from
December 2014 to October 2016). The interest rates on the loan
and interest receivables are fixed ranging from 5% to 48% per
annum (2016: 10% to 48% per annum). No impairment loss was
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: nil).

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest
receivables net of impairment loss with loans presented based on
the loan drawn down date and interests accrued at the end of the
reporting period:

EWERRFAETEWELE =T 2 5IE
RERRREABEEERHE - —R1F
MARBREZZT—+F+ALE(ZE—RX
FZE-NE+_ARE_T—FT+
ALE) - FEREZEHME ZFEEE N TR
BFEE%Z48% (ZFE—RNF :BF10%2
48%) - BE-_E—+tF=ZA=+—HILF
EIEBERREBE (ZE—RF H\)-

EREZEAE (NBRBERE) RS H
KB BEEFRRNBH2R 2 ER T ETTE
RO

2017 2016

—E2—+tF AN

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 90 days 0HA 239,366 -
91 days to 180 days 91B E180H 85,928 5,542
181 days to 365 days 181H £365H 121,258 187,403
Over 365 days 365H A £ 32,752 36,111
479,304 229,056

The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan and
interest receivables are due for settlement at the date specified
in the respective loan agreements. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

FFARKERENEZAEEERRERTP
REERMBEAEE 2 BRI HEEE - K
SEYVERZFEHRFEEMERSD-

S8 8 O 5 A PR )
I LS

159



Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. EWE R KA E (&)

Included in the Group’s loan and interest receivables are loan
and interest receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately of HK$239,095,000 (2016: HK$28,536,000) which
are past due as the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances are either subsequently settled or the borrowers
are long relationship customers with repayment agreements
formulated or with the assets pledged subsequent to the end of
the reporting period.

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest
receivables net of impairment loss that are past due but not

ARG E 2 EREFR AL AR ERE M
REBEHEAREBY B R EBSBIREE
Z AR E 4978 #239,095,0007T ( ZZF—7<
& ¢ #08,536,0007T ) Z FEWE K F 8.
EREERADENRZEHEBREE 2&8ER
MEMRET L EEBBIEREEZRY
MR ZIEFIEHRERE REABER
ABRBBERP-

B (B R (B2 FE U B 3 R 8, (3R
EER) 2 ERAITNT

impaired:
2017 2016
—E2—+tF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Not yet due EENEEE 240,209 200,520
Within 30 days 30HA - 783
Over 181 days 181H A E 239,095 27,753
479,304 229,056

The movement of the impairment losses for loan and interest
receivables is set out below:

M ER LM E 2 REBBREEEIIMT -

2017 2016

—E2—tF —ERF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BT T BT

1 April mA—H - 2,335
Amount written off as uncollectable AaJ U e 2 58 - (2,335)
31 March =A=+—H - -

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+tF=HA=+—HIFF&E

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

The Group is carrying on financial leasing business during the
year. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the
contract date over the lease terms.

19. WA E R E A

AEBERFALHARBEMERS -HAR]
AR BRI RN A REE YR BEE
HIQ M 55 1N o

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BET T

Analysed as: DA
Current mah & 94,470 94,723
Non-current EREEH D - 6,579
94,470 101,302

Present value of

Minimum lease payments = minimum lease payments
REHEETK EEEENMZRE

2017 2016 2017 2016

2t —EZE-XF Bt "—IT—XF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T BETT BETT

Finance lease receivables comprise:  [EW A AT E BB :

Within one year R—FR 94,505 97,012 94,470 94,723

After two vears but within five years ~ —F & B RFER - 6,614 - 6,579

94,505 103,626 - 101,302

Less: unearned finance income B AREIAEE A (35) (2,324) - -
Present value of minimum lease FEURHERENRZRE

payment receivables 94,470 101,302 94,470 101,302

Effective interest rate of the above finance lease ranges from
6.15% to 6.61% per annum.

The fair value of finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2017 is
estimated to be HK$94,470,000 (2016: HK$101,302,000) using
an 6.15% (2016: 6.15%) discount rate based on quoted one year
swap rate and adding a credit margin that reflects the secured
nature of the receivables balance.

LB ERE 2 ERMNENFEFE15%E
6.61% °

RZTE—tF=A=+—H0 BURBEHEE

FIER) A A (EE T A8 #94,470,0007T (=
sz\ﬁ:;%ﬁ%m 302,0007T) + Ty iR P
H—FRBAF R EA5% (ZF— X
F:6.15% ) 5T & » W HN £ 7 I Bk fE W SR IE 45
B EAEENEERE

S 8 8 O 4 A PR )
I L
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFZF

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (Continued) 19.

As at 31 March 2017, finance lease receivables are secured over
the machinery and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted
to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the

lessee.

20. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

el gt & FHE FRIE (&)

A—TE—E=A=+—H ERREAE
I T AP E 2 2R
MAVEEHZBERT AEERELER

B R R

EME LA

20. H1EEEKRE

Held for trading investments include: RIEEERERE:
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
Listed securities held for trading, at fair value 1FEE 2 F &S A RE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REE LM ZREES
(note a) (M3Ea) 349,689 627,039
- Equity securities listed in the PRC — B LT RAES 2,854 2,871
352,543 629,910

The fair values of the above listed securities are determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange or the

market comparable approach at the end of the reporting period.

Note a: As at 31 March 2017, included in the held for trading investments

M 5ta -

RI|BEBMR Ll EESFZAREBENEE
BRI EBBESRZAARMHEEA
EXTIHSLBOEEE °

RZB—+F=R=+—H BARKKEE

is the Group’s investment in Superb Summit International Group
Limited (“Superb Summit”) which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, with a carrying amount of approximately HK$18,629,000
(2016: HK$26,879,000). The investment represented approximately
1.3% (2016: 1.3%) shareholding of the ordinary shares of Superb
Summit International Group Limited. As at 31 March 2017 and 2016,
the trading of the listed equity of Superb Summit was suspended
and the fair value of the Company’s investment in the listed equity
of Superb Summit has been determined using market comparable
approach reflects recent market value of comparable companies
with similar business, adjusted for differences in nature, scope and
location of the business.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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EREZEAAAKERTERAREEE
RAR ([Fig] REBBRRET) 218
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 B Z=F—+tF=HA=+—HIFFE

20. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)

21.

Included in the held for trading investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of relevant group entities:

20. BH1EEEKE (®)

FEFEEREABEATAREEEER 2D
BEEBISN N BB HEZ S8

2017 2016

—E—4E —E—RHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

RMB AR 2,854 2,871

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of held for trading
investments which have been pledged as security for the
margin loan payable is approximately HK$311,234,000 (2016:
HK$569,544,000), details of which are set out in note 23.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

R-_TE—+tFZA=+—HBH EEEY
B 8311,234,000 (ZE —RF: B
569,544,0007T) 2 FHIEFEEIRE D HFER
ERREERNER  GREFIBEEHNME
23 °

1. P IT A

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =N AE =N
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT BT T
Derivatives not under hedge FREMEEZITELR
accounting
Equity call options (note i) R 73R 0 ERRE (P ED) - = - -
Derivative financial assets in respect ~ AJ G (G5 2
of early redemption options on REERRE
convertible bonds (note ii) PTESRBEE (M) 32,988 - - -
Derivative financial liabilities in respect  FLE /T AR ES 2
of call option on issuance of REHEZTTEcRAE
convertible (B i)
bonds (note iii) - 252,021 - -
Crude oil future contract (note iv) [RAEESL (MEv) - - 711 -
- 252,021 711 -
S0 R84 1B A B )

I L
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21.

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

)

(il

(i)

The equity call option was attached to the Group’s long term
investment in EML. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
did not exercise the option and it lapsed on 16 January 2016. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$1,728,000 has been recognised under
“Loss arising from change in fair value of derivative financial assets, net”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2016.

On 17 February 2017 and 14 March 2017, the Group issued
convertible bonds with coupon rate of 7% per annum at a total
principal value of HK$279,500,000. The convertible bonds contained
a clause of early redemption by the Group. The aggregate fair values
of the early redemption options of approximately HK$28,177,000 have
been recognised under “derivative financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position on the corresponding subscription
date and reassessed at 31 March 2017, amounting to approximately
HK$32,988,000, resulting in a total fair value gain of HK$4,811,000
being recognised under “Gain (loss) arising from changes in fair value of
derivative financial assets, net” in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

On 23 December 2016, 21 February 2017 and 3 March 2017,
the Company has entered into subscription agreements (the
“Agreements”) to issue convertible bonds at the principal amounts of
HK$850,000,000, HK$59,500,000 and HK$400,000,000 respectively
to independent third parties with coupon rate of 7% per annum and
3-year maturity since their corresponding issuance date for the purpose
of financing the investment in the future expansion and as general
working capital. Pursuant to the Agreements, the contractual provisions
in relation to issuance of convertible bonds with aggregated principal
amount of HK$1,309,500,000 were established and the derivative
financial liabilities in respect of call option on issuance of the convertible
bonds were recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, call option on issuance of
convertible bonds with principal of HK$400,000,000 was cancelled and
principal amount of HK$279,500,000 was issued as convertible bonds
as detailed in note 27.

The fair value of the derivative financial liabilities for the abovementioned
call option exercised during the year was reassessed before the
issuance of the respective convertible bonds and the fair value of the
remaining unexercised call option was assessed as at 31 March 2017
resulting an aggregate fair value loss of HK$279,448,000 recognised
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial
liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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RNEEREML K R & MY 5 0% 2GR 0 R 4 -
HE—T— ﬁi?ﬁ?+famig’$$l
WETEERERER-_Z—XR"E—A+X
Ak - A EREBLEE1,728,00070E R E
BT -REZAZ+—HLEFEZAHIE
HENTESREEZANEBEEEZE
BOFEIETER.

RZE—tEtF-_A+EARZZT—LF
—H+@H*$$@% $f@%ﬁ%m
279,500,0007T  FEE X B7% .2 Al R (E
HFor R EFHETHAEEIRANER
ZHEF-RABEOE BREAELOBE
28,177,0007T B, A 1B E R B EAmd & OF B 75
MARAMTESREE| B TERLR =

T+ HE A=+ —BEHTHEAEHBE
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EtiﬁZéﬁﬁm%WFwi@@éEZA
nREEEEE 2 W (BE) JFEIBETHE
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RZZE—R"F+_A=Z+=H -ZF—+tF=
A-+—AER-—Z—+tE=ZA=H ARQRA2
IR ([ZEHE]) UABLE=H
BT AR S H 5l A7 #850,000,0007T * 75 H
59,500,0007T } /& #400,000,0007T 2 2 B =&
AREFTRREEAREITARE=FER2
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R—REEES BEZZHE BERTE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(iii) (Continued)

On 28 June 2013, the Company has entered into subscription
agreement to issue convertible bonds at a total principal amount
of HK$620,000,000 to ultimate holding company, Wincon Capital
Investment Limited with zero coupon rate and a 2-year maturity since
the issuance date for the purpose of financing the investment in the
future expansion and as general working capital.

As at 1 April 2015, the Company had principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 remained unissued and such call option was
exercised during the year ended 31 March 2016 with issuance of
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$600,000,000 as
detailed in note 27. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
respective fair value of derivative financial liabilities were reassessed
before the issuance of the respective convertible bonds as mentioned
in note 27 resulting an aggregate fair value loss of HK$213,321,000
recognised under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivative financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.. Details of the issue of
and the subscription for the convertible bonds are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 28 June 2013, 24 April 2014,
8 January 2015, 16 January 2015, 8 June 2015 and 16 June 2015
and the circulars of the Company dated 15 December 2014 and 2
March 2015.

PTESR T A (@)

MEE:

(i)

(&)

(%)

RZE—=ZF A+ N\B ARFIBEIVR
BB 178 LA B 1T AN & 48 58 & 75 16620,000,0007T
TEE RN EBITHIRME S M AT RRE
HFFRLIERARIKBEARZERRAT M
BAREERERERUESRIEA—REES
G o

R-E—AFWNA—B AARBEEBE
600,000,0007T 2 A BN AT REMERE
HEEREBEE T A"E=ZA=+—HLFE
W%ﬁﬁv%ﬂ$$%%M&mpmomﬁZT
HIES (RmnM 27T s) - HE—T—

EEHE+*E¢¢§W‘%$&@E%%@
ZARECRBITEBIBRRES ZATES
et fh (Banp Bovpril) - EA 2 AREE
BB 213,321,000 REE — T —RF
A=t HULFEZGABREARN[ITES
MEBEZANEESEELEZEEB] BB THER-
BT RABE AR ES 2 FIERR AR B
AZE—=FXA=Z+/\B Z=T—WFNA

—+mE - —=-"EF-AN\B - —2—AF
—A+~B - —E-RAFEAANBR-Z—F
FERATRBZRAMURARGBHA-S

—NFE+-_A+RBAR-_ZE—HF=A_H
ZIBEKA o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFZ

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Major terms of the crude oil future contract as at 31 March 2016 is as

follows:

Quantity
Particular (Unit) Maturity
Crude oil Aug 16 30 20 July 2016

The fair value of the above future contract are determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the New York Mercantile
Exchange on the date of initial recognition and at the end of the

reporting period.

Realised gain on settlement of derivative financial assets of
approximately HK$907,000 (2016: HK$30,726,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 March 2017. All future contract was sold during the year ended 31

March 2017.

The fair value of the derivative financial assets on 31 March 2016
amounted to approximately HK$711,000, resulting a fair value gain of
approximately HK$711,000 being recognised under “(Loss) gain arising
from changes in fair value of derivative financial assets, net”
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March

2016.

Included in the derivative financial instruments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of relevant group entities:

N
i

HF
k>
30|
j==n)
H
m
i

GEE

(v)

TEL®T

RIBE-REZA=+—RB Ra#EaH2
TEERREIINT

HE
B (Bfr) MA
R#wNAA+<E 80 ZZE-RFLHZ-t+H
RNFHERBMRRREHR - HARESL

ZRAREDREITRANE R ZFAESZ
MR EABET -

HETESREEZEEHERENEE
907,0007T ( =& — /< 4 : 7 130,726,0007T )
CREE-_E—+F=B=+—BIFEZ
A IBERAER FTEHEANEREEZEZ
T—+FE=ZA=+—HIFEEL-

RZE—ARE=ZA=1+—BiTEemEEZ
NAEKRBEMETI1,0000T EXRRERE
HEET11,000C REBEZS—"F=A
=T —HIEFEZEHEBERRANITEE/E
EZAnBEESEEY (BE)WEFHEIET
TR

BETIINGEHEEER Y

ML E % LM\\ZT%JTEZ&%

2017 2016

—g—t5 T AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Usb £ = 711
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqt§
H PF 4 $i 3R 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B #Z=F—+F=HA=+—HIFFE&E

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. RE KR FHEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held, and short-term RekReFEVEEMFERS  KRIH
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less R A= @A AR 2 RERIT R RN
and cash placed with financial institutions as follows: TREE RSN
2017 2016
—E—4F —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRELFRRESD 76,894 16,103
Cash at financial institutions RemigE s Re 8 2,209
76,902 18,312
Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at market BITHSERNERBBZ2HSENT
rates which range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) F0.01%=20.35% (ZF —NF :0.01%=
per annum. 0.35% ) Z TG F| 5T B o
Included in the cash and cash equivalents are the following RENRSFEYRIETIAREREEE
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional BB EE N EBEHE 225

currency of relevant group entities:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BEET T BT

US dollar ETT 111 1,817
RMB AR 93 104
AUD BT 71 366
Other currencies H i F i 111 116
S0 A 3 A R 2 )

—g—tbgey 107
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22.

23.

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$56,715,000 (2016: HK$8,975,000) are placed with banks
in the PRC. The remittance of those funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

MARGIN LOANS PAYABLE

As at 31 March 2017, the margin loans payable was secured by
the listed equity securities placed in financial institution held under
the margin accounts with total market value of approximately
HK$358,289,000 (notes 15 and 20).

As at 31 March 2016, the margin loans payable was secured
by the listed equity securities and deposit placed in financial
institution held under margin accounts with total market value
and carrying value of approximately HK$622,655,000 and
HK$773,000 respectively (notes 15, 17 and 20).

The margin loans payable carried a fixed interest rate at 3%
(2016: 3%) per annum.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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22.

23.

Be MREEFEED (@)

TEBEZHE2ERSEEDHEE
56,715,0007T ( =& — /N F B 18,975,000
L) IFEERFRRZIRT - BREEELF
B 78 52 PR PA A B RS B B 2 IINEE & 7611 BR )

B RESER
R-TB—+FE=A=1+—R0 WmEEELED
7 #358,289,0007T 7 E R FE & B F T A
RESEFETHZREMBETRZ L
HRAFEHEER (MIFE155%20) °

RZE-—RE=ZA=+—H MHEELEERX
IRTEE 5 Bl & 47 #622,655,0007T & 78 B
773,0007T 2 E TR 7E €@ B R TI AR FE & BR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

24. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS 24. BRI TFARE REREHN
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Trade creditors B S EARR 473 374
Other creditors, deposits and accruals (note)  EAEM R - FAK S K&
TEREM (M) 35,519 65,347
35,992 65,721
Note: Included in other creditors, deposits and accruals was an amount Wt EMEMERR FARSLBEREARENS
of approximately HK$6,240,000 (2016: HK$51,296,000) which #6,240,0007T ( = Z — /N : 151,296,000
represented the consideration payable the non-controlling interests TIZHE R T R"E—A+— Btk
in respect of the acquisition of the remaining 37.5% of issued share BB AR TI7.5%C HITIRARENIE
capital of a subsidiary on 11 January 2016 as disclosed in note 37. The BERER 2 RE (M FES7TAIRE) « 2K
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BAEER REREREXRREE-
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors presented RBEAR EHRNEFILEZAHENR
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period. RO
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
Within 60 days 60H A 355 154
61 — 90 days 61%290H 118 220
473 374
The average credit term on trade creditors is 60 days. The Group BSRNERFHEEHACOR - AREEH
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all BT RERERBER  BRATEEMNK
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. EHNMEZEBRREE -
S0 R84 1 A PR )
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

25. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 25. RETH S A
A motor vehicle of the Group is held under a finance lease for the AEBHEZE-T-R"F=A=1T—HILFE
year ended 31 March 2016. The lease term was 3.4 years. The ZERBERENERE -THHR34F B
obligation under a finance lease carried effective interest rate at BHEREREFIT79% 2 ERFIRT B -
3.79% per annum. Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. MEREGHBHETE -HEDREEENE
The lease was on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements EEERTERKIABSIRETLLHE -

had been entered into for contingent rental payments.

Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
REEENK EEEENMZRAE
At 31 March At 31 March
R=A=+-8H R=RA=+-8H
2017 2016 2017 2016

—2-tFf —T-%F ZB-tF Z—T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET R BT BETR BETT

Amount payable under a finance lease I ETHETE NEN 2 1B

Within one year R—ER - 1,400 = 1,374
- 1,400 - 1,374
Less: future finance charges B RREVE B - (26) = N/A
Present value of lease obligation HEAEZHE - 1,374 - 1,374
Less: amount due for settlement BN T EBRNGEE 28
with twelve months (2R RBEEET)
(shown under current liabilities) - (1,374)
Amount due for settlement after RT-ERREE ZRIE
twelve months - -
The Company’s obligation under a finance lease was secured RABRBERERE N 2AETREEAZ
by the lessors’ charge over the leased asset. Such pledge was MEEEEBER RZE—+tF_H B#
released upon the full repayment of the obligation under finance EIHONBEEEMEHEE T O AERER

lease in February 2017. B e
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+tF=HA=+—HIFF&E

26. IR

Number of shares

Share capital

I8 A [N
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+&E —T—F ZEBE-—t& —ZT—XF
"000 '000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F i F BETT BB
Authorised ordinary shares of FEELRREREE
HK$0.01 each: BH0.017T:
At the beginning and the end of RIBFEEFTNRER
the financial year 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares ~ B %17 MBS 2 LEAL
of HK$0.01 each: BREEEK0.017T:
At the beginning of the financial year ~ BB FEF 1) 4,935,796 3,304,640 49,358 33,046
— Issue of ordinary shares upon — AT R RS
exercise of share options (note (i) BT @M (MEEG) 69,765 18,800 698 188
— Issue of ordinary shares upon —RER AR EHE
conversion of convertible bonds BITEBER
(note (i) (B & Gi) ) 424,242 1,909,091 4,242 19,091
— Shares repurchased and cancelled ~ — (a1 88 J 5 85 A% 19
(note (i) (PR 3 i) ) (111,640) (296,735) (1,116) (2,967)
At the end of the financial year REBREREER 5,318,163 4,935,796 53,182 49,358
S 004 0 4 E 4T IR A )

I LS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26. BN (@)

Notes: B 5 -

R

REE-Z—tF=A=+—-HIEFEA"

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, options were exercised

to subscribe for 69,765,000 (2016: 18,800,000) ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$30,395,000 (2016: HK$8,580,000) in which
approximately HK$698,000 (2016: HK$188,000) was credited to
share capital and the balance of approximately HK$29,697,000 (2016:
HK$8,392,000) was credited to the share premium account. Share
capital reserve of approximately HK$11,898,000 (2016: HK$3,262,000)
has been transferred correspondingly to the share premium account in
according with policy set out in note 3. The new shares rank pari passu
with the existing shares issued in all respects.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$100,000,000 were converted into 454,545,453
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed
conversion price of HK$0.22 per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$20,000,000 and HK$460,000,000 were converted into
60,606,060 and 1,393,939,391 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each respectively at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33 per
share respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$140,000,000 were converted into 424,242,424
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed
conversion price of HK$0.33 per share.

All the new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

BE IS HEJE 1T (5 LA SR BE 2K 12 7169,765,0000% ( —
T — /X4 1 18,800,0008% ) & % 1 & 7 #50.01
JLZ TR 48R (E 4 BB 30,395,000
(ZZ—NF:#18,580,0007T) A48
#6098,0007T (== — /< 4F 1 #188,0007T )
B AT AR AR % #4858 4078 % 29,697,0007T (=
T — N4 1 518,392,0007T ) B i A RN E
B o B 7 3 4 #9078 111,898,0007T ( — & — 7%
F 5 ¥53,262,0007T) B 1B & M 73T H, 2 X
R ERMEER - RO NSHEHE
WECEITRNHZERSHAL

HE-Z-—XE=ZA=+—HLFE F£28
78 %100,000,0007T 2 AT AR EH B IZE T
% (E 5 I8 150.22 T ¥ B 454,545,453
e EESBOI T2 B

HE-Z—RE=ZA=+—80 ALEAEK
20,000,0007T ¥ 78 #460,000,0007T 2 A # i
EHFDIRE IR ETRAER0.337TH Bl E
#17560,606,0608% }.1,393,939,3910% & % @
BB L EAR -

HE-_Z—+tE=ZA=+—HLFE XALH
A7 ¥140,000,0007T K 2 AT R &5 B R E
FHEBREERBE0.33THRlERAKRAT
424,242 A24[% T iR 7B ¥50.01 70 @Ak

PAECETHENES T HERRERMNZE
BREEMAL -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ=F—+tF=HA=+—HIFF&E

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

During the year 2017, the Company repurchased its own shares
through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as follows:

26. AR (&)

M (48)

(i)

R_T—tFR ARARBBEEHZAMOE
HEAZRAD A TAIR:

No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
BREE
BE0.01TZ
Month of repurchase B8 A% ZERYAE BRER SfBARE
Highest Lowest
BaE BIKE
HK$’000 HK$ HKS$ HK$’000
Fh& B s BT T
Apr 2016 ZE-XFWA 27,465 0.69 0.65 18,608
May 2016 —ZE-XFRA 3,150 0.67 0.65 2,070
Jun 2016 ZE-RFEARA 1,000 0.78 0.78 782
Jul 2016 ZE-RFEA 20,000 0.79 0.72 15,060
Aug 2016 ZE-RFNA 60,025 0.75 0.60 40,780
111,640

During the year 2016, the Company repurchased its own shares
through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as follows:

RE-F—RNER NRBEBEBHRMEE
HARG A - TP :

No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
BREE
#AH0.01T 2
Month of repurchase = & B 14 TERHA BRER EHERE
Highest Lowest
BefE BIEE
HK$’'000 HK$ HK$ HK$’000
F A B ok BB T T
July 2015 —E—hFtA 51,335 0.79 0.55 34,792
Aug 2015 —ZE—-RFNA 49,225 0.79 0.51 30,869
Sept 2015 —ET—RFNA 38,005 0.69 0.62 25,020
Oct 2015 —E—AF+A 4,990 0.80 0.76 3,892
Nov 2015 —E-RF+—A 13,5625 0.70 0.63 9,015
Dec 2015 —T-RF+=A 11,200 0.76 0.73 8,260
Jan 2016 ZE—RF—A 30,975 0.74 0.65 21,432
Feb 2016 —E-RFZA 42,775 0.72 0.58 27,059
Mar 2016 ZE-RFE=A 54,705 0.76 0.66 38,588
296,735
S0 R84 1 A PR )

I LS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF 9 5 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # % —

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

27. AIHMIRES

CB1 CB2 CB3 Total
MRBRER THEREF2 TRRESS a5
(note (i) (note (ii)) (note (iii))
(PEEG)) (PR =EGi)) (PR 3 i) )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT T
Liability component at 1 April 2015 ~ R-Z—HFMA—HBHZ
SR 63,141 14,776 - 77,917
Add: Liability component on m:RFERAR 2 BEBH
initial recognition - 438,444 - 438,444
Add: Effective interest expense m:ERFEE 3,010 24,317 - 27,327
Reclassification of accrued coupon BN BEGRS
interest to other creditors H e~ MIE (4,646) - - (4,646)
Converted into ordinary shares BaEm e @k (MiEe)
(note 26) (61,505  (362,123) - (423,628)
Liability component at 31 March RZE-—R"F=F=1+—HK
2016 and 1 April 2016 —E-RENA-HZ
EREEE ) - 115,414 - 115,414
Add: Liability component m:ROFERE 2 BEEHH
on initial recognition - - 222,246 222,246
Add: Effective interest expense m-EBRMNEER - 5,017 3,841 8,858
Reclassification of accrued coupon EMNERIERR
interest to other creditors Hh e~ RUR - - (2,020) (2,020)
Converted into ordinary shares SR aLERk (fEe)
(note 26) - (120,431) - (120,431)
Liability component at 31 March 2017 R -Z—+&F=F=+—H
Z BB - - 224,067 224,067
The convertible bonds - liability component are classified under AMRES -AEHH IOBRRERDEE

non-current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 2% per
annum at a total principal value of HK$100,000,000 on 28 March
2013 and HK$100,000,000 on 31 May 2013 (the “CB 1”) to four
independent third parties (the “bondholders”). The convertible bonds
will mature at 27 March 2018 and 30 May 2018 respectively at its
principal amount or can be converted into 909,090,000 shares at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.22 per share.

As at 1 April 2015, the outstanding principal amounts of CB1 was
approximately HK$100,000,000. As disclosed in note 26(ii), during
the year ended 31 March 2016, the remaining convertible bonds were
converted into 454,545,453 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.22 per share.

The Group issued convertible bonds with zero coupon rate at a total
principal value of HK$20,000,000 on 8 January 2015 (the “CB 2”) to
its ultimate holding company, Wincon Capital Investment Limited. The
convertible bonds will mature on 7 January 2017 at its principal amount
or can be converted into 60,606,060 shares at any time between the
date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.33 per share.

As discussed in note 26(ii), during the year ended 31 March 2016,
the convertible bonds with total principal value of amounts of
HK$20,000,000 were fully converted into 60,606,060 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33 per share.

The Group further issued CB 2 with zero coupon rate at a total principal
value of HK$600,000,000 to its ultimate holding company, Wincon
Capital Investment Limited. The convertible bonds will mature at two
years after issuing of the convertible bonds. The detail maturity dates of
each batch of issue are shown in following table at its principal amount
or can be converted into 1,818,181,818 shares at any time between
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.33 per share.

(i)

27. Aﬂ?ﬁﬂxf 5 (48)

ﬁ‘i@ —E—=ZF=ZA=-+NBETLE
4858 A7 100,000,000L R — 2 —=4FH
ﬂ:+ A3 {74 ¢ 488 A% %100,000,000
TEERBFF2% 2 AIRKRES ([ARKRE
F1)FUEBYE=F ([BFFHBAA]) -7
BRESFBEI IR =ZE—N\F=A=++tH
T \FRA=-+THEEASBEIHNK
EHFRFEARBRSRAEK0 22T 2 thREE
2 /5909,090,0000% f% {7

R-ZE—RFEMNA—B AR EFIZEER
B8 R 5% BB 100,000,0007T ° #A0H 3
2B(NFTHEE BHE-T—AF=A=+—H1t
FE Rl R ES A FREB0.22T 2 A
TE R (B 810 5454,545,4530 AR EE B
0.01TTZ LAk -

REBR-_T—AF—ANBETEASLE
A#A%20,000,000LE B R AT 2 Al BKES
(IR EH2])) FESKRIERARKEER
WEBRAR AT RRESFER T —+F—
At BRERSHEIBRESBTAA (RBT
AR ES 2 B 2R Em B HREER) TR g
R EAE0.337T 2 th F #18 560,606,060%
B& 15

Banft sFos(ifTE R B EZTE —RNF=A
=+ —HIEFE  A$ A% KB 20,000,000
L2 A RES DR ERAB 033 T 2 BT E

(B R B 1% £60,606,0600% &A% & 4 #50.1
TLZ ERAR o

AEBE - BBTRASBLERBE
600,000, OOOEZTEETWQﬁa%z%Er%
ERAFKEERZEEGRAR - A[RKRES
TSR EITAI AR EF B MF R - SBITHX
ZHMBEHAR TRIZEASEMTHES
BAEAN (RBITAIRRKRES 2B ZERERB
FIREES ) AR IBIR S RIB0.33 T 2 L REF R
71,818,181,818 A% 5 ©

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I LS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z —ZF—

tFZA=F—HILFE

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(Continued)

The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2016
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as

27. Al ES (&)

MiEE: (&)

(ii) (&)

E_E-ANF- A+ -HILEFEEETY
RE B R AR Z AT RRESINT

follows:
8 June 16 June 23 June 25 June 30 June 2uly 3duly 6 July 7 duly 8 July
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 Total
“2-1%  ZF-BfF “E-1F CE-1fF “%-1% %1% 21§ %1 Z2-1f
~ANE AATAE ARZTZR RAZTEA tAZR tA=R tARE tAth tANB At
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EETT BRI BRI AETR AETT ABTT TR EETT EETT BT BT
Cash received 30,000 35,000 35,000 60,000 20,000 20,000 50,000 70,000 120,000 160,000 600,000
Fair values of derivative financia AME
ligbilties (note) 74,557 80,704 80,708 118,283 23,946 25,027 57,240 85,966 137,263 148,260 831,954
Fair values of convertble bonds issued BRI RRES 2 A% 104,557 115,704 115,708 178,283 43,946 45,027 107,240 155,966 257,263 308,260 1,431,954
Less: Eouity conversion component 8+ ERE# 1) (82,641) (%0,128) (90,132 (134438) (29,831) (30412 (70,702 (104813) (169,573) (191,340) (993510)
Liabity component on infial recognifion %17 R BN 5 22
atissued date BEFH 21916 25,576 25,576 43845 14615 14615 36,538 51,153 87,690 116,920 438,444
Maturity date IR TJne 2017 15June 2017 22June 2017 24June 2017 29 June 2017 1 July 2017 2Juy 2017 5July 2017 6 July 2017 7 Jduy 2017
IftF ZTtF ZFtF I3t IRt IR ZR4F ZR4F ZR4E ZR4f
~ALE ~AtER AAZTZR RAZTEA RAZHAR tA-A tAZR AR tARA tAtH

Note: Within the total of fair value of derivative financial liabilities above,
amount of approximately HK$618,633,000 has been recognised
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative
financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss for the year ended 31 March 2015. The remaining amount

of approximately HK$213,321,000 was recognised under the

“Loss arising from change in the fair value of derivative financial

liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the

year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the convertible bonds with
total principal amounts of HK$460,000,000 were converted into
1,393,939,391 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion
price of HK$0.33 per share.

As discussed in note 26(ii), during the year ended 31 March 2017,
convertible bonds with principal amounts of HK$140,000,000 were
converted into 424,242,424 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33 per share.

The fair value of the convertible bonds of HK$438,444,000 was valued
by an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), as at issue date. The convertible bonds
comprise a liability component and an equity conversion component.
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Mz REdfTESRmBRz A ANERES

495 %618,633,000t 2 CEEREZE

T—RAF=RA=+—RHILFEZEH

aﬁﬁi\% (PTEsRBaEz AN EEEE

A7 1R ) INTERR - #9787213,321,000

TTHEEREE T —RF=A=1+—

HIEFEZAMHBER{TESRBE
ZAREEBEL ZEIE] NER-

HE-_Z—X"F=ZA=+t—BILHEE &
4 48 %8 &% #460,000,0007T 2 A # % &
FAGRBEOISTZE THBREERA
1,393,939,391 % & f% F B8 ¥£0.017t 2 L i
HXCLD

WA 26T R R B E T+ F = A
=+—ALFE - AL A% ABEE140,000,000
L2 AR EHF SRS B 0.3t 2 BT E
BB R 5424,242 42405 5 B3 T {8 74 1£0.01
T2 ERR

AR EH 2 A A (B 78 #438,444,0007T T5 EE
B L ERM PRI ETERABAERA
(TREEAT]) NEITH B TIEE - EJW;J,\
HEIEA BN KRB -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

(Continued)

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated
by using a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-
convertible bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were
valued by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in the convertible bond-equity conversion reserve under equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group issued convertible bonds with 7% coupon rate at a total
principal value of HK$279,500,000 on 17 February 2017 and 14 March
2017 (the “CB 3”) to an independent third party. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 328,823,529 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’'s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following
the date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly or fully redeem the
convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to
the bondholder.

The fair value of the CB 3 was valued by an independent valuer, JLL, as
at 17 February 2017 and 14 March 2017 respectively. The convertible
bonds comprise a derivative component, a liability component and an
equity conversion component.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated
by using a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-
convertible bonds. The fair values of the early redemption options
were valued by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in the convertible bond-equity conversion reserve under equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

(i

(i)

27. A MR ESH (&)
G

(%)

(%)

FEETESRED Z A AETHE AR AT &
R AR S Z TSN R E - AR E 5
ZAREHER B HEEERIGET G
{858 (RENEEEREN ZEE) IEA
ARBIHAE NEEERIA T 2 A RRES &
mE R

REBR-_ZT—+F = ﬂ+tEl& —+F
=A+mA %éﬁzmﬁ > %279,500,000
m?%T_\127}%&1,\%(W%ﬁﬁﬁ1%%3j)
FT—RZBUE= A RREFSRENERE
BHITASBRHIFEAIYPHRESFTEA (R
BOABRRES 2B -EAZRERA Y
RIBERS ) AR B BB 0.85 L 2 L R
328,823 ,520/% % 15 ° AN Bl #E B BT A]
BRES 2 B&15E A ERREBREFS
BABY—EAZEEE@mME MR RE
HIRFREE A SRR ES -

AR 25732 A S 1E T i 98 L1 (B A 7 8 B
TARR—F—tF-_ATEAR=-ZF—t
F=RA+MAETEE TRRESBEITE
By BEE D RESERED -
FELEmEHFED 2 RAMETE AR E
HRABBRES 2 TISHNERGE - RFEE
Bz A ETER A R EREE
1TflE < =M (RER RS HREN 2 EE) Ty
ERARRABEE ARG ERER T 2 AR E
FERBREE-

S8 4 T 5 A PR )
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Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(iii) (Continued)

The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2017

27. A MR ESH (&)

MiEE: (&)

iy (&)

REHMBRARARERZBE_FT—LF=A

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as =+ —BIEFERBBEITZAIRRESNT
follows:
17 February 2016 14 March 2017 Total
NS —T—+tF
—A+tH =A+mA &&t
HK$'000 HKS HK$
BT T BT T BT T
Cash received BWHE e 220,000 59,500 279,500
Fair values of derivative financial MEesmBEsANE
liabilities 21,467 5,960 27,427
Fair values of convertible BERTABMRES 2 ANE
bonds issued 241,467 65,460 306,927
Fair values of financial assets EHMEEZARE 21,030 7,147 28,177
Equity conversion component EmEHnIGn (88,189) (24,669) (112,858)
Liability component on initial RE1TH BRI HERE 2
recognition at issue date BEHH 174,308 47,938 222,246

Maturity date

Notes:

258 H

Within the total of fair value of derivative financial liabilities above,
amount of approximately HK$27,427,000 has been recognised under
the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial

liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year

ended 31 March 2017.

The fair values of financial assets represented the early redemption
options granted to the issuer of the convertible bonds.

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax relates to the same fiscal authority.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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17 February 2020 14 March 2020

—H++A =A+mA
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RERSTESRBEZALBELET LB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen‘t‘s
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=HA=+—HIFFZF
28. MIEFTEH A E (8)
UWTAAFERBAFEEERZEBREE
HEeE(BE)REZHER:

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:
Unrealised
gain on
investments
Accelerated at fair value
tax  through profit
depreciation or loss Tax losses Total
REH
BARE
B EEZREZ
mERE AERWH REER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-RF=ZR=1T—H 380 7 (451) -
(Crediited) charged to profit or loss K& (FEA) kR ) 148 (140) -
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016~ RZZ—R"E=A=+—H
kZ_ZE-X"FHA—A 372 219 (591) -
(Credited) charged to profit or loss KRRz (GEA) kR 409 (208) (201) -
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+E=A=1+—H 781 11 (792 -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$379,929,000 (2016:
HK$352,625,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$4,800,000 (2016: HK$3,582,000) of such
losses.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately HK$375,129,000
(2016: HK$349,043,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of approximately HK$5,032,000 (2016: HK$3,273,000) that will
expire in the next five years. Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

RBEHR AEBBERDBHBEIR
#) 75 #379,929,0007T (Z T — /R F 1 B ¥
352,625,0007T ) A (3K $5 7R 2 s 7 o B BhAZ
LESE P 478 #4,800,0007T ( ZF— 7R F:
7 #£3,5682,0007T ) HEFRIEE R IA L E »

R PA AR 2Rk ) SRR < S °] TR - a3 48 wh
TARBAHIEEELB1375,129,0007T (=
T — X 7B 15349,043,0007T ) FE R AR
ERIEE E o RERIABE B IEFR AR
A FEm 2 B 18 4078 #5,032,0000T (= F
— 7N 863,273,000 ) o H b &5 18 A] 4
PR A4S 82 o

S8 4 T 5 A PR )
I LS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

28.

29.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$3,207,000 (2016:
HK$1,860,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$2,567,000
(2016: HK$2,098,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the margin loans payable disclosed in note 23 and
obligation under a finance lease disclosed in note 25, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risk associated with
each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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28.

29.
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R|EBRR - NEB S T I0RBREE
KA B #3,207,000C (ZE —RF: 8K
1,860,0007T ) ° AR A A] REJE 1S FE SR B o
A ARSI R S R 258 M ERE
BB TR EEERTAECHIBAE -

BECEMBSHE BTN \F—A—H
BEPEWNBARFRIUEMN SR 2 EA
BURTENB - W ERNEH M BHRERARFEH
BB A Rl REHE 48 ¥2,567,0007T (=
T — N B #2,008,0000T ) FE(R 2 E R =
BMBEERIBIELBRE FREANEBERESN
THZEENEE  ROREARZEERE
REAS K AT e P FB R A% SR B [e] o

BEARE R E IR
FEETEAAAEE NRGERARNSE
BERIUNEERELSE RAFBRE(LE
B RAER S AR R FRE AL AEH
BEERE RS-

AEBEZEARBEEEHFR (BREME
23T BE < FE TR TE & B R M P 3T 25 AT 2 58
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)

(B)

30. ®@ T H

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL (A €RITENER
INSTRUMENTS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Financial assets cREE
FVTPL REZFEEANERERE
— Held for trading investments —FIEEERE 352,543 629,910
— Derivative financial instruments —TEEmMT A 32,988 711
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHE S mﬂé% 66,861 75,466
Loans and receivables (including cash & & & & WK
and cash equivalents) (BERE &Eﬁﬁ FEM) 660,389 360,440
1,112,781 1,066,527
Financial liabilities EWmEeE
Derivative financial instruments THEEBmITE 252,021 -
At amortised cost R EA AR 471,910 561,594
723,931 561,594
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) £rEAMEEENREBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale financial assets, deposits, loan and interest
receivables, finance lease receivable, derivative financial
instruments, held for trading investments, cash and cash
equivalents, margin loans payable, creditors, deposits
and accruals, amounts due to related companies, amount
due to a director, obligation under a finance lease and
convertible bonds. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk

)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate finance lease receivable, loan
receivables, margin loans payable and obligation
under a finance lease.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate short-term bank
deposits carried at prevailing market rates.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in HK$ and RMB base deposit
rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s bank balances denominated in
RMB.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=HA=+—HIFFZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. 1% (2016: 1%) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by
1% (2016: 1%) and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$521,000 (2016: decrease/increase
by approximately HK$109,000) resulting from the
changes in the interest income from bank deposits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &% —

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

—tF=RA=F—HIFE

30. e T A (g

(B) €REAMEE B M REBUER (#)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Foreign Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most transactions mainly settled in HK$. As at 31
March 2017, the Group holds available-for-sale
financial assets, held for trading investments and
bank deposits denominated in Australian dollar
(“AUD”) and bank deposits denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the Group’s functional currency. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure

i 55 )R B ()
(i) SP % B

REBEIERBBEEER A
AHEORPEBUBEEF A
E—+tF=ZA=+—H &%
ERALRIT (DRT])EEZ
A EEMmEE FEEER
B RBITFERARUARE (TA
E¥ ) HEZ IRITFER - SNER
BRERREERHACHERE
EBENITIFAEEEEE
ZEMTERES AEEN &
SNEE R - AT BEEES
ERIMNER B RNV ERERE

//

and will consider hedging the potential foreign HORBEINE R g
currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets RBFEBRR AEEUARBEHESE
denominated in currencies other than the respective EERB s SEEEENUIINCZE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities at BaEcEEECREAEN
the end of the reporting period are as follows: ™
Assets
BE
2017 2016
ZE—+F —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
AUD JBIT 66,932 75,832
RVB AR 2,947 2,975
Others EAfh 222 793

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

30. e T A (g
(B) €REAMEE B M REBUER (#)

i 55 JE B (1)
(i) PR B (4)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Foreign Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to AUD and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 1% (2016: 1%) increase and decrease in
the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, RMB or HK$, against the relevant foreign
currencies. 1% (2016: 1%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 1% (2016: 1%) change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss for the year where the respective
functional currencies (HK$ or RMB) strengthens 1%
(2016: 1%) against the relevant foreign currency
(AUD, RMB or other currencies). For a 1% (2016: 1%)
weakening of respective functional currency (HK$
or RMB) against the relevant foreign currency (AUD,
RMB or other currencies), there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss for the year
and the balances below would be negative.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

30.

2T AR (%)

(B) €REAMEE B M RBUER (#)

T3 355 JL B ()

Foreign Currency risk (Continued) (i) IP I B (4)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (&)
Effect on profit or loss
HiEscogeg
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Strengthen against AUD by 1% HRITHE% 559 633
Strengthen against RMB by 1% HAREFE1% 25 25
Strengthen against other HEMEBAEI%
currencies by 1% 2 7
Other price risk (i) H b (& 1% B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position either as available-for-
sale financial assets or held for trading investments.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the management has appointed
a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determine
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—-F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

30. T A ()
(B) £REMEIER MW REBEEK (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk (Continued)

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been increased/
decreased by 20% (2016: 1%) and all other variables
were held constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$58,875,000 (2016:
HK$5,260,000) resulting from the changes in fair
value of these listed investments. The directors of
the Group decide to increase the rate of sensitivity to
reflect significant movement on the stock price in the
current year.

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets had been
increased/decreased by 20% (2016: 1%) and all
other variables were held constant, the investment
revaluation reserve as at 31 March 2017 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$13,372,000
(2016: HK$755,000) resulting from the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets. The
directors of the Group decide to increase the rate of
sensitivity to reflect significant fluctuation on the stock
price in the current year.

Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
financial assets, deposits, loans and interest receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

i 35 JE B (%)
(i) H A (& 1% IE B ()
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFFZ

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of loan and interest receivables and finance lease
receivable, representing financing advances to customers
under the Group’s loan financing and financial leasing
business, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
financial background and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from
the Group’s loan financing business, 47% (2016: 22%) of
the total gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 March
2017 was due from the Group’s largest customer and 82%
(2016: 78%) of the total gross loan and interest receivables
as at 31 March 2017 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s loan financing business.

In respect of the finance lease receivables arising from the
Group’s financial leasing business, 93% (2016: 93%) of the
total gross finance lease receivable as at 31 March 2017
was due from the Group’s largest customer and 100%
(2016: 100%) of the total gross finance lease receivable as
at 31 March 2017 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s financial leasing business.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan and interest receivables is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 75% (2016: 97% mainly in Hong
Kong) of loan and interest receivables as at 31 March 2017
and 2016.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

30. e T A (g
(B) £mEAMEE B M REBUR (#)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for finance lease receivables is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2016: 100%) of finance lease
receivable as at 31 March 2017.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk is
under control since the management exercises due care in
granting credit and checking the financial background of
these customers on a regular basis.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because they
are deposited with financial institutions or investment
counterparties with high credit quality and the Group does

fa B LB (40
AEBEZRMEE S 2 EKRBERE
HREZEERBEZEEPRFAE 14
R_Z—+H&=ZfA=+—Bz@mEA
ERWEHIEZ100% (T — N4
100% ) °

HREREEERTEERERRE
REREPIMHER AURARAES
RBEERRTIZES -

HRRBESERNERFRRIEZ
TREBNRERSEH T BHEZE
B R A IR K A 5 B 78 H f E F fr] &

not expect any significant counterparty risk. AR SEFRK -
Liquidity risk ¥ 4 B e B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of margin
loan from a financial institution and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

30. T A ()
(B) €REAMEE B M RBUER (#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) B < U B B ()

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at

the end of the reporting period.

TREEFNERASESR - HEFER
RFEBMERZAIRRT - REERBERTIA

BERR M RRFH -

Liquidity tables BB #
More than More than
On demand one year but two years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
RERS BB-F BAWE AFRRE
R-FR EIREF BIRLF mERE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BET T BET T BETT
As at 31 March 2017 R-Z-tF=F=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties FiTEEREE
Margin loans payable ERRESLER 183,633 - - 183,633 178,285
Creditors, deposits and accruals RN FARERERER 35,992 - - 35,992 35,992
Amounts due to related companies  [EfTBIE A ABR 33,566 - - 33,566 33,566
Convertible bonds RkES 17,545 19,565 299,065 336,175 224,067
270,736 19,565 299,065 589,366 471,910
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin -~ butless than  but less than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REXRH BB—F BBME  AMRRS
R—%R EBLR@MFE EIREF MERE FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BT
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZB-R"E=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiT4Z@BEE
Margin loans payable ERRESER 377,757 - - 377,757 376,861
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER FARSRBRER 65,721 - - 65,721 65,721
Amounts due to related companies ~ [EfTEE A FBRR 2,215 - - 2,215 2,215
Amount due to a director ERN—2ESHRR 9 - - 9 9
Convertible bonds AARESR - 140,000 - 140,000 115,414
Obligation under a finance lease MEMEHAE 1,400 - - 1,400 1,374
447,102 140,000 - 587,102 561,594

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=HA=+—HIFFZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. R T E (&)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C) EHMBMRRARABRZAR
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED Bt E
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIBHESMITE 2O IRBETE
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end M ERERERARZAAEE
of each reporting period for recurring measurement, WRBEAEESHBRERARER
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which BRI BEENBERFE—BANEZE=R
the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s Bl o

accounting policy.

31/3/2017
—E-t§=R=+-H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—HAB | g
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL REZERAANEREZ
CHEE
Held for trading investments BIEEERA
- Listed equity investments — LR ARE 333,914 18,629 352,543
Derivative financial instruments THEEMIA
- Derivative component of —ABRRES 2
convertible bonds PTEE S - 32,988 32,988
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESREE
Listed equity investments FhlRAKRE 66,861 - 66,861
Total k] 400,775 51,617 452,392
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RESREAREREZ
cREE
Derivative financial liabilities fTESBBE
- Call options from issuance of —BIIABREESR
convertible bonds REE R - 252,021 252,021
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

30. e T A (g

(C) EHUMBRRRABIEZAR

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED B £ (@)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
31/3/2016
—E-R"F=ZA=+—H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—HA il ekl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL REZERANEREZ
SREE
Derivative financial assets THEEMEE
- Listed equity call options — ERARE B 711 - 711
Held for trading investments BIEEERA
- Listed equity investments —FIRARE 603,031 26,879 629,910
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESREE
Listed equity investments FHRAKE 75,466 - 75,466
Total BEE 679,208 26,879 706,087

There were no other transfers between level of fair value
hierarchy in current and prior years.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqt§
A PF 4 $ie 3R 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

30. e T A (g

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements on

financial instruments as at the date of inception, 31 March
2017 and 2016 is set out below:

Date of inception

Valuation technique

HER

Key input

EX-LDN ¢

()

Bt & (#)

REBHE . — T+ F N T —RF
—A=Z+—H8 EHEEMIEZE=FH

BHMBRARAER 2D R

FAREFEZERFHIIMT

B A

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATTREBABE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
THEERABER
AREZEE

Derivative financial assets

TEEMEE

Derivative financial liabilities

Binominal option pricing
model

“EAMEEERY

Binominal option pricing
model

“EAMEEERY

Volatility levels, spot
price and risk-free
rate

KEKT REER
ERBAE

Volatility levels, spot
price and risk-free
rate

KEKT REER
ERBAE

Volatility levels of
12.2% - 26.1%

BRI
12.2%—26.1%

Volatility levels of
48.5% - 48.7%

BRI
48.5%—48.7%

the higher the volatility
rate, the higher the
fair value

EESISE
ANEHR

the higher the volatility
rate, the higher the
fair value

EESISE
ANEHR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

30. e T A (g

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2017

Valuation technique

HERH

Key input

TEQARE

Bt & (#)

(C) EHUBRRRABREZANR

BE-E—tHF=ZA=1+—HILEE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATTREEBARE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TUBEERABER
AREZBE

Derivative financial assets

TEEMEE

Derivative financial liabilities

TEEBaE

Held for trading investment

Binominal option pricing
model

“EAREEERY

Binominal option pricing

model

“EAREEERY

Market approach

5%

Year ended 31 March 2016

Volatility levels, spot
price and risk-free
rate

RIEKT REER
ER RN

Volatility levels, spot
price and risk-free
rate

RIEKT REER
ER RN

Volatility levels, spot
price and risk-free
rate

RIEKT REER
ER RN

Volatility levels of
12.2% - 26.1%

RIEKE
12.2%—26.1%

Volatility levels of
48.5% - 48.7%

RIEKE
48.5%—48.7%

Volatility levels of
38.110122.3%

RIEKE
38.1%—122.3%

the higher the volatility
rate, the higher the
fair value

EIES N
AAEER

the higher the volatility
rate, the higher the
fair value

EIES N
AAEER

the higher the volatility
rate, the higher the
fair value

EIES N
AAEER

BEZZE—-AF=ZA=+—HLEFE

Relationship of

Significant unobservable inputs
Valuation technique Key input unobservable inputs  to fair value
THEERABESR
HER TETHAYE EXTUBERBABE AREZHE
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rate fair value
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. @t T A (@)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C) EHMBMRRARABRZAN
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED Bt & (@)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

The fair value of derivative financial assets from early AR ERHREEE ITESREE
redemption options and derivative financial liabilities FEBMETAREEFZE AKX
from the contractual provisions in relation to issuance of EEXEZTEERBECARELRE
convertible bonds were determined by using binominal EREHAM Z R RER L BEA
option pricing model that consider the possible future et R —IEAAREEEREE -
prices for each period in time as well as the respective BEEEREZ AN ERBMEAE
probability. The fair value of held for trading investments FERMABBUER 2 JEERA
were determined by using market approach that reflects RAIAHEATME UWHEBNE BER
recent market value of comparable companies with similar MEEZEELHAE-

business, adjusted for differences in nature, scope and
location of the business.

The fair value measurement of the derivative financial assets PTHEEMEEZ AN B EEFIRK
are positively correlated to the volatility level. As at 31 FEEEEB - RZTE—+tF=-A=1—
March 2017, it is estimated that with all other variables held B Astpie EmE s g g gl
constant, an decrease/increase in the expected volatility 8 8RR 08 TR B FH10%5G 5 Bl R 4
by 10% would have decrease/increased the Group's loss NN 3 5 18 75 5 1,345,0000T,
by HK$1,345,000/HK$1,456,000 respectively (2016: not 75 1,456,000 (ZF — R F : T@
applicable). ) e
The fair value measurement of the derivative financial MESBBEZ ANBETEEEE
liabilities are positively correlated to the volatility level. As at FEEREB - R=ZT—+F=A="1—
31 March 2017, it is estimated that with all other variables B At EmEEgR T8 Al
held constant, an increase/decrease in the expected TEHRR IR EF T F510%15 5 Bl 1 AN
volatility by 10% would have increased/decreased the SR AN 2 B 5 1R 7 54,054,000,
Group’s loss by HK$4,054,000/HK$2,224,000 respectively B2 224,000 (= —NF i@
(2016: not applicable). )
No sensitive analysis is performed on the held for trading TR IEE B IR EETHREST
investment as the impact is not significant to the Group’s RERE@EZEHAEEXNMEFE
losses for both years. ZEBEITrEK
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

30. e T A (g

(C) EHUMBRRRABIEZAR
EitE (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on R E M EEETE =R A AER
recurring basis: EHER:
Early
Call options redemption
Held for  from issuance options on
trading  of convertible convertible
investment bonds bonds Total
BOTERR AR
FEE e BHEZRE
RE R REHE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—-A$MA—AH 29,910 (618,633) - (588,723)
Issue of convertible bonds B RRES - 831,954 - 831,954
Loss arising on changes of AREEHELLER
fair value (3,031) (213,321) - (216,352)
At 31 March 2016 and RZZE-RE=A=+—H
1 April 2016 RZZ-RF¥MOA-A 26,879 - - 26,879
Recognition of derivative component  FERR A Mk B 2
of convertible bonds (note 27) PTEE D (HsE27) - (279,448) - (279,448)
Issue of convertible bonds BITMBRES - 27,427 28,177 55,604
(Loss) gain arising on changes of ARERYELY
fair value (B8 ) de (8,250) - 4,811 (3,439)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=H=1—H 18,629 (252,021) 32,988 (200,404)

Since the level 3 of financial assets and liabilities are not

quoted in an active market, valuation technique is used to

estimate the fair value. When estimating fair value using

valuation technique, observable inputs and data from the

practical market (e.g. spot price, risk-free rate, implied

volatility, etc) are adopted. If the observable inputs in the

market cannot be obtained, the observable input data

that are calibrated as closely as possible to the market

observable data are used for estimating the fair value.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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30. e T A (g
(C) EHHBRIARAERZAAN

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Meanwhile, the credit risk, volatility, correlation, etc of
the Group and the counterparty are estimated by the
management. The changing of these factors will affect the
estimated fair value of the financial instruments, therefore
there were uncertainty of accounting estimation on the level
3 of financial assets and liabilities.

The above loss arising from changes in fair value for the
year ended 31 March 2017 recognised in profit or loss
of approximately HK$8,250,000 (2016: HK$3,031,000)
and approximately HK$4,811,000 (2016: approximately
HK$213,321,000) are included in “Loss arising from
changes in fair value of held for trading investments” and
“Gain (loss) arising from changes in fair value of derivative
financial liabilities” respectively in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair value
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that fair value of other non-current financial assets
and liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts as
the impact of discounting of non-current assets is not
significant and the non-current liabilities are amortised at
market interest rates.

EitE (&)

AT AEEREFH 2 EEAR K
B RS B E R R st -
HEEEMELEED BHELHTA
2 AAE Al E=BHIEBA
ERA BTG TR

FREEABRZBEE=_F—t
FZA=Z+—RALFEZAAESZ
)= 4 7 B 1B 4978 #58,250,0007T (=
T — N B #3,031,0000T ) B4 7E
#4,811,0007C (Z T —NEF HEK
213,321,0007T) * o BlEt A& ff 18 2=
R [BEEEREZANEEHEL
ZEBIKIITESMBBEZ ANEE
FEL W (BB R-

AARESER R ARNEHI NS
REHTHRERAUEFEK AL
HivnBemEER AR REER
HAE 2 AR ERE - ARREFER
S HRERBDEENEZFEYTE
REFERBEETIRT SN -
BHMFERDEMEERBBERNE
EHAREEMES

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I L

197



198

Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. LM ERE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE AEEEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RMEPRR NEERMERERIE T
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable g EMERN KRRz &ERE
operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due RIEAE - HEEMEBNT
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
Within one year R—FR 10,919 6,995
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERAFRN(EEMFRBEENRN) 6,435 3,848
17,354 10,843
The above lease commitments only include commitments for P EREEREEAHESARE T
basic rentals, and do not include commitments for additional EHINENEe (ERE) (WEF) 2%
rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be generally B ZSENe —RERAHEECTEEET
determined by applying pre-determined percentages to sales less BoRSHEZEABEmMETE  Bith
the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to At EAETA@BINEE 2 -

determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to its employees, the directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
contribute further to the development of the Group so as to
enhance value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was renewed, at
the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which
might be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the shareholders in general meeting.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company. Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates would result in the
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option might be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by
the board of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from
the date of grant.

32. AR AER Z MR

—IEERESS ([ZFAEDRER -F
——FNAZ T HBBZRABRERRK
M EZENNAEREE BEFEALEMA
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ZET B R A EMBREA S ERHBER KR
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172 B AD # 8 230% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

32.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

(Continued)

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the

Company, and would not be less than the highest of the closing

price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average

closing price of the share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for

the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,

and the nominal value.

Details of specific categories of options granted under the share

32. AR AR 2N (&)

TEERARBZESTETE  $§TLPRAR
AROREL B2 WmE AR HR
EERRHAYMLEERAER BT
FHRTERARNRFBRMND ZHE K&K
R

HRIB R R RT 81 th 8045 T8 J8 A1 RO BB IRk =

option scheme are as follows: BT -
Fair value Fair value Fair value
at grant date at grant date at grant date
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  for consultants  for employees for directors
L EaR gz
R A it BEIH Rt A
RitiAH BEH e EE Mo ARME DEE NoRE
19 April 2013 Note 19 April 2013 to 18 April 2018 HK$0.375 HKS$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
ZZ-ZFWATAIA MizE ZE-=FWATNBE 10,3757 Br0.121 w0127 BT
“T-\FNA+NH
26 April 2013 Note 26 April 2013 to 25 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
“E-=FNA=FH Mg ZE-=HWMAZ+RAZE 0,375 B2 BRI BBOATT
“Z-\FNA=+HH
3 February 2015 Note 3 February 2015 to 2 February 2020 HK$0.477 HK$0.19 HK$0.19 HK$0.19
“Z-n%-fA=H (i3 it e B = ) BE04TTT 0197 0197 BE0A9T
“Z-THE-ACA
11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -
“E-RFt-At-A i “E-Rft-At-HE 7806387 E®027TL - -
R
28 December 2015 Note 28 December 2015 to 27 December 2020 HK$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35
ZR-REFZAZTAR ME ZZ-REFZAZTN\BE BB0.7927L 75#0.357T - BH0.357T
It g 2 e
19 December 2016 Note 19 December 2016 to 18 November 2021 HK$0.738 HK$0.73 - -
ZE-REtZAThA M ZT-R¥tZAthAZE BH0.738TC BT - -
ZFZ-%+-A+NA
Note: sk -

In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were vested

at the date of grant.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen‘t‘s
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

32. AR AR 2N (&)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by directors, employees and consultants during the

TEREEES RELERMBHNARERE
BRERBE-T—tF=A=t—HILFE

year ended 31 March 2017: B8 -

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Transferred  Outstanding

at 1 April during the during the during the during the  at 31 March

2016 year year year year 2017

R-B-RE R=B-tE

A-H =ZA=t-H

Option type HEg ERi:d ERRH FRTE FRRY ERER Ei:d
Directors Bz

19 April 2013 “E-Z4NATAA 44,050,000 - (2,225,000) - - 41,825,000

3 February 2015 “Z-1%¥-A=A 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000

28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTNR 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Employees k&

19 April 2013 ZF-Z4NATAA 7,125,000 - (4,265,000) - (2,860,000) -

26 April 2013 ZE-ZHNAZ+RA 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000

3 February 2015 “Z-1%¥-A=A 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000

19 December 2016 ZE-RETZATAA - 53,000,000 - - - 53,000,000
Consultants B

19 April 2013 ZF-=4NATNA 33,875,000 - (17,125,000 - 2,860,000 19,610,000

26 April 2013 ZE-ZHNAZ+RA 11,200,000 - (4,650,000) - 6,550,000

3 February 2015 “Z-1%¥-A=A 87,000,000 - (41,500,000 - - 45,500,000

11 November 2015 ZE-RET-A+-H 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000

28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTNR 275,460,000 - - - - 275,460,000

19 December 2016 ZE-RETZATAR - 482,000,000 - - - 482,000,000

545,710,000 535,000,000  (69,765,000) - - 1,010,945,000

Exercisable at the end of the year FRUE 1,010,945,000

Weighted average exercise price MEFHTEE HK30.635 HK30.738 HK30.436 - - HK30.704

A®063m BT 04367 AE0.7047T

SR B R )
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFZF

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the

32. AR AR 2N (&)

TERFEEES REMERANRBZE-ZF—X
FZA=+—RLEFERAEZIARRABERE

year ended 31 March 2016: ZEo
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Transferred  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the during the  at 31 March
2015 year year year year 2016
R-Z2-1% RZB-RE
A-H =ZA=t-H
Option type HEsR ERicd ERRH FRTE FRRK ERER Ei:d
Directors
19 April 2013 44,050,000 - - - - 44,050,000
26 April 2013 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
3 February 2015 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTNR - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Employees EE
19 April 2013 “F-Z4NATAR 7,125,000 - - - - 7,125,000
26 April 2013 ZE-=FmE=1RA 3,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 2,000,000
3 February 2015 “Z-1§¥-A=A 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Consultants B
19 April 2013 ZF-Z4NATNA 33,875,000 - - - - 33,875,000
26 April 2013 ZE-ZHNAZ+RA 12,000,000 - (1,800,000) - 1,000,000 11,200,000
3 February 2015 “Z-1%¥-A=A 102,000,000 - (15,000,000 - - 87,000,000
11 November 2015 “Z-REt-A1+-A - 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTNR - 275,460,000 - - - 275,460,000
233,050,000 330,460,000  (16,800,0000  (1,000,000) - 545,710,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FRATE 545,710,000
Weighted average exercise price METHIEE HK$0.433 HK$0.769 HK$0.466 HK$0.433 - HK$0.635
0433 BIE0T6OT  E0466T  BH0433T 50,6357

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.98
(2016: HK$0.83).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, options were granted
on 19 December 2016 (2016: 11 November 2015 and 28
December 2015). The estimated fair value of the options granted
on the grant date was approximately HK$62,750,000 (2016:
HK$13,603,000 and HK$97,159,000 respectively) and was
determined by using the Binomial Model.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=HA=+—HIFFZF

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

(Continued)

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as follows:

32. AR AR 2N (&)

RZBEARWGAZEZHERNAT

Date of grant

BHAH
11 November 28 December 19 December
2015 2015 2016
—EB-1F —ZE-1f —E-R§
t+t-A+—-B +t=ZA=+NH tZA+hE
Share price at the grant date RELBHZRE B H0.6107T BE0.7707T B #0.7307T
Exercise price per share FRRITEE 7B 10.6387T BH0.7927T 7B #0.7387C
Expected volatility EHREIEE 56.21% 56.18% 52.73%
Expected life of options TR R i A AR 2.9 3F 5%
Expected dividend yield EHREE 0% 0% 0%
Annual risk-free interest rate A2 2 i 4 1) 1.15% 1.02% 1.66%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options were
approximately HK$162,750,000 (2016: HK$110,762,000) which
amounting to approximately HK$146,621,000, HK$16,129,000
and nil (2016: HK$108,995,000, nil, and HK$1,767,000) were to
be recognised as share-based payments expenses granted to
consultants, employees and directors respectively for the year
ended 31 March 2017 with a corresponding increase in equity.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the Company’s
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

FRHIRIE DIRBARARIRENBEFEZE
SEREEE - AERERE[ET BEAP
ZIERERHACARERE N SR
TERVETREEERERZZEMAH

B o
=

P BREEBREZAABAE XN
#162,750,000c (ZZF — R~ F B
110,762,0007T ) * 497 #146,621,0007T *
75 #16,129,000L KT (ZE— R F B
108,995,0007T * & K 7 #1,767,0007T ) # 1

REHE_ZT—tF=-A=1+—ALLEE
AR RIETERE  EERES ARG AEMR
Z AR - WAR B A % o

BhgEzAAMETER ZBAAEL T UM
oAt EBRBEAEMERZZE MRR
TERARR Z &EMG - BREEERS
TEIBBERZITAZEMAR-

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I L

203



204

Notes to the Consglidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 2 B

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

HONG KONG

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer”)
in Hong Kong and its employees are required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014
and HK$1,500 per month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, the total amount contributed
by the Group to this scheme and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss was approximately HK$176,000 (2016:
HK$171,000).

THE PRC

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to contribute to a state-managed retirement
plan for all its employees at a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of its employees. The state-managed retirement plan
is defined contribution retirement plan and responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under
the state-managed retirement plan, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. During the year ended
31 March 2017, the total amount contributed by the Group to
this scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$65,000 (2016: HK$97,000).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. EEABALTZRS

(A) TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material transactions entered into during the
year with related parties are as follows:

(A)

R
FR BEEEALIIZERRSZ
ERCEUNNE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Related company (note): BN T (FsE) -

Aircraft — charter charges M — B B 834 1,687

Aircraft — other costs and expenses RE—E N HEMER R
reimbursement paid & 1,445 2,351

The above related party transactions were carried out in
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between the
respective parties.

Note: The related company is Trillion Winner Investment Limited of
which one of the executive directors and substantial shareholder
of the Company is the beneficial shareholder. The aircraft —
charter charges and other costs and expenses reimbursement
are charged by this related company pursuant to the terms of
the respective aircraft charter agreement.

LABEEALT ZRZHEEBFH
TTHEEWE 2 GRFHETT

MizE: B8 E QA ATrillion Winner
Investment Limited (4N A &) 2 & &
—ERTESERFERRAEES
ARER) o M — B B o EAth B A %
FXMEmZAELRRESER
1 197 5 7 (6 SR U ER

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFZF

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) BALANCES

Details of the balances with related parties are as follows:

(i) Amounts due to related parties @)

(B) %k

34. BABAT 2R Z (&)

HBEMBEALZEHFBNOT:
WE A A I N ik I

2017 2016
Name of Company NGRS —E—tF AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Wincon Capital K EARKEBRAA
Investment Limited 33,566 -
FNmREERIEERRAA FAIMmREEBIEEBRAA
(note a) (Mf3Fa) - 22
Trillion Winner Investment Limited  Trillion Winner Investment Limited
(note b) (FMf7ED) - 1,952
REBEERKERE (BREN) REENEELE (BREE)
(note b) (FtsED) - 241
33,566 2,215
Notes: P& -
(@) FINTREBBEREABRAQAs the company of (@) MR EERREERAAA

which one of the executive directors and substantive
shareholder of the Company is the director and beneficial

shareholder.

(o)  Trilion Winner Investment Limited and S {84 A% & % (b)
(BBRA1K) are companies of which one of the executive
directors and substantial shareholder of the Company is

the beneficial shareholder.

() The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable (c)

on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B)

(€)

(D)

BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Amounts due to a director

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The emoluments of the directors and other members of key
management during the year were disclosed in note 10.

ACQUISITION OF THE ADDITION INTEREST
IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 11 January 2016, the Group acquired the remaining
37.5% of the issued share capital of Ease Main Limited
from Joy Well Investments Limited at a consideration
of approximately HK$92,922,000. An amount of
approximately HK$6,240,000 (2016: HK$51,296,000)
remained unsettled as at 31 March 2017. Details of the
acquisition of additional interest of the subsidiary are
disclosed in note 37.

£ OF B B e 3 B

E—+FZHA=+—HIFE

34. EEABALTZR S (&)

(B)

(€)

(D)

EER ()
(i) FMENT — 4 #HF K

FTHARBEN R RANE
KIS -

TEEEAEBZ#HE

FRESRTEEBASZHMKE
Z SR 10 W EE -

W is — BB AR 2 BEMERS

RZE—ARF—A+—8 AEEMU
R AB #)76 192,922,0007T [A1Joy Well
Investments Limited! 3% 12 FH & R A
AIE BITIRAR 28R T37.5% % a5 o I
T +FE=ZA=+—H HEH
7 #6,240,0007T ( ZF — RN F B
51,296,0007T ) 3 & & 1 o & B8 U B Bt
BArmEIMER 2 BRI EI7TRER
E‘Eo

S8 4 T 4 A PR Y )
I L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

35. KRB IEAR MR

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B K 2 260 1,815
Interests in subsidiaries SRR =N £ 218,085 248,470
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHEemEE 19,806 22,355
Non-current deposits and prepayments EMBF LIS RIENHIA 2,165 1,838
240,316 274,478
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments FHiEke MIENHIE 7,476 7,532
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U Bf /B A RIBR X 629,190 419,029
Derivative financial instruments TEERT A 32,988 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 19,272 4,041
688,926 430,602
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary NG EPNGIE € 99,175 56,122
Derivative financial instrument THEeRT A 252,021 -
Income tax liabilities i a’E 10,648 -
Creditors, deposits and accruals RN FAKSRIBERER 27,146 59,244
388,990 115,366
Net current assets RBEEFE 299,936 315,236
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBEE 540,252 589,714
Capital and reserves BARHE
Share capital f& A< 53,182 49,358
Reserves (note a) wEE (MizTa) 263,003 424,942
Total equity RS 316,185 474,300
Non-current liability kRBERE
Convertible bonds AR E S 224,067 115,414
540,252 589,714
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqt§
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE = 35. ANA B BF &k 5% (@)
COMPANY (Continued)

(A) RESERVES (A) 8
Convertible
bonds Retained
Capital Share - equity profits
Share Contributed redemption option conversion  (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserves reserve losses) Total
TRRES
EXHE BRE -REER REER
RGEE 9N 1 B B (R B8) )
(note)
(FizE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETT BETT BETT RETT BB BETR

At 1 April 2015 RZZ-RENA-A 310,666 55,215 14 41,747 114,068 (808,354) (286,644)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (507,249) (507,249)

Issue of convertiole bonds - equity  {TR[ AR ES - EREHRDH
conversion component (note 27)  (Fi527) - - - - 993,510 - 993,510

Issue of shares upon conversion of RER AT EREFEETRH
convertible bonds (note 26) GEZ)) 1,312,506 - - - (908,059) - 404,537

Recognition of equity-settled share AR 58 2 VB EE MR A

based payments vested (note 32) R 3 (f13E32) - - - 110,762 - - 110,762
Share repurchased and cancelled & 1785 2 o 3t 8 (195,960) - - - - - (195,960)
Share options exercised (note 32) 77 & i (fif3E32) 11,654 - - (3.262) - - 8,392
Share option forfeited R R - - - (118) - 118 -
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-~E=A=1+-H 1,438,956 55,215 14 149,129 199,519 (1,925,140) 263,003

S EERRA R AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(A) RESERVES (Continued)

35. AR FSAR R &R (&)

(A) (80

Convertible
bonds Retained
Capital Share - equity profits
Share Contributed redemption option conversion  (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserves reserve losses) Total
TRRES
EXHE BRE -REER REER
RGEE HABH 1 B B (R B8) et
(note)
(FizE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2016 WZE-~ENA-H 1,438,956 55,215 14 149,129 199,519 (1,417,891) 424,942
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - (507,249) (607,249)
Issue of convertiole bonds - equity  {TR[ AR ES - EREHRDH
conversion component (note 27)  (Fi527) - - - - 112,858 - 112,858
Issue of shares upon conversion of &R A EREFEETRA
convertible bonds (note 26) GEZ)) 315,708 - - - (199,519) - 116,189
Recognition of equity-settled share AR 58 2 VB EE MR A
based payments vested (note 32) R 3 (f13E32) - - - 162,750 - - 162,750
Share repurchased and cancelled & 1785 2 o 3t 8 (76,184) - - - - - (76,184)
Share options exercised (note 32) 77 & i (fif3E32) 41,595 - - (11,898) - - 29,697
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—tF=A=1+-H 1,720,075 55,215 14 299,981 112,858 (1,925,140) 263,003

Note: As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the contributed surplus
of approximately HK$55,215,000 represents the difference
between the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for
the acquisition and HK$48,989,000 represents the amount
being transferred from share capital and share premium as
distributable reserve.

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution to shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #BZ_—F—+F=H=+—HILFZ

36. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 21 June 2017, the Company (as the purchaser) and the
vendor, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (the “Vendor”), being a controlling
shareholder, the executive director and the chairman of the
Company, entered into the agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire for and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to dispose of the entire equity
interest of the Target Company, United Faith Investments Limited
(the “Target Company”), a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability and is wholly owned by the Vendor, for the
consideration of HK$1,000 million. Pursuant to the agreement,
the consideration of HK$1,000 million shall be satisfied by the
issuance of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,000 million by the Company to the Vendor upon
completion of the transaction. The transaction has not yet been
completed up to the date of this report.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 21 June 2017.

PARTIAL COMPLETION OF ISSUE OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, all conditions
precedent under the certain subscription agreements of
convertible bonds in note 21(iii) have been fulfilled. Convertible
bonds of principal amounts of HK$88,500,000, HK$141,500,000
and HK$230,000,000 were issued respectively.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 April 2017, 5 June 2017 and 30 June
2017.

EXERCISE OF SHARE OPTIONS

Subsequent to the end of the year, on 4 April 2017, 12 April
2017 and 10 May 2017, options were exercised to subscribe
for 350,000, 10,000,000 and 4,255,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.375, HK$0.477
and HK$0.375 per share at a consideration of approximately
HK$131,000, HK$4,770,000 and HK$1,596,000 respectively
in which all the consideration was credited to share capital and
share premium.

36.

EHRERE
HREEANBEERRERS

EA: ‘ti/\ﬁ JF H - $ j(flﬁ
BERH)HEFFEXEEE (KD A)EBRK
RWTESRER) ([EFDEIVBE
Tﬁﬁt'$/‘ﬂﬁ7ﬁﬂ%f¢ﬁﬁ4&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ§7ﬁﬂﬁ
BHEREBELEEEQARBEREFEREBRA
(regxsal: —Fﬁg@%%%&ﬁiaﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
R ZBRARYHESZ2EHRE) 22
fi% 4 - ({8 &5 %51,000,000,0007T ° 18 1 13
2% - (B 1,000,000,000TT R TR L 5
BHANBBBAEFBEITACRERBE
1,000,000,0007C 7 Al A IR & 5 S 1+ B = AR
WEBH ZRXPHHATK-

RGHBRENARBDEHRL T —LF R
AZ+—BzRMmA-

28 FE A BT IR RS 55

PR & HA R 1 - MY 5E21 (i) B 3 & T A iR A
BEFRBMEE AL REGE EE
% o 75 & 58 5 Bl & 7 #88,500,0007T + i
141,500,0007T X 7 #230,000,0007T 2 ] #
BESDEHET

REGFBEBERAR _JEHHF"J ’ti

—tFRA=ZTRZAMA-

THEERE

RELHRR R-ZT—tFMOAEA -
*tEEﬂJr_E&_E*tiﬁﬂJrE :
BREEBITENIRSREK0.375T B
#0.477 70 M B HE0.375 T 2 BI& » B R IE
350,000 * 10,000,0008% K 4,255,0008% & %
HEBBK0OITZARREBR RED
B #4975 #131,000 ~ 4,770,0007T K 78 #&
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—ZF—+F=A=—+—HIFFEZE

306.

37.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36. FEHIRSEIE (&)
(Continued)
SUBSEQUENT CHANGE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF RER LBRPE LHZ2RAFZS
THE EQUITY SECURITIES LISTED IN HK AND ZRREHEREE
SHANGHAI, THE PRC
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there was a RBEHRE - RES  LERFBEETZ
significant decline in the fair value of certain equity securities BETRABES 2 ABELIRE KX TRE AR
listed in Hong Kong and Shanghali, the PRC. The total unrealised ERE AREEREE CRELEERE
loss arising from changes in fair value is approximately 49 /575 #11,398,0007T °
HK$11,398,000 as at report date.
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. ARAIXEMBRRZFF1E
OF THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZE—tFR_FT—RF=ZA=+—8"
2017 and 2016 are as follows: RAREEMBAR ZFBHT
Place or
country of Issued and
incorporation/ paid up
establishment/ Class of share capital/ ~ Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations shares register capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
FREL/ BRTR
R/ &% % HRRA/ ARRREZ
AAEH HEX B8R &L RHEA FERRERREELA TEEY
2017 2016
—E-tF ZB-RE
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
EE B %1 GE:3
% % % %
Dingyi Group (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 100 - 100  Investment holding
RESE(ER)BRAF i 3 BEIT REER
Dingyi Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 100 - 100  Investment holding
REERERARA B il BT RERR
RESE(RIRETHERRA The PRC N/A Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Investment acvisory service
RMB50,000,000 and
paid-up capital of
RMB22,082,000
e TR HER TR RET RS
AR#50,000,0007 &
BRBA
AR#22,082,0007
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z=

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

*

*

37. RRRIE BB AR ZH

I=E =
5 (&)

Place or
country of Issued and
incorporation/ paid up
establishment/ Class of share capital/  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations shares register capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
EMEL/ BER
e 31 ] HERE/ ARARKEZ
NAEH HEX REGER dMER  RHO#HE FEEEERRERELD TEXHB
2017 2016
“EB-tf —B-RE
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
EE 4 B 5
% % % %
FRMREZERERAH The PRC N/A Registered and paid-up N/A - 100 - 100 Restaurant
capital of RMB500,000
E TER BT Ve TEf B
AR 500,000
Dingyi (North America) Limited The BVI N/A US$1 1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
(note )
REEMRAE TER 1%L (B &) REER
Dingyi North America Seattle LLC The USA N/A . N/A - 100 - 100  Loan financing
(note i)
%68 @R - TR (W) ERmE
Easy Prestige Limited The BVI Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - 100  Investment holding and
loan financing
FRERAT ABABREE il 1T REBREEHEE
(Golden Season International Limited The BVI Ordinary USS1 1 - 100 - 100  Securities trading and
trading of wine
2ZBRERRA REEMRAE iR 1% AFBERERER
Ease Main Limited The BVI Ordinary US$1,000 1,000 100 - 100 - Investment holding and
) securities trading
RAFRAA ERAMRHE il 1,000% 7T REBRREFER
Dingyi Financial Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 100 - 100  Loan financing
Investment Limited
SELRBBRABRAT Eh £l BT EF@E
REER(RINBEREERDA The PRC N/A Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Financial leasing
RMB800,000,000
and paid-up capital of
RMBB85,700,000
HE TER AMER TER RARE
AR 800,000,000
R RBRA
AR %85,700,0007T
Xumao Ventures Limited The BVI Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - 100  Inactive
JBEEIEERAT ABABREE il 1T OEXH
Hoping Medical Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
MEBRERAT %k Bl BEIT RAER
Hoping Medical Investment Limited The PRC N/A Registered capital of N/A - 100 - - Proton medical
{Zhejiang)* HK$700,000,000 and
paid-up capital of nil
MEREREEE (N1 ERAR HE TER AfExR TER ETER
7%700,000,0007C &
BRBAE
For identification purpose only
ERES)
S AR R A PR A )
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z-F—+F=H=4+—HIFZ

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37.

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Dingyi (North America) Limited and Dingyi North America Seattle LLC
were newly established during the year ended 31 March 2016.

(ii) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of
these subsidiaries operates in the PRC, Hong Kong and the BVI.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

KANBFBEREB AR ZFF1E (&)

MEE:

(i) Dingyi (North America) Limited }2Dingyi North
America Seattle LLCREBZ —Z— ~F= A
=t —HIEFENKT

(ii) ERINTARREERATENERNEEEE
FEENAEENBAR - NAREERAF
HIHMMEARENSEHERBRITE

RBER > ARRAH AR E L T
EEZNWNE QT - ZFH B AR AR DR T
B BERABEAREERLE ZFWE
NAEMEBRBHANT :

follows:
Number of subsidiaries
MEARHE
31/3/2017 31/3/2016
Principal activities Principal place of business —E—+tHF ZE-RF
FTEXEK TEKE MR =A=+—H =A=+—H
Inactive Hong Kong - 1
RS B
The BVI 4 1
EEERAES
The PRC 1 1
aE
Investment holding The BVI 2 2
KEER KEABRRES
7 5

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of
both years nor at any time during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z_—F—+F=A=+—HIFFZF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. RARFEMNB AT Z2FI1E (8)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED BEEARFEFHUEESZNIZEMN
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- NG T

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries TRINTAAER 2 A E AT G MEEER
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests: 2 EWBRARMFE:

Proportion of

Place of ownership interests and
incorporation/ voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name operations non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
SR FEHMERRENERE BT IR
18 T EERREELH BEHET (B8) RE LR ER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

2t T F ZB-t& T F ZB-tF T 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$'000
A®TR  ARTT  BBTR  ARTR

Ease Main Limited and its The BVI &

subsidiaries (“Ease Main Hong Kong/

Group”) (note) The PRC - - - 3,857 - -
REERAAREMNBELR RBEBRES/

([EHA%EE]) (M) B/ HE

Individually immaterial

subsidiaries with non-

controlling interests (12) - (12) -
lhpsEiatilid: ol

{ERITEREME LR

(12) 3,857 (12) -
Note: B 5 -
The Group held 62.5% equity interest in Ease Main Limited, in which Ease REERRBERRRFFHE62.5%2 ik MizAF
Main Limited held 100% equity interest of Dingyi Financial Services Investment BARNBESRRBIREGR AR NBEER OF
Limited and S {EER ORI BEREAR R F. I EEREFRRAFE100% .2 5 H# -
The Group has acquired the remaining 37.5% equity interest in Ease Main REBER -ZE—RNE—A+—HWREZBEREL
Limited on 11 January 2016 and it became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the AIFIRI7 5% HEKALEBE 2 2ENB R
Group afterwards. Ale
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=F—+F=H=+—HIFEZF

38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 38. TEFRERH

During the year ended 31 March 2017, convertible bonds with HE-_Z2—+tF=-A=+—HLFE"

principal amounts of HK$140,000,000 were converted into K& %8 A&7 #140,000,0000T 2 7] # % &
424,242 424 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each FERBETEREFSRBKIBTEBR A
at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33 per share. 424,242 42415 7K X 7] 45 I8 T B #0.017T

&k

During the year ended 31 March 2016, convertible bonds with REE-_ZE—R"F=ZA=+—B1LFE
principal amounts of HK$100,000,000 and HK$480,000,000 A AR & B A #100,000,0007T & B
were converted into 454,545,453 and 1,454,545,451 ordinary 480,000,0007T 2 Al # IR B 2 79 BHR El &
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion i (EF B B0.227T KB #0.33 /&
price of HK$0.22 and HK$0.33 per share respectively. BN 5]454,545,453[% N 1,454,545,451 %

FRE{ER/EBOITTZ BB -
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